
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the 
use of social media by anyone attending.  This does not 
apply to any part of the meeting that is held in private 
session.  The Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
24 January 2023 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Wednesday 1 February 2023  at 7.30 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 December 
2022 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 

The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider recommendations from the Special meeting of the Cabinet on 24 
January 2023:- 

(a)    Budget Proposals and Medium Term Financial Forecasts 2023/24 
(Forward Plan Reference FP1143) (Pages 9 - 150) 
 

9.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 (Pages 151 - 152) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

10.   PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023/24 (Pages 153 - 160) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) setting out the 
council’s pay policy statement for 2023/24. 
 

11.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Senior Leadership Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this agenda please contact  
Alison Marston, Governance Services  
01707 357444 or democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

Part I 
Item No: 4 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 1 FEBRUARY 2023 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 14 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY THE 
PUBLIC  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 14:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader, from Alan Reimer 
 

“The council gives a lot of information about the use of the recycling bins & in 
particular, the use of the inner bin.  The advice appears on the WHBC web site & 
printed literature.  However, I have evidence that both inner & outer bins are mixed 
together in the refuse collection vehicles.  There is no separation of the contents 
of the inner bin from the rest of the recycling bin.  Because of this, is there any 
reason for supplying the inner bins & should WHBC’s information on recycling be 
amended.” 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 1 FEBRUARY 2023 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Max Holloway 
 

“Would the Leader of the Council update us on what Council services are currently 
impacted by industrial strike action.?” 

2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Michal Siewniak 
 

“It is now almost a year since Marks and Spencer closed their store in the Howard 
Centre to the concern of many residents. Can the Council advise and give tangible 
examples of how discussions are going with the owners and managers of the 
Howard Centre and other key stakeholders to relet or repurpose space in that 
development? For instance, in meetings between M&S and Council leaders, M&S 
reported that they had shared with the Council their requirements for a larger Food 
Hall unit in a highly accessible location. Following the departure of M&S, Next and 
other retailers there is now circa 150,000 sq feet of space available out of a total 
space of 230,000 sq feet meaning 65% of the space is available to let.” 

3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Margaret Birleson 
 

“Please can the Leader inform the Council of the increase of benefits claims over 
the last year, how does this compare with the previous year and are they being 
referred to Food Banks?” 

4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lucy Musk 

“Can the council confirm the numbers of households that are waiting for repairs to 
completed and the average wait as part of the backlog from contract changes??” 

5. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lynn Chesterman 
 

“At the recent Overview and Scrutiny Committee nobody was able to answer what 
the Council’s ‘front line services’ are and how these are defined. As this term is 
constantly used by the Cabinet in their publicity, can the Leader please explain 
what these are and how they are weighted when it comes to budget decisions?” 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No: 
Main authors: Richard Baker  
Executive Member: Cllr. Steven Boulton 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 1 FEBRUARY 2023 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (FINANCE AND TRANSFORMATION) 
 
Budget Proposals and Medium-Term Forecasts 2023/24 
 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1. Following the consideration of the 2023/24 budget proposals at Cabinet on the 10 and 

24 January 2023, the purpose of this report is to present to Council the budget proposals 
for approval, specifically: 

 
• Revenue Budgets 2023/24 
• Capital Programme 2023/24 – 2027/28 
• Use of Reserves 2023/24 
• Fees and Charges for 2023/24 
• Medium Term Strategy and Governance Framework 2023/24 – 2026/27 

 
1.2. The budget was considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) on 17 January 

2023 following the review by a Task and Finish Panel. No recommendations for 
amendments were given by OSC, which was presented to Special Cabinet on 24 
January 2023.  
 

1.3. This budget is set in a time of significant uncertainty with the ongoing covid-19 pandemic, 
cost of living crises and high levels of inflation.  Government funding remains even more 
uncertain in the medium-term, with a number of one year grant awards. 

 
1.4. The 2023/24 budget proposals and the updated medium-term financial forecasts have 

been produced to ensure that the Council maintains a sustainable financial position over 
the planning period to 2026/27. The following Council strategies and policies have 
informed the budget-setting process: 
 
• The Council's Vision and Priorities, as stated in the Business Plan 
• The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
• The Housing Revenue Account 30-year Business Plan 
• Service Strategies and Plans 

 
1.5. The Senior Leadership Team, Cabinet and the Task and Finish Group have met to 

review and monitor emerging budget proposals throughout the budget preparation 
period.  Budget briefing sessions have been held with Members highlighting some of the 
key issues and pressures that the council is facing in the medium-term.   

 
1.6. It should be noted that the Council has not yet received Final Settlement, and that any 

changes made by the Government between the Provisional Settlement received and 
Final Settlement, will be accounted for before the final budget is approved, or if not 
confirmed by the publication date, as part of the Councils budget monitoring process for 
2023/24. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a



 
1.7. This covering report provides members with the details of key assumptions and updates, 

and is supported by the following appendices: 
 

 General Fund 
 
• Appendix A1 – General Fund Summary 2023/24 
• Appendix A2 – General Fund Earmarked Reserves Summary 2023/24 – 2026/27 
• Appendix B – General Fund Director/Assistant Director Summaries 2023/24 
• Appendix C – General Fund Savings Summary 2023/24 – 2025/26 
• Appendix D – General Fund Growth Summary 2023/24 – 2025/26 
• Appendix E – General Fund Fees and Charges 2023/24 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
• Appendix F – Housing Revenue Account Summary 2023/24 
• Appendix G – Housing Revenue Account Summary of Changes 2023/24 
• Appendix H – Housing Revenue Account Fees and Charges 2023/24 
 
Capital Programme 
 
• Appendix I – Capital Programme 2023/24 – 2027/28 
• Appendix J – Capital Financing Summary 2023/24 – 2027/28 
• Appendix K – Capital Reserves Summary 2023/24 – 2027/28 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework  
 
• Appendix L – Medium Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework 

2023/24 – 2026/27 
 

Other Items  
 
• Appendix M – Special Expenses 2023/24 
• Appendix N – Statement of the Chief Financial Officer 

 
1.8. The local government financial position continues to remain unclear beyond the 2023/24 

budget.  In particular, the council’s funding position will be impacted by the future 
Spending Review, fair funding review and further reform of the business rates retention 
system, the outcomes of which are unknown at this stage.  
 

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. That Council note the recommendations from Cabinet, and the Statement of the Chief 

Financial Officer on the robustness of budgets and adequacy of reserves (Appendix N). 
 

2.2. That Council also note that the following amounts for the year 2023/24 have been set in 
accordance with regulations made under Sections 31A and 31B of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992: 

 
 
 

 

Page 8



 100% TAXBASE 99.40% TAXBASE 
   
Welwyn Garden City 18,054.8 17,946.5 
Hatfield 12,463.3 12,388.5 
Welwyn 4,796.5 4,767.7 
Ayot St Lawrence 68.6 68.2 
Ayot St Peter 110.8 110.1 
North Mymms 4,458.1 4,431.4 
Essendon 438.7 436.1 
Northaw & Cuffley 3,121.4 3,102.7 
Woolmer Green 619.6 615.9 
   
Total 44,131.8 43,867.1 

 
2.3. That Council approve the following budget proposals: 

 
2.4. General Fund  
 
2.4.1. The proposed General Fund Budget as summarised in Appendix A, and detailed in 

Appendix B. 
 
2.4.2. The inclusion of the savings and growth proposals into the budget as detailed in 

Appendices C and D. 
 

2.4.3. The fees and charges which have been incorporated into the budget proposals, as set 
out in Appendix E. 

 
2.4.4. That delegated authority is granted to the Executive Director (Finance and 

Transformation) in consultation with the Executive Member (Planning and Resources) 
and the Executive Member (Leisure and Community) to approve in-year changes to the 
fees and charges required for the crematorium, to enable the Council to respond quickly 
to supplier cost fluctuations. 
 

2.4.5. The increase in the Council’s Band D Tax of £6.66 (2.97%), taking the average Band D 
Tax to £230.76 for 2023/24. 

 
2.4.6. That the Special Expenses Scheme as set out in section 3.5 continue into 2023/24, and 

the Special Expenses detailed in Appendix M be approved for inclusion in the Council 
Tax for 2023/24.  

 
2.5. Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  

 
2.5.1. That dwelling rents are increased by 7% in accordance with Government legislation, 

resulting in an average rent of £121.89 per week. 
 

2.5.2. To continue the policy of charging formula rent when vacant properties are re-let.  
 
2.5.3. The Housing Revenue Account budget as shown in Appendix F. 
 
2.5.4. The fees and charges which have been incorporated into the budget proposals, as set 

out in Appendix H. 
 

Page 9



2.5.5. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to maintain HRA working balances to a 
minimum of 5% of rental income.  

 
2.6. Capital Programme 

 
2.6.1. The Capital Programme for 2023/24 to 2027/28 as set out in Appendix I.  

 
2.6.2. The Capital Financing for the Capital Programme, for 2023/24 to 2027/28 as set out in 

Appendix J, and note the forecast capital balances in Appendix K.  
 
2.7. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
2.7.1. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Financial Governance Framework, including 

all annexes and prudential indicators for 2023/24 – 2025/26 as set out in Appendix L. 
 
3. Explanation 

 
3.1. General Fund Revenue Account 
 
3.1.1. This budget is being set in extremely uncertain times. For a number of previous years 

the Government had announced a longer-term settlement, but for 2021/22, 2022/23 and 
now for 2023/24, they have announced a single year settlement. Some of the funding 
streams announced have only been guaranteed for one year and a number of key policy 
items, such as the review of the business rates retention system, have again been 
postponed to future years.  
 

3.1.2. These short-term decisions continue to add to the uncertainties for the council in future 
years and adds further weight to the need for longer term decision making.  
 

3.1.3. The Council continues to face uncertainties and reductions in the grant income from 
central government, and funding for services is increasingly being derived from local 
funding (i.e. Council Tax, Business Rates and charges for services); at the same time 
local demand on Council services has increased. 

 
3.1.4. The requirement to set a balanced budget demands a stringent process to deliver 

efficiencies, preserve as far as possible the quality of front-line services, and retain the 
ability to generate income and to recognise the increasing demand on key services.  
 

3.1.5. The proposed net cost of services budget for 2023/24 totals £14.769m which is £1.419m 
(10.6%) higher than the 2022/23 original budget of £13.350m.  The movement between 
years is summarised in the following table. 

 
 £'000 
2022/23 Original Budget 13,350  
Add: 2023/24 ongoing growth 690 
Less: 2023/24 efficiencies (2,213) 
Add: Inflation and other changes 3,739 
Less: Recharge to HRA / Accounting adjustments (797) 
2023/24 Original Budget 14,769 

 
 

Page 10



3.1.6. A breakdown of savings and growth are included in Appendices C and D, and are also 
detailed in the reconciliation of controllable expenditure in the Director/Assistant Director 
summaries in Appendix B. 
 

3.1.7. Whilst budget proposals are firm for the net cost of services, the Council awaits 
confirmation on a number of areas that may impact on the overall position: 

 
• At the time of writing, the council awaits confirmation of the final settlement for 

2023/24, which is expected to be announced in February.  
 
 Funding Settlement  
 
3.1.8. Due to the current economic uncertainties, the Government announced that it would be 

providing a one-year settlement for Councils, rather than the multi-year settlement 
previously suggested. It also confirmed further delays to the various funding reviews 
which were due, such as the fair funding review and business rates retention review. 
The settlement confirmed that these will now not be implemented in the next two years. 

 
3.1.9. The provisional settlement was eventually announced on 19 December 2022.  The key 

points to note are: 
 
• A further year of the removal of negative Revenue Support Grant for 2023/24 – The 

Government have continued to fund this from the central share of retained business 
rates. Several grants have been rolled into the Revenue Support Grant allocation 
using their existing allocation methodology which are: Family Annex Council Tax 
Discount grant and Local Council Tax Support Administration Subsidy grant.  

• The Lower Tier Services Grant which was awarded in 2021/22 and 2022/23 has 
been removed and replaced by the Minimum Funding Guarantee Grant for 2023/24. 

• The Funding Guarantee Grant of £616k has been announced for WHBC. This is 
intended to provide a funding floor for all local authorities, so that all local authorities 
see an increase in Core Spending Power that is at least 3% before taking decisions 
on council tax and reserve use.  

• The Services Grant which was introduced last year has been continued but has been 
reduced to reflect the reversal of the decision to increase National Insurance 
contributions which formed part of the grant funding for 2022/23.  

• New Homes Bonus Grant - the scheme will continue for another year but with 
reduced amounts payable. As in the previous two years there is no legacy payment 
and therefore the value received is reduced.   

• Council Tax referendum limit for Shire Districts has been increased to 3% (previously 
2%) or £5, whichever is greater. 
 

3.1.10. Although the Government has set a baseline level of income for Business Rates, the 
amount of funding received will depend on the actual amount billed for Business Rates 
which will be influenced by other factors including the collection rate, business growth 
across the District and the provision for successful appeals.  
 

3.1.11. The business rates revaluation planned for 2023 is going ahead, and the government 
has put measures in place on a ‘no worse off’ principal, so authorities that see a 
reduction in rateable value across their area, are not impacted. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



 New Homes Bonus 
 
3.1.12. The Council will receive £0.288m New Homes Bonus grant in 2023/24 and all of the 

income will be used to support the base budget.  The government has confirmed this 
will be reviewed for 2024/25. 
 

 Collection Fund  
  
3.1.13. The Council’s Council Tax requirement for 2023/24 is calculated as £10.123m (exclusive 

of parish precepts). The proposed taxbase for 2023/24 is 43,867.1. 
 
3.1.14. The income due from Council Tax goes into the Collection Fund. Throughout the year 

the actual number of properties (as well as allowances for exemptions, discounts or 
appeals) inevitably varies from the figure estimated at the start of the year. This leads 
to a change in the amount of Council Tax due, and therefore a surplus or deficit on the 
Collection Fund.   
 

3.1.15. For 2022/23 there is a forecast deficit position on the council tax element of the 
Collection Fund.  This deficit on the collection fund is shared between the Major 
Preceptors, i.e. the County, the Police Authority and the Borough, in proportion to their 
precepts for the year.   

 
3.1.16. The proportion of the deficit that each of the Major Preceptors will contribute to the 

Collection Fund when calculating the Council Tax is as follows:  
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council £342,206.00 
Hertfordshire County Council £1,945,059.00 
Hertfordshire Police & Crime Commissioner £282,580.00 
Total Deficit £2,569,845.00 

 
3.1.17. The Government changed the regulations so that estimated collection fund deficits from 

2020/21 were spread over the next three financial years, and the above figures include 
this spreading adjustment. 

 
3.1.18. The business rates deficit is calculated at the end of January based on the Governments 

NNDR1 return. For the purposes of the budget proposals, a provisional deficit figure of 
£2.237m has been assumed for the Business Rates deficit, and also includes an 
adjustment for the spreading adjustment from 2020/21. This deficit will be taken from 
the business rates earmarked reserve to fund the final year of the spreading adjustment.  

 
3.1.19. When finalised, the deficit is likely to be significantly higher than this as it will also include 

adjustments for the high level of discretionary reliefs that have very recently been 
provided by the Government in 2021/22, but these other deficit increases will be fully 
funded by grant receipts.  
 

3.1.20. The Localism Act 2011 abolished Council Tax capping in England and instead allows 
local residents to reverse ‘excessive’ Council Tax increases by means of referendum. 

 
3.1.21. The Government has set the 2023/24 referendum threshold for district Councils at the 

higher of £5 or 3%. It should be noted that this limit is lower than inflation, so whilst the 
council is facing increasing inflationary pressure on contractual costs, it has limited 
ability to raise council tax by equivalent percentages, adding pressure to the budget.  

 

Page 12



3.1.22. The proposed increase of 2.97% for Welwyn Hatfield in 2023/24 is therefore within the 
threshold.  

 
 Budget Assumptions 
 
3.1.23. The 2023/24 budget proposals include the following key assumptions: 
 

Employee 
Costs 

3.5% general pay inflation. Actual increases will depend on 
national pay negotiations 
18.3% of employer pay as contribution to the pension fund*  
3% Vacancy factor 

Contractual 
Inflation 

Inflation has been included in line with agreed contractual indices, 
mostly RPI, RPIX or CPI 

Utilities Inflation has been included at around 140% based on forecasts 
from our utility contractor 

Fees and 
Charges 

Maximised where possible in line with the Fees and Charges 
Strategy. Proposed fees and charges are set out in appendix E 

Council 
Tax 

2.97% increase for 2023/24 

 
*this rate has recently been announced as higher, although the back funding will reduce, 
therefore seeing an overall reduction to rates of 1%.  
 
 Reserves 
 
3.1.24. It is important that the Council maintains a reasonable level of reserves to cushion 

against unanticipated budget pressures.  The Council holds two types of reserve:  
  

• Working balances, which are required as a contingency against unforeseen events, 
and to ensure that the Council has sufficient funds available to meet its cash flow 
requirements. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Section 151 Officer to 
report on the adequacy of financial reserves when setting the General Fund budget 
requirement for the year.  
  

• Earmarked reserves, which are funds approved by Members to finance specific 
items of future expenditure. The Council’s Financial Regulations dictate that 
Earmarked Reserves can be created only with Member approval, and that all 
subsequent transfers to and from those reserves also require Member approval.   

 
3.1.25. The Council’s MTFS recommends a minimum working balance of £3.9m. This budget 

proposal leaves a balance of £4.3m in working balances, above the requirements of the 
MTFS. 
 

3.1.26. The Council’s Section 151 Officer has reviewed the reserve position and advises that 
the current anticipated balances, together with the Council’s plans for addressing the 
on-going and increasing budget gap, are adequate to ensure continued financial 
sustainability and a protection against unforeseen events (Appendix N).  
 

3.1.27. Appendix A2 shows a summary of the earmarked reserves held along with the forecast 
use and balances for each reserve. The explanation for holding these reserves is shown 
in the following table: 

 
 

Page 13



 
Earmarked 
Reserve Purpose of Reserve 

Strategic 
Initiatives  

For use of one-off specific projects and fixed term growth directly delivering 
corporate objectives. 

Transformation  For use on transformation and invest to save projects. The name of this 
reserve has been changed from the Modernisation Reserve.  

Business 
Rates 
Retention  

To manage volatility in Business Rates income and changes to the Business 
Rates funding. 

Pensions  This reserve is necessary to help mitigate the impact of additional costs 
arising in the triennial review cycle 

Commitments  These reserves are set aside for committed work from previous years which 
have not yet been finalised   

Grants and 
Contributions 

These reserves set aside grants received for specific purposes which will 
fund future expenditure 

Covid-19 
Response 

To support the council with meeting the financial impacts of the covid-19 
pandemic 

Youth Services  To fund youth diversionary services in order to reduce anti-social behaviour 

Climate 
Change  To support the council’s climate change strategy and action plan. 

Housing 
Conditions 
Survey  

To smooth the impact of the cost associated with undertaking a Private 
Sector Housing Conditions Survey every five years 

Local Plan  To support with the costs associated with the adoption of a Local Plan 
Buildings 
Reserve  

To support the response to any urgent or health and safety work required to 
the council’s buildings 

Disability 
Access To support businesses and the council on disabled access in the borough.  

 
3.2. Housing Revenue Account Budgets 

 
3.2.1. The budget and 30-year forecasts have been prepared on the basis of the following high 

level principles, as detailed in the Council’s 30 Year HRA business plan: 
 

• The Council will continue to maintain existing stock to at least decent homes 
standard. 
 

• The Council will aim to maintain stock levels at around 9,000 dwellings. 
 

• The Council will continue with the Affordable Housing Programme, to fully make 
use of the retained right to buy receipts available to it. 
 

• The Council will continue to take a balanced approach to reducing its level of 
Housing debt, whilst ensuring some flexibility is maintained for any future 
legislative or policy changes. 

 
3.2.2. The budget proposal for 2023/24 is a small surplus on the HRA of £0.242m, with working 

balances forecast at £3.001m at the end of 2023/24. The closing position on the working 

Page 14



balances equates to 5% of rental turnover and is within the range of 5%-15% considered 
to be best practice.  
 

3.2.3. Key changes to the budget are set out in Appendix G. 
 

3.2.4. The Council’s current plans for the HRA, and forecast borrowing, are affordable in the 
medium to longer term which will be shown in the 30-year Business Plan. 

 
 Rent Setting 
   
3.2.5. On the 4th October 2017, the Government confirmed its intention to end the rent 

reduction policy after the fourth year, by stating that “increases to social housing rents 
will be limited to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus 1% for 5 years from 2020”. 

 
3.2.6. An increase of CPI plus 1% would have led to rent increases of up to 11%. In November, 

the Chancellor announced a rent cap of 7% on social rents to protect tenants from 
exceptionally high increases. The proposed 2023/24 budget includes rent increases of 
7%.  
 

3.2.7. The introduction of the rent reduction policy, saw not only a reduction in the income for 
the HRA, but also meant an end to rent convergence. This means that neighbouring 
tenants, with identical properties, could be paying different rent levels. The legislation 
did not allow the Council to make changes to current tenancies in order to continue with 
convergence.  

 
3.2.8. The Council may however, change rent levels when a property becomes vacant, and 

re-let these at the target rent level. In order for the Council to maximise the income from 
its assets, and to continue to work towards a fair approach for tenants, it is 
recommended that the Council continue with the policy to move to formula rent when 
vacant properties are re-let. 

 
 Universal Credit 
 
3.2.9. On 6 December 2017, Universal Credit was rolled out in the Borough for new single 

claimants, working age claimants with less than three children, and current claimants in 
these categories will be migrated where there is a change of circumstances. 
 

3.2.10. Based on feedback from other Local Authorities, there is evidence that the Council may 
see an increase in current rent arrears levels. It was expected that this initial increase 
will be followed by a plateau in arrears levels, creating a new baseline for the rent arrears 
performance. 
 

3.2.11. An exercise was undertaken before the start of 2019/20 to review the provision for bad 
debts budget in the HRA in light of these changes.  Monitoring during 2019/20, 2020/21, 
2021/22 and 2022/23 has not highlighted any need to further change these budgets. 

 
 30 Year HRA Business Plan 
 
3.2.12. Key assumptions used in the 2022/23 budget, and being incorporated into the business 

plan are presented in the following table: 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
Budget Assumptions 
  
Pay award 3.5% for 2023/24 
Pensions and NI Current rates included, no assumptions for increases 

or reductions 
Rents 7%  
CPI 6% year 1, reducing in line with forecasts 

 
RPI 7% year 1, reducing in line with forecasts 

 
Working Balance Minimum 5% of turnover 
Major Repairs Reserve Fully utilised each year to reduce borrowing 

requirement and avoid additional borrowing costs 
Right to Buy 40 each year at the start of the plan, reducing over the 

life of the business plan 
Affordable Housing 
Programme 

Continuation of the Council’s existing programme and 
one for one replacement of units disposed though right 
to buy. 40% application of receipts to fund capital 
expenditure. 

 
3.3. Capital Programme 
 
3.3.1. The Capital Programme has been structured to enable delivery of the Council's 

Business Plan and the HRA Business Plan over the medium to long term. The 
Programme includes all of the capital schemes within both the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue for 2023/24 to 2027/28, and is detailed in Appendix I. The financing 
of the programme is shown in Appendix J.  A forecast of the Council’s Capital Reserves 
and Grant Balances is included in Appendix K. 
 

3.3.2. The Capital Programme continues to deliver the council’s ambition to deliver 
regeneration of our town centres, improvement in our housing stocks as well as the 
affordable housing programme.   

 
3.3.3. The Council complies with the Prudential Code for controlling Local Government Capital 

Finance, and the Budget for 2023/24 has been prepared in the context of these plans 
and controls. The key objectives of the Code are to ensure that: 

 
• Capital Investment Plans are affordable, prudent, and sustainable; 
• All external borrowings and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and 

sustainable levels; 
• Treasury Management decisions are taken in accordance with good practice and 

in a manner that supports prudency, affordability and sustainability; and, 
• The Council is accountable for its decisions. 

 
3.4. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
3.4.1. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and Financial Governance Framework, 

detailed in Appendix L, sets out the Council’s strategy for maintaining financial 
sustainability and a commitment to provide the best possible value for money for the 
community.  It also provides a framework for the Council to plan and manage its 
resources over the current Comprehensive Spending Review period in order to meet 
the Council’s overall corporate objectives. 

Page 16



3.4.2. The Council is currently in a good overall financial position with general fund revenue 
reserves (non earmarked) estimated at £4.8m at the start of 2023/24 and a housing 
revenue account (HRA) balance of £2.7m.  The council has been able to meet the initial 
unsupported impacts of the pandemic from reserves and additional grant receipts, and 
this is a direct result of previously robust financial management and a prolonged period 
of achieving efficiencies to balance the budget as government funding has reduced.    
 

3.4.3. However, in line with other local authorities, the Council is facing further severe financial 
constraints as central government grants continue to reduce.  At the same time the 
demand on some of the Council’s services continue to grow and further responsibilities 
will be transferred from central government. 
 

3.4.4. In line with Government expectations, the Council aims to be more self-sufficient, with 
less reliance on Government Grants and more reliance on local income streams and 
taxation.  
 

3.4.5. Forecasts suggest the Council is required to find a further £2.2m of savings on the 
general fund by 2024/25 in order to live within its means and maintain a reasonable 
cushion in reserves. This is a significant challenge and whilst the focus remains on 
safeguarding services it may not be possible to find efficiencies of this magnitude and 
guarantee no impact upon frontline services. 
 

3.4.6. The MTFS has been written at a time of unprecedented uncertainty in local government 
funding, particularly with the wider economic uncertainties arising from the pandemic.  
In particular, the Council’s forecasts are dependent upon the outcome of the Spending 
Review, Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rates Retention system, and a full 
reset of all the mechanisms within the business rates system.  Forecasting the Council’s 
likely level of income over the next four years has required a large degree of judgement 
and estimation.   
 

3.4.7. The Government has also announced further proposed changes to the New Homes 
Bonus scheme and there is work continuing on the fundamental review of the Local 
Government funding regime.   

 
3.4.8. The one off grants provided in 2023/24 provide further uncertainty. 
 
3.4.9. There remain a number of uncertainties and risks to the Council’s finances in the 

medium term, the details of which are contained within this strategy.  The Council will 
continue to experience pressure on services arising from demographic and government 
policy changes and continued high expectations of service delivery.   

 
3.4.10. In addition, the 2024/25 settlement will include consideration of a new funding stream, 

subject to successful delivery of the Extended Producer Responsibility for packaging 
(pEPR) scheme. Authorities can expect to receive additional income from the scheme 
and the 2024/25 position of funding for lower tier authorities will be assessed considering 
the impact of additional pEPR income. 

 
3.4.11. The capital forecasts and strategies contained within the MTFS, give a high-level 

overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview of how 
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability 

 

Page 17



3.4.12. In accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 
Practice 2021 and DLUHC guidance on local authority investments, the Council is 
required to have a Treasury Management Strategy, a copy of the 2023/24 strategy is 
contained within the MTFS and Financial Governance Framework. 
 

3.4.13. Limits on longer term investments are proposed to be reduced, in line with the Council’s 
forecast of reducing cash balances due to an ambitious capital programme use of both 
internal and external borrowing.  
 

3.4.14. The Strategy takes into account all of the Council’s capital and revenue forecasts, and 
reserve balances as set out in this report. It seeks to protect the balances held by the 
Council whilst generating a return, minimise borrowing costs where possible, and 
determines the borrowing and lending strategies. 

 
3.5. Special Expenses 

 
3.5.1 In 1994/95, the Council, in agreement with Town and Parish Councils, introduced a 

scheme of Special Expenses, whereby some of the expenses of the Council, are 
charged specially to certain parts of the Borough. These areas of expenditure include 
open spaces, playing fields, community centres, allotments and public conveniences. 

 
3.5.2 The calculation takes the cost of providing these items of expenditure and apportions 

the costs to the specific areas where the expenditure is incurred.  
 
3.5.3 The recommendation is to continue with this scheme, and the methodology previously 

agreed for the calculation of the Special Expenses. 
 
3.5.4 The proposed amount included in the budget for special expenses is £623,717. Details 

of this expenditure, and the draft apportionment to the specific areas, which is currently 
out for consultation with town and parish councils, is included in Appendix M. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1. Financial implications are contained in the recommendations and explanations to this 

report. 
 
5. Link to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1. The Council’s budget proposals directly support all of the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 
6. Legal Implication(s) 

 
6.1. The Council is required by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to make estimates 

of gross revenue expenditure and anticipated income, leading to a calculation of a budget 
requirement and the setting of an overall budget and Council Tax.  The amount of the 
budget requirement must be sufficient to meet the Council’s legal and financial 
obligations, ensure the proper discharge of its statutory duties, and lead to a balanced 
budget.  The Council should be satisfied that the proposals put forward are a reasonably 
prudent use of resources in both the short and long term, and that the interests of both 
Council Tax payers and ratepayers on the one hand and the users of Council services 
on the other are both taken into account. 
 

Page 18



6.2. Sub-section (1) provides that authorities may “…make such reasonable charges…. as 
they may determine”. This section should be considered with regard to section 76 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. This act put a duty on local housing authorities 
to prevent a debit balance arising in their HRA and also imposed ring-fence restrictions 
on the use of the account. It is not possible for a local housing authority to subsidise 
rents from its general fund, or use HRA resources for non-specified activities. 
 

6.3. The MTFS sets out the framework for setting future budgets and levels of Council Tax. 
Members are reminded that Council must take into account the advice of the Executive 
Director – Finance and Transformation (Chief Finance Officer) on the robustness of 
future budget proposals and the adequacy of the proposals for reserves. The Council 
has a legal duty to set a lawfully balanced budget. 
 

6.4. The MTFS sets out how the Council will fulfil its Best Value Duty to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  In doing so the MTFS 
also acknowledges the Duty to Consult representatives of a wide range of local persons.  

  
6.5. The Treasury Management Strategy and prudential indictors have been produced in line 

with the Local Government Act 2003, and with regards to Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 which states that “every local authority shall make arrangements 
for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their 
officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.” 

 
6.6. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer to 

make a formal report to the Council on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy 
of reserves (Appendix N). 

 
7. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 
 
7.1. There are no implications for security and terrorism arising from this report.   
 
8. Procurement Implication(s) 
 
8.1. There are no direct procurement implications arising from this report. Any procurement 

implications associated with specific budget proposals will be considered as part of the 
implementation of those proposals.  

 
9. Climate Change Implication(s) 
 
9.1. The budget includes retention of the balance of the Climate Change earmarked reserve 

which will help the Council to continue to deliver strategic climate change actions.  
 

10.  Human Resources Implication(s) 
 
10.1. There are no direct Human Resources arising from this report. Any human resources 

implications associated with specific budget proposals will be considered as part of the 
implementation of those proposals.  

 
11. Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 
 
11.1. A press release and TeamTalk Budget special is being prepared and will be published 

alongside the budget report.   

Page 19



 
12. Risk Management Implications 
 
12.1. The budget is an important part of the Council’s risk management process. There are 

always considerable risks to the council’s short and medium-term budget strategies 
including inflation, changes in the national economy, expenditure exceeding budgets, 
operational pressures on existing budgets, reductions in grant and legislative changes 
that require new spend. The budget setting process includes the recognition of these 
risks in determining the 2023/24 budget and relevant risk provisions are set out in the 
body of the report. 
 

12.2. A working balance is maintained for both revenue accounts to cushion against known 
and unknown financial risks. Risk management in the financial context is set out in the 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy set out in Appendix L. 

 
13. Equality and Diversity 
 
13.1. Any equality and diversity implications associated with specific budget proposals will be 

considered as part of the implementation of those proposals, and equalities assessments 
undertaken as appropriate.  
 

 
Name of author Richard Baker  
Title Executive Director – Finance and Transformation 
Date 23 January 2023 

Page 20



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Budget Monitoring - General Fund Summary - FYE 2022 Appendix A1

Description

Original 

Budget 

2022/23

Original 

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Customer Service and Transformation 1,793 1,516 (276)
Finance 3,903 5,754 1,851 
ICT and Digital 1,448 1,825 378 
Legal and Governance 2,314 2,797 483 
Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 9,457 11,892 2,435 

Leisure, Community and Cultural Services 1,864 2,922 1,058 
Planning 925 789 (137)
Regeneration and Economic Development (2,225) (3,010) (785)
Executive Director (Place) 565 701 136 
Service Director (Property Maintenance and Climate Change) (743) (928) (186)
Service Director (Resident and Neighbourhood) 7,875 8,842 968 
Senior Leadership Team 1,642 505 (1,137)
Net Controllable Income and Expenditure 18,796 21,012 2,216 

Net Recharge to the Housing Revenue Account (5,446) (6,243) (797)
Net Cost of Services 13,350 14,769 1,419 

Income from Council Tax (11,641) (12,152) (511)
Plus/Less Council Tax collection fund deficit/(surplus) 213 342 129 
Business Rates Income (3,930) (3,950) (20)
Plus/Less Rates collection fund deficit/(surplus) (1,153) 2,237 3,390 
New Homes Grant (712) (288) 424 
Lower Tier Services/Other Government Grants 0 0 0 
Services Grant / Other Grants (332) (870) (538)
Less Interest & Investment Income (30) (200) (170)
Net Interest Income from Now Housing (100) 0 100 
Capital Financing Costs 949 1,354 405 
Borrowing Interest 635 780 145 
Parish Precepts 1,894 2,031 137 
Net Total before movements in reserves (859) 4,052 4,910 

Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves (9) (857) (848)
Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves - Collection Fund 940 (2,579) (3,519)
Contribution from / (to)  GF balances 72 615 543 

Key of variance column = (Decrease in expenditure/increase in income), Increase in expenditure/reduction in income

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



GF Earmarked Reserves summary Appendix A2

Reserve

Forecast 

Balance at 

1 April 2023

Budgeted 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance 31 

March 2024

Budgeted 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance 31 

March 2025

Budgeted 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance 31 

March 2026

Budgeted 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance 31 

March 2027

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Earmarked Reserves

Strategic Initiatives Reserve 1,316 (50) 1,266 0 1,266 0 1,266 0 1,266

Business Rates Retention Reserve 3,422 (2,579) 843 (843) 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions Reserve 1,201 (400) 801 (400) 401 (401) 0 0 0

Modernisation Reserve 1,086 (158) 928 (70) 858 0 858 0 858

Commitment Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grants and Contributions Reserve 2,193 (249) 1,944 (220) 1,724 0 1,724 0 1,724

Local Plan Reserve (Other reserves) 300 0 300 0 300 0 300 0 300

COVID-19 Pandemic Reserve (Other reserves) 24 0 24 0 24 0 24 0 24

Climate Change Reserve (Other reserves) 117 0 117 0 117 0 117 0 117

Youth Provision Reserve (Other reserves) 21 0 21 0 21 0 21 0 21

CE Accomodation reserve (Other reserves) 324 0 324 0 324 0 324 0 324

Disability Access Reserve 88 0 88 0 88 0 88 0 88
Other Reserves 51 0 51 0 51 0 51 0 51

Total Earmarked Reserves 10,143 (3,436) 6,707 (1,533) 5,174 (401) 4,773 0 4,773

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B1

Customer Service and Transformation

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 699 1,621 922 

Premises Related 136 339 203 

Transport Related 1 0 (1)

Supplies and Services 281 312 31 

Third Party Payments 1,043 306 (737)

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (367) (1,062) (695)

Controllable Costs 1,793 1,516 (276)

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 1,793 

  Efficiencies:

     Insourcing of customer services (120)

     Crematorium fees and charges review / full year (285)

     Rebaselining of cemeteries budget (10)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 77

     Contractual inflation 146 

     Inflationary income increases (24)

     Virements between service areas (60)

Original Budget 2023/24 1,516 

Page 25



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B2

Finance

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 2,106 2,985 879 

Premises Related 244 297 53 

Transport Related 26 15 (10)

Supplies and Services 340 409 69 

Third Party Payments 4,251 2,463 (1,788)

Transfer Payments 23,929 27,607 3,677 

Income (26,994) (28,023) (1,029)

Controllable Costs 3,903 5,754 1,851 

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 3,903 

  Growth:

     External audit increased costs following procurement 150

     Shared anti-fraud service* 140 

     Pensions Valuation (reserve funded) 400 

  Efficiencies:

     Internal audit review (7)

     Subscriptions review (2)

     Pensions revaluation (105)

     Revenues and benefits contract (220)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 412

     Contractual inflation 472

     Virements between service areas 611

Original Budget 2023/24 5,754 

* this growth is funded from a virement from exisiting contract costs, and a recharge to the 

HRA

Page 26



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B3

ICT and Digital

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 0 158 158 

Premises Related 0 0 0 

Transport Related 0 0 0 

Supplies and Services 593 658 65 

Third Party Payments 855 1,009 154 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income 0 0 0 

Controllable Costs 1,448 1,825 378 

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 1,448 

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover

     Contractual inflation 154

     Inflationary income increases 65

     Virements between service areas 158

Original Budget 2023/24 1,825 

Page 27



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B4

Legal and Governance

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,826 2,049 223 

Premises Related 3 2 (0)

Transport Related 21 9 (12)

Supplies and Services 703 747 44 

Third Party Payments (122) 119 241 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (117) (130) (13)

Controllable Costs 2,314 2,797 483 

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 2,314 

  Efficiencies:

     Supplies and services (4)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 223

     Contractual inflation 237

     Inflationary income increases (13)

     Virements between service areas 40

Original Budget 2023/24 2,797 

Page 28



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B5

Regeneration and Economic Development

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,384 1,160 (225)

Premises Related 1,207 1,352 145 

Transport Related 8 2 (6)

Supplies and Services 521 422 (98)

Third Party Payments 555 608 52 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (5,900) (6,554) (654)

Controllable Costs (2,225) (3,010) (785)

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 (2,225)

  Efficiencies:

     Rental income from HatTech (50)

     Commercial rents (165)

     Parking income review (139)

     Parking permit review (58)

     Service reviews (128)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover (97)

     Inflationary expenditure increases 197 

     Inflationary income increases (242)

     Virements between service areas (103)

Original Budget 2023/24 (3,010)

Page 29



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B6

Planning

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,698 1,679 (19)

Premises Related 2 2 (0)

Transport Related 7 2 (6)

Supplies and Services 235 235 (0)

Third Party Payments 65 53 (12)

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (1,082) (1,181) (99)

Controllable Costs 925 789 (137)

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 925 

  Efficiencies:

     Service reviews (117)

     Fees and charges review (10)

     Herts Building Control reimbursement (12)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 98 

     Inflationary expenditure increases 4 

     Inflationary income increases (77)

     Virements between service areas (22)

Original Budget 2023/24 789 

Page 30



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B7

Leisure, Community and Cultural

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 2,105 2,672 567 

Premises Related 954 1,723 769 

Transport Related 6 2 (4)

Supplies and Services 1,236 1,279 43 

Third Party Payments 336 345 9 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (2,772) (3,098) (326)

Controllable Costs 1,864 2,922 1,058 

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 1,864 

  Growth:

  Efficiencies:

     Homelessness funding (48)

     Hilltop business plan review (5)

     Service reviews (73)

     Campus West (40)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 228 

     Inflationary expenditure increases 857 

     Inflationary income increases (273)

     Virements between service areas 412 

Original Budget 2023/24 2,922 

Page 31



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B8

Resident and Neighbourhood

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 2,406 2,629 223 

Premises Related 219 296 77 

Transport Related 40 15 (26)

Supplies and Services 368 293 (75)

Third Party Payments 7,588 8,637 1,049 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (2,748) (3,028) (280)

Controllable Costs 7,875 8,842 968 

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 7,875 

  Efficiencies:

     Garden waste subscription fees (166)

     Service reviews (100)

     Allotment fees (29)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 208

     Contractual inflation 1025

     Inflationary income increases (85)

     Virements between service areas 115

Original Budget 2023/24 8,842 

Page 32



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B9

Property Maintenance and Climate Change

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 578 516 (62)

Premises Related 1,051 1,414 364 

Transport Related 4 1 (4)

Supplies and Services 77 65 (12)

Third Party Payments 0 0 0 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income (2,453) (2,925) (472)

Controllable Costs (743) (928) (186)

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 (743)

  Efficiencies:

     Garages fees and charges (200)

     Service reviews (120)

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 58 

     Contractual inflation 349 

     Inflationary income increases (272)

Original Budget 2023/24 (928)

Page 33



General Fund

Budget 2023/24 Appendix B10

Senior Leadership Team

Description

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24 Change

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,428 315 (1,113)

Premises Related 0 0 0 

Transport Related 6 1 (5)

Supplies and Services 209 190 (19)

Third Party Payments 0 0 0 

Transfer Payments 0 0 0 

Income 0 0 0 

Controllable Costs 1,642 505 (1,137)

Analysis of Controllable Costs £'000

Original Budget 2022/23 1,642 

  Inflation and Other Changes:

     Salaries inflation and turnover 14

     Virements between service areas -1151

Original Budget 2023/24 505 

Page 34



General Fund Savings Summary 2023/24 - 2025/26 Appendix C

Directorate Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

Finance and 

Transformation

Customer 

Services

Insourcing of customer services from long term outsourcing contract 

(contact centre and reception)

(120) (120) (120)

Finance and 

Transformation

Crematorium Review of business plan and proposed fees and charges for the new 

Crematorium opening in 2023/24

(25) (25) (25)

Finance and 

Transformation

Cemeteries Review of budget to rebaseline to current levels of demand. (10) (10) (10)

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Customer Service and Transformation Total (155) (155) (155)

Finance and 

Transformation

Internal Audit The inflation on the service was in line with the forecasted level in the 

MTFS. A review of management days across the partnership has been 

undertaken to reduce the impact of inflationary increases. 

(7) (7) (7)

Finance and 

Transformation

Fraud Joining the shared anti-fraud service. This will be an overall increase in 

costs to the council but will reduce costs on the general fund. Cost 

mitigations are anticipated to be achieved through the enhanced 

identification and prevention of fraud against the Council.

(15) (15) (15)

Finance and 

Transformation

General Review of subscription services used by the Council. (2) (2) (2)

Finance and 

Transformation

Revenues and 

Benefits

Following the procurement for a new Revenues and Benefits provider, a 

supplier has been selected who will transfrom the service, generating 

efficiences from the costs assumed in the MTFS. There will be upfront 

service transformation  costs which have been included in the capital 

programme. 

(220) (220) (220)

Finance and 

Transformation

Second Homes Review of the Second Homes premium, subject to government proposed 

legislation being adopted. 

0 (15) (15)

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Finance Total (244) (259) (259)

Finance and 

Transformation

General General savings against supplies and services budgets (4) (4) (4)

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Legal and Governance Total (4) (4) (4)

Finance and 

Transformation

Baseline reset Baseline reset exercise during 2022/23, previously reported in quarterly 

budget monitoring reports. 

(167) (167) (167)

P
age 35



General Fund Savings Summary 2023/24 - 2025/26 Appendix C

Directorate Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

Corporate Pensions 

Revaluation

Following the pensions triennial valuation, the rates for the council will 

reduce by 1%

(105) (105) (105)

Corporate Council Tax Increase council tax by 3% for 2023/24 and 2024/25, and increase by £5 in 

2025/26, compared to the 1.5% assumed in the MTFS.

(127) (143) (213)

Finance and 

Transformation

Service Reviews Service Reviews (57) (82) (82)

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Other Total (456) (497) (567)

Place HatTech Creation of additional office space to let commercially. A budget has been 

included in the capital programme to finance the works. The saving shown 

is net of the capital financing costs. 

(41) (41) (41)

Place Estates Increased income from commercial rents including new spaces (such as 

One Town Centre and Highview)

(165) (165) (165)

Place Parking Increased off street income and season tickets from review of fees and 

charges

(139) (139) (139)

Place Parking Increased permit income from review of fees and charges (58) (58) (58)

Place Service Review Service Reviews (128) (128) (128)

Executive Director (Place) - Regeneration and Economic Development Total (531) (531) (531)

Place Service Review Service Reviews (117) (117) (117)

Place Estates 

Management 

Scheme Fees

Review of fees and charges (5) (5) (5)

Place Hertfordshire 

Building Control

The council has a nominated Director on the board of Hertfordshire 

Building Control. The company will now reimburse the Council for time 

spent on Building Control Director activities. 

(12) (12) (12)

P
age 36



General Fund Savings Summary 2023/24 - 2025/26 Appendix C

Directorate Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

Place Planning pre-

application fees

Review of fees and charges (5) (5) (5)

Executive Director (Place) - Planning Total (139) (139) (139)

Place Community 

Grants

Replace small community grants with community lottery (first year funded 

by reserve)

(50) (50) (50)

Place Homelessness 

funding

Utilise additional homelessness funding towards cost of homelessness 

function

(48) (48) (48)

Place Hilltop Creation of a three year business plan is underway, and additonal income 

has been identified for year one through the review of fees and charges. 

(5) (5) (5)

Place Service Reviews Service Reviews (73) (73) (73)

Place Housing 

allocations

Increase salary recharge to HRA to more accurately reflect the support of 

Housing Needs

(16) (16) (16)

Place Community 

Partnerships

Service Review 0 0 0 

Place Campus West A review of budgets and fees and charges have been updertaken which 

have identified £40k of savings. A three stage plan is in development for 

the short and long term options around Campus West. The first stage due 

for implementation in 2023/24 will be the review of opening hours and other 

apects to mitigate the adverse variances being seen during 2022/23.

(40) (40) (40)

Executive Director (Place) - Leisure, Community and Cultural Services Total (232) (232) (232)

Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change

Garages Full review of fees and charges for garages. This includes the removal of 

lower rate, the introduction of premium rate, and above inflation increases 

following benchmarking against other Hertfordshire garage lettings. 

(200) (240) (245)

P
age 37



General Fund Savings Summary 2023/24 - 2025/26 Appendix C

Directorate Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change

Office 

consolidation

Consolidation of office space (Hyde Way, White Lion House and Campus 

West Tower) - increased commercial income and lower overheads 

associated with office space.

(100) (150) (150)

Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change

Service Review Service Reviews (120) (120) (120)

Service Director - Property Maintenance and Climate Change Total (420) (510) (515)

Resident and 

Neighbourhood

Garden Waste 

Subscription Fees
Review of fees for the collection of garden waste.  £50 for the first bin and 

£80 for the second bin.

(216) (216) (216)

Resident and 

Neighbourhood

Allotment Fees
Review of allotment fees

(29) (29) (29)

Resident and 

Neighbourhood

Service Reviews Service Reviews (100) (100) (100)

Service Director - Resident and Neighbourhood Total (345) (345) (345)

Grand Total (2,526) (2,672) (2,747)

P
age 38



General Fund Growth Summary 2023/24 - 2025/26 Appendix D

Directorate General 

Fund / 

HRA

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26 

£'000

0 0 0 

Finance and 

Transformation

GF External Audit Anticipated increased costs 150% following the national 

procurement exercise conducted by the Public Sector 

Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of 

external auditors to Local Government bodies for the 

coming five year period. 

150 150 150 

150 150 150

Corporate GF Pay Award Pay award provision for removal of spinal point 1 as part 

of national pay settlement. 

9 9 9 

Corporate GF Financing Review of investment income and borrowing 

assumptions, inculding cashflow management 

assumptions, forecasts on interest rates and income 

from Now Housing Ltd. 

168 299 250 

177 308 259

Grand Total 327 458 409 

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Finance Total

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) - Other Total

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Finance and Transformation Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

Legal

CS156 A Certificate of 

Compliance 85.75 - 85.75 95.00 - 95.00 10.8%

DS1 or DS2 Land Registry 

Forms 85.75 - 85.75 95.00 - 95.00 10.8%

Deed Postponement of 

Discount 85.75 - 85.75 95.00 - 95.00 10.8%

Legal Photocopying Charges 48.25 - 48.25 54.00 - 54.00 11.9%

Reports on Title 139.25 27.85 167.10 154.17 30.83 185.00 10.7%

Boundary enquires 85.75 - 85.75 95.00 - 95.00 10.8%
Notice of Transfer/Charge refer 

to lease ( NO VAT ) :  

Reasonable unless specified in 

lease. 41.25 - 41.25 46.00 - 46.00 11.5%

Estate Management Booklet 15.50 - 15.50 17.00 - 17.00 9.7%

Search Fees:

CON29 61.00 12.20 73.20 67.77 13.55 81.33 11.1%

CON29O questions 4-21 8.00 1.60 9.60 8.89 1.78 10.67 11.1%

CON29R question 22 18.00 3.60 21.60 20.00 4.00 24.00 11.1%

CON29R (extra parcels of 

land) 8.00 1.60 9.60 8.89 1.78 10.67 11.1%

Electoral Services

Sale of electoral  registers ( 

data) 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

plus per 1000 entries (data) 1.50 - 1.50 1.50 - 1.50 0.0%

Sale of electoral registers 

(printed) 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 0.0%

plus per 1000 entries (printed) 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%

Democratic Services

Photocopying of information 

per A4 sheet 0.13 0.03 0.15 0.14 0.03 0.17 11.1%

Revenues and Benefits

Court Costs for council tax & 

business rates 104.50 - 104.50 104.50 - 104.50 0.0%

Cemeteries

Burial Fees

Private Grave

Coffin <=30" Wide and 78" 

Long^ 795.00 - 795.00 885.00 - 885.00 11.3%

2022-23 2023-24 %

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Page 41



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Finance and Transformation Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

2022-23 2023-24 %

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Large Coffin/ Casket >30" 

Wide and 78" Long^^ 1,165.00 - 1,165.00 1,295.00 - 1,295.00 11.2%

Additional Timber Shoring New POA POA

Public Grave 580.00 - 580.00 645.00 - 645.00 11.2%

Children's Grave 580.00 - 580.00 580.00 - 580.00 0.0%

Shallow Grave^^ 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,165.00 - 1,165.00 11.0%

Immurement of Mausoleum 

Chamber^^ 425.00 - 425.00 475.00 - 475.00 11.8%

Grant of Exclusive Right 

Fees

Lawn Graves

Coffin <=30" Wide and 78" 

Long^^ 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,165.00 - 1,165.00 11.0%

Large Coffin/ Casket >30" 

Wide and 78" Long^^ 1,575.00 - 1,575.00 1,750.00 - 1,750.00 11.1%

Premium Graves (Chosen by 

family - Additional Fee)^^ 265.00 - 265.00 295.00 - 295.00 11.3%

Extension of Grant of 

Exclusive Right (Lawn 

Cemetery 10 Year Period)^^ 580.00 - 580.00 645.00 - 645.00 11.2%

Reservation of Mausoleum 

Crypt (top and bottom vault 

Lawn Cemetery) (10 years) N/A N/A N/A 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 New

Mausoleum Crypt (top and 

bottom vault Lawn Cemetery) 7,450.00 - 7,450.00 8,300.00 - 8,300.00 11.4%
Premium Mausoleum Crypt 

(middle vault Lawn Cemetery) 8,500.00 - 8,500.00 9,450.00 - 9,450.00 11.2%

Transfer Ownership of Grant of 

Exclusive Right^^ 55.00 0.00 55.00 60.00 - 60.00 9.1%

Official Copy of Grant of 

Exclusive Right/Search Fee^^ 55.00 0.00 55.00 60.00 - 60.00 9.1%

Cremated Remains and Burial Fees

Interment of Cremated 

Remains^^ 265.00 0.00 265.00 295.00 - 295.00 11.3%

Strewing of Cremated 

Remains^^ 160.00 0.00 160.00 180.00 - 180.00 12.5%

Immurement of cremated 

remains^^ 105.00 0.00 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Second set of cremated 

remains - same time^^ 105.00 0.00 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Cremated Remains within 

Coffin^^ 105.00 0.00 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Cremated Remains License Fees

Includes marble tablet with initial inscription. Bespoke artwork, photographs and vases will incur an additional 

charge - 75 years

Page 42



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Finance and Transformation Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

2022-23 2023-24 %

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Cremated Remains Memorial 

Plot^^ 525.00 0.00 525.00 600.00 - 600.00 14.3%

Commemorative Garden 

Tablet^^ 425.00 0.00 425.00 500.00 - 500.00 17.6%

Half Size Lawn Grave^^ 525.00 0.00 525.00 590.00 - 590.00 12.4%

Sanctum 2000 Vault (Hyde 

Cemetery)^^ 790.00 0.00 790.00 880.00 - 880.00 11.4%

Memorial Garden Kerb (Hyde 

Cemetery)^^ 315.00 0.00 315.00 350.00 - 350.00 11.1%

Additional 10 Year Licence 

Period^^ 210.00 0.00 210.00 235.00 - 235.00 11.9%

Memorial Permit Fees

Headstones - new and 

replacement memorials^^ 210.00 - 210.00 235.00 - 235.00 11.9%

Tablet^^ 105.00 - 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Vase^^ 105.00 - 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Engrave an additional 

Subscription^^ 105.00 - 105.00 120.00 - 120.00 14.3%

Kerb Setting (Hatfield Hyde)^^ 265.00 - 265.00 300.00 - 300.00 13.2%

Fine for any convention to 

memorial regulation 525.00 - 525.00 590.00 - 590.00 12.4%

Permit to clean Memorial New 30.00 - 30.00

Permit to Repair Memorial New 115.00 - 115.00

Cremations

Adult cremation (18 years and 

older) N/A N/A N/A 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 New

Child cremation (17 years and 

younger) N/A N/A N/A 580.00 - 580.00 New

Direct Cremation ( unattended 

with no service permitted)

N/A N/A N/A 500.00 - 500.00 New

Surcharges

^^Non Residential fees - all of the above fees are trebled for a person who at the time of death resides outside 

the borough of Welwyn Hatfield. Any fees relating to the grave afterwards will also be trebled. The only 

exceptions to the trebling of fees are as follows:

- If a resident is required to move out of the area for medical care or to any nursing home within the last 2 years 

due to ill-health, a standard fee would apply

Please note cremations to only take place between 9.30am - 4.30pm. No cremations to take place on Bank 

Holidays.

Both Adult & Child cremation includes 60 minute slot, with 40 minute chapel service.

Page 43



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Finance and Transformation Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

2022-23 2023-24 %

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Saturday cremation (additional 

cost to above) N/A N/A N/A 250.00 - 250.00 New

Sunday cremation (additional 

cost to above) N/A N/A N/A 500.00 - 500.00 New

Additional time/hire of chapel 

(60 minutes, with 40 minute 

chapel service included) N/A N/A N/A 300.00 - 300.00 New

Miscellaneous Fees

Memorial Plaque N/A N/A N/A POA - POA POA

Inclusion of small 

photo/bespoke artwork N/A N/A N/A POA - POA POA

Inclusion of large 

photo/bespoke artwork N/A N/A N/A POA - POA POA

New plaque for Memorial 

Garden Kerb (Hyde Only) N/A N/A N/A POA - POA POA

New tablet for Commemorative 

Garden Plot (Lawn Only) N/A N/A N/A POA N/A N/A N/A

Plaque on Granite Memorial 

Bench N/A N/A N/A POA N/A N/A N/A

Second Plaque on Existing 

Granite Bench N/A N/A N/A POA N/A N/A N/A

Hourly rate for exhumations N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Late fee - per half hour N/A N/A N/A 175.00 - 175.00 New

^^ Subject to availability.

Media Services

Live webcast

N/A N/A N/A 40.00 - 40.00 New

Live, on demand (for 28 days) 

and downloadable webcast

N/A N/A N/A 60.00 - 60.00 New

Keepsake copy of webcast

N/A N/A N/A 65.00 - 65.00 New

Additional copy of webcast

N/A N/A N/A 30.00 - 30.00 New

Visual Tribute Services

Halo Photo (Single photo 

shown throughout service or at 

specific time) N/A N/A N/A 15.00 - 15.00 New

Additional single photo

N/A N/A N/A 15.00 - 15.00 New

Slideshow (up to 25 photos 

with simple fades) N/A N/A N/A 35.00 - 35.00 New

Pro Tribute (up  to 25 photos 

professionally edited, including 

video footage) N/A N/A N/A 90.00 - 90.00 New

Page 44



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Finance and Transformation Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

2022-23 2023-24 %

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Family-made (family -made 

video that is checked and 

prepared) N/A N/A N/A 25.00 - 25.00 New

Keepsake copy of Visual 

Tribute N/A N/A N/A 35.00 - 35.00 New

Downloadable Pro Tribute

N/A N/A N/A 15.00 - 15.00 New

Tribute Additions

Additional 25 photos on Slide 

Show or Pro Tribute N/A N/A N/A 30.00 - 30.00 New

Additional personalisation

N/A N/A N/A 30.00 - 30.00 New

Page 45



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

Planning

Residential properties 

enlargement, 

improvement/alteration of 

dwellings for domestic 

purposes - 1 dwelling 206.00 - 206.00 206.00       - 206.00       0.0%
Residential properties 

enlargement, 

improvement/alteration of 

dwellings for domestic 

purposes - 2 or more dwellings 407.00 - 407.00 407.00       - 407.00       0.0%
Operations with residential 

curtilage for domestic purposes 

(including buildings, gates & 

fences etc.) 206.00 - 206.00 206.00       - 206.00       0.0%
Car park, road & access to 

serve single undertaking where 

associated with existing use 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

New dwellings outline permission :-

Site less than 2.5ha - price per 

0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00  - 11,432.00  0.0%

plus price per 0.1ha above 

2.5ha (maximum £125,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Up to 50 new dwellings - price 

per dwelling 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

51 or more new dwellings - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00  - 22,859.00  0.0%

plus fee per additional dwelling 

above 50 (maximum £250,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Buildings outline permission, dwellings, agricultural buildings or plant & glass houses etc :-

Site less than 2.5ha - price per 

0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00  - 11,432.00  0.0%
plus fee per additional 0.1ha 

above 2.5ha (maximum 

£125,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Commercial Planning fees - other cases (of gross floor space created):-

No floor space created 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

If less than 40sqm 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

If between 40sqm - 75sqm 

gross floor space 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

If between 75sqm - 3750sqm, 

price per each 75sqm 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

If greater than 3750sqm gross 

floor space 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00  - 22,859.00  0.0%
plus additional fee per each 

75sqm over 3750sqm 

(maximum £50,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Page 46



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Prior approval applications 

comprising of a material 

change of use of any buildings 

or other land 96.00 - 96.00 96.00         - 96.00         0.0%
Prior approval applications 

comprising of associated 

operational development 206.00 - 206.00 206.00       - 206.00       0.0%

Commercial outline planning fees - Agricultural buildings on agricultural land (other than glasshouses)

Site less than 2.5ha - price per 

0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00  - 11,432.00  0.0%

plus fee per additional 0.1ha 

(maximum £25,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Commercial planning fees - Other Agricultural Cases

If less than 465sqm gross floor 

space created 96.00 - 96.00 96.00         - 96.00         0.0%

If between 465sqm - 540sqm 

gross floor space created 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

If between 540sqm - 4215sqm 

gross floor space created 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

plus fee per additional 75sqm 

above 540sqm 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

If over 4215sqm floor space 

created 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00  - 22,859.00  0.0%
plus fee per additional 75sqm 

above 4215sqm (maximum 

£250,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Commercial planning fees - Glasshouses & poly tunnels agricultural land :-

Up to 465sqm 96.00 - 96.00 96.00         - 96.00         0.0%

Exceeding 465sqm 2,580.00 - 2,580.00 2,580.00    - 2,580.00    0.0%

Erection, alteration or 

replacement of plant & 

machinery where site area 

does not exceed 5ha - fee per 

0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

where site area exceeds 5ha - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00  - 22,859.00  0.0%

plus fee per additional 0.1 ha 

(maximum £250,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Commercial planning fees - Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil and gas :-

Where site area does not 

exceed 7.5ha - fee for each 0.1 

ha 508.00 - 508.00 508.00       - 508.00       0.0%

Where site area exceeds 7.5ha 38,070.00 - 38,070.00 38,070.00  - 38,070.00  0.0%
plus additional fee for each 

0.1ha above 7.5ha (maximum 

£250,000 ) 151.00 - 151.00 151.00       - 151.00       0.0%

Commercial planning fees - operations not within the above categories :-

Page 47



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Where site area does not 

exceed 15ha - fee per 0.1ha 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

Where site area exceeds 15ha - 29,112.00 - 29,112.00 29,112.00  - 29,112.00  0.0%
plus additional fee per 0.1ha 

above 15ha (maximum 

£250,000 ) 115.00 - 115.00 115.00       - 115.00       0.0%

Change of use of a building to one or more dwellings :-

Where change is from a single 

dwelling to 50 or fewer 

dwellings - fee per dwelling 385.00 - 385.00 385.00       - 385.00       0.0%

51 or more dwellings - 19,049.00 - 19,049.00 19,049.00  - 19,049.00  0.0%

plus additional fee per dwelling 

over 50 115.00 - 115.00 115.00       - 115.00       0.0%

Other cases :-

To 50 or fewer dwellings - fee 

per dwelling 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

51 or more dwellings - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00  - 22,859.00  0.0%

plus additional fee per dwelling 

over 50 (maximum £250,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Use of disposal of refuse or waste materials and open mineral storage

Where site area does not 

exceed 15ha - fee for each 0.1 

ha 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

Where site area exceeds 15ha - 34,934.00 - 34,934.00 34,934.00  - 34,934.00  0.0%
plus additional fee per 0.1ha 

above 15ha (maximum 

£78,000) 138.00 - 138.00 138.00       - 138.00       0.0%

Other operations ( not coming 

within any of the above 

categories) any site area each 

0.1 hectare (or part there of) up 

to a maximum of £1,690 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

Material change of use in land 

or buildings other than above 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

Advertisements :-

A1 - Business premises or 

other land within business 

curtilage relating to nature of 

business goods sold, services 

provided or name of persons 

undertaking business. 132.00 - 132.00 132.00       - 132.00       0.0%
A2 - Sign relating to business 

in the same locality as the site 

but not visible from that site. 132.00 - 132.00 132.00       - 132.00       0.0%

A3 - All other advertisements 462.00 - 462.00 462.00       - 462.00       0.0%

Variation of a Condition 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

Page 48



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Discharge of a Condition (for 

each request)

Householder 34.00 - 34.00 34.00         - 34.00         0.0%

Other 116.00 - 116.00 116.00       - 116.00       0.0%

Non-material changes to Planning Permission

Householder 34.00 - 34.00 34.00         - 34.00         0.0%

Other 234.00 - 234.00 234.00       - 234.00       0.0%

Retrospective Estate 

Management Consent 242.00 - 242.00 242.00       - 242.00       0.0%

Confirmation of compliance 

with clause(s) 257.14 51.43 308.57 285.83       57.17 343.00       11.2%

Discharge or modification of 

obligation to householder - - - - - -
Discharge or modification of 

obligation (all except 

householder) 482.32 96.46 578.78 535.83       107.17 643.00       11.1%

New householder related with 

associated planning application 172.00 34.40 206.40 N/A N/A N/A N/A

New for housing developments 

between 10 - 24 houses 618.46 123.69 742.15 N/A N/A N/A N/A

New for housing developments 

between 25 - 100 houses 699.46 139.89 839.35 N/A N/A N/A N/A

New for housing developments 

between  101 - 300 houses 957.56 191.51 1,149.07 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Pre Application Advice

Detailed Written Advice

Household 103.00 20.60 123.60 158.33       31.67 190.00       53.7%

Listed Building 206.00 41.20 247.20 229.17       45.83 275.00       11.2%

1-3 dwellings 412.00 82.40 494.40 458.33       91.67 550.00       11.2%

4-9 dwellings up to 999 sqm 

less than 0.5 hectares change 

of Use to 499 sqm 1,030.00 206.00 1,236.00 1,500.00    300.00 1,800.00    45.6%

10-24 dwellings Up to 1,999 

sqm 0.5 - 1 hectares Change 

of Use 500+ sqm 3,090.00 618.00 3,708.00 3,433.33    686.67 4,120.00    11.1%

25-49 dwellings up to 4,999 

sqm more than 1 hectare 5,150.00 1,030.00 6,180.00 5,720.83    1,144.17 6,865.00    11.1%

50-99 dwellings up to 10,000 

sqm 6,180.00 1,236.00 7,416.00 6,866.67    1,373.33 8,240.00    11.1%

100+ dwellings more than 

10,000 sqm/major 

development for listed building

S106/legal agreements / obligations (excludes any legal costs incurred by the Council which are paid by the 

Monitoring and Administration of s106 planning obligations  - 5% of the total value of the contributions  up to a 

maximum of £5,000.

All legal costs for Section 106 Agreements and Unilateral Undertakings will be paid for by the Applicant. The 

Applicant will be provided with an hourly rate and an estimate of the total legal costs when Legal is first instructed. 

The Applicant is responsible for paying any abortive legal costs even if the matter is not proceeded with or if 

planning permission is ultimately refused.

Bespoke fees to be agreed with officers

Page 49



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Meeting to discuss the proposal

Householder - max 1 hour 103.00 20.60 123.60 114.17       22.83 137.00       10.8%

Listed Building - to include 

Heritage Officer for max 1 hour 206.00 41.20 247.20 229.17       45.83 275.00       11.2%

1-3 dwellings - for max 1 hour 154.50 30.90 185.40 170.83       34.17 205.00       10.6%
4-9 dwellings up to 999 sqm 

less than 0.5 hectares change 

of Use to 499 sqm - for max 2 

hours 309.00 61.80 370.80 341.67       68.33 410.00       10.6%
10-24 dwellings Up to 1,999 

sqm 0.5 - 1 hectares Change 

of Use 500+ sqm - for max 2 

hours 515.00 103.00 618.00 570.83       114.17 685.00       10.8%
25-49 dwellings up to 4,999 

sqm more than 1 hectare for - 

max 2 hours 1,030.00 206.00 1,236.00 1,145.83    229.17 1,375.00    11.2%

50-99 dwellings up to 10,000 

sqm - for max 2 hours 1,545.00 309.00 1,854.00 1,716.67    343.33 2,060.00    11.1%

100+ dwellings more than 

10,000 sqm/major 

development for listed building

Officer Time

Principal Development 

Management Officer^ 4,486.94 897.39 5,384.33    4,983.33    996.67 5,980.00    11.1%

Senior Development 

Management Officer ^ 13,460.81 2,692.16 16,152.98  14,954.17  2,990.83 17,945.00  11.1%

Assessments

Viability assessment 17,947.75 3,589.55 21,537.30  19,941.67  3,988.33 23,930.00  11.1%

Legal – re obligations/ advice 4,486.94 897.39 5,384.33    4,983.33    996.67 5,980.00    11.1%

Marketing assessment 8,973.87 1,794.77 10,768.65  9,970.83    1,994.17 11,965.00  11.1%

Daylight/Sunlight assessment 6,730.41 1,346.08 8,076.49    7,479.17    1,495.83 8,975.00    11.1%

Economic/Employment 

Statement 8,973.87 1,794.77 10,768.65  9,970.83    1,994.17 11,965.00  11.1%

Consultees

Environmental Health –

-      Contaminated Land 897.39 179.48 1,076.87    995.83       199.17 1,195.00    11.0%

-      Air Quality 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

The following would be in addition to the cost for drawing up and agreeing the Planning Performance Agreements.   

The list is indicative and some developments may require an assessment which is not listed below.  This will not 

prevent the local planning authority from seeking to recover its costs in these areas.

The Local Planning Authority will, for each development, keep a record of the costs and/or hours worked for each 

issue and will either refund to the developer any amount overpaid, or will require further funds should the sum paid 

not cover the costs.

The following charges are given for a development of 100 houses and is indicative of the level and type of 

charges that could be incurred.

^These charges are on the basis of a Senior Planning Officer leading the discussions for WHBC and upon four 

meetings.  Different officers / number of meetings might result in a different charge.  The appropriate officer to deal 

with a scheme will be determined by the Development Management team.

Bespoke fees to be agreed with officers

Page 50



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

-      Noise 358.96 71.79 430.75       400.00       80.00 480.00       11.4%

-      Vibration 358.96 71.79 430.75       400.00       80.00 480.00       11.4%

-      Odour 673.04 134.61 807.65       750.00       150.00 900.00       11.4%

-      Lighting 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

-      Health Impact 

Assessments 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

Landscaping (arboricultural 

implications) 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

Conservation – Heritage 673.04 134.61 807.65       750.00       150.00 900.00       11.4%

Conservation – Biodiversity 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

Archaeology 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

Client Services 224.35 44.87 269.22       250.00       50.00 300.00       11.4%

Policy 897.39 179.48 1,076.87    995.83       199.17 1,195.00    11.0%

Housing Department 

(Affordable Housing) 897.39 179.48 1,076.87    995.83       199.17 1,195.00    11.0%

Amenity, Playspace, Open 

Space 897.39 179.48 1,076.87    995.83       199.17 1,195.00    11.0%

Structural Assessment of 

Building 448.69 89.74 538.43       500.00       100.00 600.00       11.4%

Replacement – Genuinely Like 

for Like The replacement of an 

existing feature that will not 

alter its location, scale, 

appearance, design, materials 

and colour Free N/A Free Free N/A Free 0.0%

Environmental Projects The 

addition of 

environmental/alternative 

energy initiatives to the host 

property or land, such as 

rainwater harvesting, air source 

heat pumps, electric charging 

points, wall insulation, wind 

turbine, photovoltaic cells, solar 

hot water panels. Free N/A Free Free N/A Free 0.0%

Tree or Hedgerow Works : 

The removal or works to an 

existing tree 4 metres (15 feet) 

tall or greater. Application for 

the removal of a hedge. Free N/A Free Free N/A Free 0.0%

Small Projects:  A proposed 

feature not currently present, or 

existing where the alteration is 

not replacing like for like on the 

property or land – small scale 

and impact. Examples may 

include: chimney, flue, 

guttering,  hardstanding, 

sheds/fencing, aerials, 

soffits/bargeboards, lighting,  

external boilers. 50.00       - 50.00         75.00         - 75.00         50.0%

Estates Management Scheme

Page 51



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Medium Projects:  A 

proposed feature not currently 

present, or existing where the 

alteration is not replacing like 

for like on the property or land 

– large scale and impact. 

Examples may include: 

external door/windows, loft 

conversion, replacement of 

roof, porch, balcony, garage, 

basement, swimming 

pool/garden. 100.00     - 100.00       140.00       - 140.00       40.0%

Major Projects :  Extension to 

a property including front, rear 

and side extensions

£30 per 

sqm To 

max of 

£500 (17 

sqm) N/A

£30 per sqm 

To max of 

£500 (17 

sqm)

 £35 per 

sqm to max 

of £500 N/A

 £35 per 

sqm to max 

of £500 16.7%

Planning Policy

Planning Policy Documents

Local Plan Consultation 

Document 2015 15.75 - 15.75 17.50         - 17.50         11.1%

postage and packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Local Plan Consultation 

Document Statement 30.47 - 30.47 33.85         - 33.85         11.1%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Sustainability Appraisal Report 

and Appendices 47.28 - 47.28 52.50         - 52.50         11.0%

postage & packing 4.20 0.84 5.04           4.67           0.93 5.60           11.1%

Draft Infrastructure Delivery 

Plan 2015 15.76 - 15.76 17.50         - 17.50         11.0%

postage & packing 1.30 0.26 1.56           1.45           0.29 1.74           11.1%

District Plan Written Statement 

& Proposal Maps 57.78 - 57.78 64.20         - 64.20         11.1%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Written Statement only 36.77 - 36.77 40.85         - 40.85         11.1%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Proposal Maps only 21.01 - 21.01 23.35         - 23.35         11.1%

postage & packing 1.30 0.26 1.56           1.45           0.29 1.74           11.1%

Parking Standards adopted 

January 2004 21.01 - 21.01 23.35         - 23.35         11.1%

postage & packing 1.09 0.22 1.31           1.21           0.24 1.46           11.1%
Draft Local Plan Proposed 

Submission document August 

2016 15.76 - 15.76 17.50         - 17.50         11.0%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%
Draft Local Plan Proposed 

Submission Policies Maps 

August 2016 31.52 - 31.52 35.00         - 35.00         11.0%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Summary and Guide Free Free Free Free Free Free

postage & packing 1.26 0.25 1.51           1.40           0.28 1.68           11.1%

Multiple small to medium projects submitted at the same time by one applicant will be capped at £100 per grouped 

Page 52



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Sustainability Appraisal Non 

Technical Summary 2016 17.86 - 17.86 19.85         - 19.85         11.1%

postage & packing 1.47 0.29 1.77           1.63           0.33 1.96           11.1%

Sustainability Appraisal Report 

2016 36.77 - 36.77 40.85         - 40.85         11.1%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Sustainability Appraisal 

Appendices 1-5 2016 33.62 - 33.62 37.35         - 37.35         11.1%

postage & packing 3.15 0.63 3.78           3.50           0.70 4.20           11.1%

Sustainability Appraisal Annex 

2016 42.02 - 42.02 46.70         - 46.70         11.1%

postage & packing 14.71 2.94 17.65         16.33         3.27 19.60         11.0%

Habitats Regulatory 

Assessment 2016 17.86 - 17.86 19.85         - 19.85         11.1%

postage & packing 1.47 0.29 1.77           1.63           0.33 1.96           11.1%

Green Corridor Strategic 

Framework Plan 2016 9.46 - 9.46 10.50         - 10.50         11.1%

postage & packing 1.69 0.34 2.03           1.88           0.38 2.25           10.9%

British Aerospace 

Supplementary Planning 

Guidance 10.51 - 10.51 11.70         - 11.70         11.4%

postage & packing 1.31 0.26 1.58           1.46           0.29 1.75           11.1%
Broadwater Road 

Supplementary Planning 

Document 15.76 - 15.76 17.50         - 17.50         11.0%

postage & packing 1.05 0.21 1.26           1.17           0.23 1.40           11.1%

Digswell Character Appraisal 

2004 26.27 - 26.27 29.20         - 29.20         11.2%

postage & packing 1.05 0.21 1.26           1.17           0.23 1.40           11.1%

Welwyn Garden City 

Conservation Area Appraisal 15.76 - 15.76 17.50         - 17.50         11.0%

postage & packing 1.05 0.21 1.26           1.17           0.23 1.40           11.1%

High View Supplementary 

Planning Document 15.76 - 15.76 17.50         - 17.50         11.0%

postage & packing 1.05 0.21 1.26           1.17           0.23 1.40           11.1%

Welwyn Hatfield Green Belt 

Study Stage 3 August 2018 78.80 - 78.80 87.55         - 87.55         11.1%

postage & packing 14.71 2.94 17.65         16.33         3.27 19.60         11.0%

Supplementary Design 

Guidance 21.01 - 21.01 23.35         - 23.35         11.1%

postage & packing 1.09 0.22 1.31           1.21           0.24 1.46           11.1%

Consultation on sites promoted 

through the Call for Sites 2019 14.71 - 14.71 16.35         - 16.35         11.2%

postage & packing 2.10 0.42 2.52 2.33           0.47 2.80           11.1%

Estates

Freehold Reversions - 999 year 

lease 475.00 95.00 570.00 529.17 105.83 635.00 11.4%

Freehold Reversions - 999 year 

lease - valuation 120.83 24.17 145.00 135.00 27.00 162.00 11.7%

Freehold Reversions - 99 year 

lease 475.00 95.00 570.00 529.17 105.83 635.00 11.4%

Freehold Reversions - 99 year 

lease - valuation 120.83 24.17 145.00 135.00 27.00 162.00 11.7%

Page 53



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Residential Long Lease 

Extensions - Houses 475.00 95.00 570.00 529.17 105.83 635.00 11.4%

Residential Long Lease 

Extension Valuations - Houses 120.83 24.17 145.00 135.00 27.00 162.00 11.7%

Residential Long Lease 

Extensions - Flats 945.00 189.00 1,134.00 1,050.00 210.00 1,260.00 11.1%

Residential Long Lease 

Extension Valuations - Flats 175.00 35.00 210.00 195.00 39.00 234.00 11.4%

Document copying - If from 

paper copy 55.00 11.00 66.00 61.67 12.33 74.00 12.1%

Assignments or Change of use 

or deed of Variation 929.17 185.83 1,115.00 1,050.00 210.00 1,260.00 13.0%

Grant of licences / land sales - 

HRA and GF 929.17 185.83 1,115.00 1,050.00 210.00 1,260.00 13.0%
Minor Asset Disposal 

Valuations (eg.  Land Sale 

Requests & Hsg Garage 

Valuations) 200.00 40.00 240.00 225.00 45.00 270.00 12.5%

Development and Additional 

dwelling valuation 416.67 83.33 500.00 N/A
Valuation Fee - Covenant 

Consent - Driveway or creation 

of off road parking N/A N/A N/A 250.00 50.00 300.00 N/A

Valuation Fee - Covenant 

Consent - Major Extension N/A N/A N/A 750.00 150.00 900.00 N/A

Valuation Fee - Covenant 

Consent - 1 extra dwelling N/A N/A N/A 1,250.00 250.00 1,500.00 N/A

Valuation Fee - Covenant 

Consent 2-3 extra dwellings N/A N/A N/A 2,000.00 400.00 2,400.00 N/A
Valuation Fee - Covenant 

Consent 4+ additional 

dwellings N/A N/A N/A POA POA POA N/AFormer Landowners Consent 

by exchange of e-mails - minor 

works only where no valuation 

needed 68.33 13.67 82.00 79.17 15.83 95.00 15.9%

Restrictive Covenant Releases - 

RTB's 5,610.00 1,122.00 6,732.00 N/A

Restrictive Covenant Releases - 

Non - RTB 929.17 185.83 1,115.00 N/A

Legal Fees for deed 

documenting Covenant 

Consent for major works N/A N/A N/A 1,025.00 205.00 1,230.00 N/A

Legal fees for deed 

documenting Covenant 

Consent release of single 

dwelling covenant and consent 

for works
N/A N/A N/A 1,650.00 330.00 1,980.00 N/A

Responses to LPE1's 

(managed blocks only)

50.00 10.00 60.00 75.00 15.00 90.00 50.0%
Local Searches  - with 

Inspection (Title deeds 

submitted ) 75.00 15.00 90.00 83.33 16.67 100.00 11.1%

Replaced by Valuation Fee lines below

Replaced by Legal Fees lines below.

Page 54



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Local Searches  - with 

Inspection (without title deeds 

submitted) 100.00 20.00 120.00 112.50 22.50 135.00 12.5%
Valuation for consent under the 

single dwelling covenant for 

HMO 250.00 0.00 250.00 900.00 0.00 900.00 260.0%

Event Consent Request (non-

commercial) 55.00 11.00 66.00 60.00 12.00 72.00 9.1%

Event Consent Request 

(commercial) < 300 people 100.00 20.00 120.00 150.00 30.00 180.00 50.0%

Event Consent Request 

(commercial)  300 - 499 people 250.00 50.00 300.00 279.17 55.83 335.00 11.7%

Event Consent Request 

(commercial)  >=500 people 1,000.00 200.00 1,200.00 1,116.67 223.33 1,340.00 11.7%

Campus West

Garden City Cinema - Monday to Thursday 

    - Full Price 7.08 1.42 8.50 7.92 1.58 9.50           11.8%

    - Concessions (U16 / 

Seniors / Student) 6.25 1.25 7.50 7.00 1.40 8.40           12.0%

    - Full Price 3D Films 9.17 1.83 11.00 10.25 2.05 12.30         11.8%

    - 3D Films Concession (U16 

/ Seniors / Student) 8.33 1.67 10.00 9.33 1.87 11.20         12.0%

    - Screenings starting before 

5pm  No Zebra Discount 5.00 1.00 6.00 5.58 1.12 6.70           11.7%

    - Friday to Sunday 

    - Full Price 8.54 1.71 10.25 9.50 1.90 11.40         11.3%

    - Concessions (U16 / 

Seniors / Student) 7.92 1.58 9.50 8.83 1.77 10.60         11.5%

    - Full Price 3D Films 10.42 2.08 12.50 11.58 2.32 13.90         11.2%

    - 3D Film Concessions (U16 

/ Seniors / Student) 9.58 1.92 11.50 10.67 2.13 12.80         11.3%

Hawthorne Theatre - 

Theatrical Hire Fee

Monday to Wednesday

8am to 4pm 1,072.92 214.58 1,287.50 1,200.00 240.00 1,440.00    11.8%

4pm to midnight 1,201.67 240.33 1,442.00 1,341.67 268.33 1,610.00    11.7%

Thursday to Sunday

8am to 4pm 1,330.42 266.08 1,596.50 1,483.33 296.67 1,780.00    11.5%

4pm to midnight 1,587.92 317.58 1,905.50 1,766.67 353.33 2,120.00    11.3%

Screen Hire

Screen 1

8am to 1pm 429.17 85.83 515.00 483.33 96.67 580.00       12.6%

1pm - 4pm 429.17 85.83 515.00 483.33 96.67 580.00       12.6%

4pm - 11pm 429.17 85.83 515.00 483.33 96.67 580.00       12.6%
Screen 2

8am to 1pm 643.75 128.75 772.50 716.67 143.33 860.00       11.3%

1pm - 4pm 643.75 128.75 772.50 716.67 143.33 860.00       11.3%

4pm - 11pm 643.75 128.75 772.50 716.67 143.33 860.00       11.3%

Page 55



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Roller City

    - Skate Admission Only 6.67 1.33 8.00 7.42 1.48 8.90           11.3%

    - Skate Hire 2.50 0.50 3.00 2.83 0.57 3.40           13.3%

    - Spectator Charge 4.58 0.92 5.50 5.17 1.03 6.20           12.8%

Soft Play City 

Children 12 month or under Free Free Free Free Free Free

Children 1 to 3 years 4.33 0.87 5.20 4.83 0.97 5.80           11.6%

Children 4 to 9 years 6.00 1.20 7.20 6.67 1.33 8.00           11.1%

Accompanying Adults 4.17 0.83 5.00 4.67 0.93 5.60           11.9%

Registered Child Minder (Mon 

to Fri only) Free Free Free Free Free Free

Mill Green Museum & Welwyn Roman Baths

Adult entry fee  single (same 

for both sites)
5.00 - 5.00

5.60
-

5.60           12.0%

Child entry fee single (same for 

both sites) 
1.50 - 1.50

1.70
-

1.70           13.3%

Special Events for Children 

(maximum charge)
7.50 - 7.50

8.40
-

8.40           12.0%

Children's drop in activity 

(minimum charge)
5.00 - 5.00

5.60
-

5.60           12.0%

General School visit (informal 

session)
5.25 - 5.25

5.90
-

5.90           12.4%

Extra Charge for Miller (on non 

milling days)
52.00 - 52.00

60.00
-

60.00         15.4%

Taught lesson (standard) per 

child
7.50 - 7.50

8.40
-

8.40           12.0%

Minimum charge (up to 30 

children)
225.00 - 225.00

250.00
-

250.00       11.1%

Combined visit to Museum and 

Roman Bath House per child
9.50 - 9.50

10.60
-

10.60 11.6%

Private Hire of Study Area (1/2 

day)
100.00 - 100.00

115.00
-

115.00       15.0%

Private Hire of Study Area (full 

day)
190.00 - 190.00

215.00
-

215.00       13.2%

Photocopying - single sheet 0.67 0.13 0.80 0.75 0.15 0.90           11.9%

Photocopying - double sided 1.00 0.20 1.20 1.17 0.23 1.40           17.1%

Digital Capture (by Staff) 5 

copies (same/different) 29.75 5.95 35.70 33.33 6.67 40.00         12.0%

Digital capture (1 image) 4.60 0.00 4.60 5.20 0.00 5.20           13.0%

Reproduction Rights 

Works by national / non-Herts 

Museums - one country 45.84 9.17 55.00 54.17 10.83 65.00 18.2%

Works by national / non-Herts 

Museums - worldwide 91.67 18.33 110.00 104.17 20.83 125.00 13.6%

Self publishing: local history 

(print run <10) 5.83 1.17 7.00 6.50 1.30 7.80 11.5%

Self publishing: local history 

(print run >10 <500) 11.25 2.25 13.50 12.50 2.50 15.00 11.1%

Academic / local history (print 

run < 2,000)** 34.59 6.92 41.50 39.17 7.83 47.00 13.2%

Page 56



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Academic / local history (print 

run > 2,000)** 57.08 11.42 68.50 63.33 12.67 76.00 11.0%

Commercial / non-academic 

(print run < 500)** 30.00 6.00 36.00 33.33 6.67 40.00 11.1%

Commercial / non-academic 

(print run > 500 < 2,000)** 57.08 11.42 68.50 63.33 12.67 76.00 11.0%

Commercial / non-academic 

(print run > 2,000)** 71.67 14.33 86.00 83.33 16.67 100.00 16.3%

Newspapers / magazines - 

National** 142.92 28.58 171.50 160.00 32.00 192.00 12.0%

Newspapers / magazines - 

Local** 71.67 14.33 86.00 80.00 16.00 96.00 11.6%

Internet / Website - commercial 

/ individual* 19.25 3.85 23.10 21.67 4.33 26.00 12.6%

Internet / Website - academic** 5.00 1.00 6.00 5.58 1.12 6.70 11.7%

External exhibition loans - 

national / commercial 75.83 15.17 91.00 87.50 17.50 105.00 15.4%

Public / educational talks - 

national / commercial 38.33 7.67 46.00 43.33 8.67 52.00 13.1%

Email of each Digital Image 2.50 0.50 3.00 2.83 0.57 3.40 13.3%

Commercial Requests upon 

application POA POA POA POA POA POA

Archaeology Deposits (single 

item / box) POA POA POA POA POA POA

**Fees doubled for worldwide 

usage

Room/Hall Hire

Campus West / Vineyard Barn / Hazel Grove / Panshanger

    - Keep Fit (per session) 6.00 1.20 7.20 6.67 1.33 8.00 11.1%

    - Fitness (per session) 6.00 1.20 7.20 6.67 1.33 8.00 11.1%

    - Children's Parties (per 

party) 129.17 25.83 155.00 145.83 29.17 175.00 12.9%

Community Centres - Room Hires (Hazel Grove, Vineyard Barn, Panshanger, Hilltop)

Large Rooms (per hour) 21.00 0.00 21.00 23.50 0.00 23.50 11.9%

Small Rooms (per hour) 19.00 0.00 19.00 21.50 0.00 21.50 13.2%

Sheridan Studio At Campus 

West (per hour) 21.67 4.33 26.00 24.17 4.83 29.00 11.5%

Hatfield Stage Hire Fees

Hiring of stage POA POA POA POA POA POA N/A

Car Parking

Northaw Great Wood

Annual car parking permit 16.67 3.33 20.00 25.00 5.00 30.00 50.0%

Parking Permits

Resident motorcycle (per 

annum) 11.00 - 11.00 21.00 - 21.00 90.9%

Page 57



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Resident first vehicle (per 

annum) 30.00 - 30.00 40.00 - 40.00 33.3%

Resident second vehicle (per 

annum) 50.00 - 50.00 65.00 - 65.00 30.0%

Resident third vehicle (per 

annum) 70.00 - 70.00 85.00 - 85.00 21.4%

Carers permit ( per annum) 24.00 - 24.00 27.00 - 27.00 12.5%

Business Vehicle ( per annum) 245.00 - 245.00 255.00 - 255.00 4.1%

Pack of 20 daily visitor 

vouchers 11.00 - 11.00 20.00 - 20.00 81.8%

Refund request ( admin fee) 5.50 - 5.50 10.00 - 10.00 81.8%

Change of address/vehicle 

(admin fee) 5.50 - 5.50 10.00 - 10.00 81.8%

Hatfield Multi-Storey

0 - 3 Hours Free Free Free Free Free Free

3 - 4 Hours 2.92 0.58 3.50 3.25 0.65 3.90 11.3%

Daily Tickets 4+ hrs ( Mon - 5.42 1.08 6.50 6.00 1.20 7.20 10.7%

Hunters Bridge  ( Monday - Saturday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

30 minutes - 2 hours 1.33 0.27 1.60 1.50 0.30 1.80 12.8%

2 - 3 hours 2.17 0.43 2.60 2.42 0.48 2.90 11.6%

3 - 4 hours 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.33 0.67 4.00 11.1%

Daily tickets 4 + hrs ( Mon - 

Sat) 5.50 1.10 6.60 6.08 1.22 7.30 10.6%

Hunters Bridge  ( Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

Sunday  (daily) 0.92 0.18 1.10 1.08 0.22 1.30 17.8%

Campus West ( Monday - Saturday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

30 minutes - 2 hours 1.33 0.27 1.60 1.50 0.30 1.80 12.8%

2 - 3 hours 2.17 0.43 2.60 2.42 0.48 2.90 11.6%

3 - 4 hours 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.33 0.67 4.00 11.1%

Daily tickets 4 + hrs ( Mon - 

Sat) 5.50 1.10 6.60 6.08 1.22 7.30 10.6%

Campus West   ( Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

Sunday  (daily) 0.92 0.18 1.10 1.08 0.22 1.30 17.8%

Cherry Tree (Monday - Saturday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

30 mins - 2 hours* - - - 1.50 0.30 1.80 New

2 - 3 hours 2.17 0.43 2.60 2.42 0.48 2.90 11.4%

3 - 4 hours 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.33 0.67 4.00 11.1%

Daily tickets 4 + hrs 5.50 1.10 6.60 6.08 1.22 7.30 10.6%

Page 58



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

*Parking charge time bandings 

have changed for 2023/24 to 

ensure consistency between 

this and other car parks

Cherry Tree  ( Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free

Sunday  (daily) 0.92 0.18 1.10 1.08 0.22 1.30 17.8%

Campus East ( Monday - Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes* - - - Free Free Free New

30 mins - 2 hours* - - - 1.50 0.30 1.80 New

2 - 3 hours* - - - 2.42 0.48 2.90 New

3 - 4 hours* - - - 3.33 0.67 4.00 New

Daily tickets 4 + hrs* - - - 6.08 1.22 7.30 New

0 - 30 minutes* - - - Free Free Free New

Sunday (daily) 0.92 0.18 1.10 1.08 0.22 1.30 17.8%

*Parking charge time bandings 

have changed for 2023/24 to 

ensure consistency between 

this and other car parks

Season Tickets:

Hatfield Multi-Storey, Kennelwood Lane, Dog Kennel Lane

3 month season ticket - 

standard 41.67 8.33 50.00 79.17 15.83 95.00 90.0%

Annual Ticket 166.67 33.33 200.00 229.17 45.83 275.00 37.5%

Campus West:

1 month season ticket - 

standard 75.38 15.08 98.00 91.67 18.33 110.00 12.2%

3 month season ticket - 

standard 241.67 48.33 290.00 258.33 51.67 310.00 6.9%

1 month season ticket - 

worker/resident 72.50 14.50 87.00 79.17 15.83 95.00 9.2%

3 month season ticket - worker 

/ resident 216.67 43.33 260.00 229.17 45.83 275.00 5.8%

Campus East Lower

1 month season ticket - 

standard 75.38 15.08 98.00 91.67 18.33 110.00 12.2%

3 month season ticket - 

standard 241.67 48.33 290.00 258.33 51.67 310.00 6.9%

1 month season ticket - 

worker/resident /student 72.50 14.50 87.00 79.17 15.83 95.00 9.2%

3 month season ticket - worker 

/ resident/ student 216.67 43.33 260.00 229.17 45.83 275.00 5.8%

Hunters Bridge

1 month season ticket - 

standard 75.38 15.08 98.00 91.67 18.33 110.00 12.2%

Page 59



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Place Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee
%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

3 month season ticket - 

standard 241.67 48.33 290.00 258.33 51.67 310.00 6.9%

1 month season ticket - worker 

/ resident 72.50 14.50 87.00 79.17 15.83 95.00 9.2%

3 month season ticket - worker 

/ resident 216.67 43.33 260.00 229.17 45.83 275.00 5.8%

Cancellation Fees relating to 

Season Tickets given up 

before their expiry date 12.92 2.58 15.50 20.83 4.17 25.00 61.2%

Civil Parking Enforcement :  

Dispensations 12.92 2.58 15.50 20.83 4.17 25.00 61.2%

Page 60



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

Licensing

Animal Activities

Home Dog boarding or Day 

Care/ Commercial up to ten 

dogs 1 year:

On Application 275.00 - 275.00 303.00 - 303.00 10.2%

On Issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Home Dog boarding or Day 

Care/ Commercial up to ten 

dogs 2 years:

On Application 275.00 - 275.00 303.00 - 303.00 10.2%

On Issue 76.50 - 76.50 85.00 - 85.00 11.1%

Renewal 1 year - On 

application 241.00 - 241.00 266.00 - 266.00 10.4%

Renewal 1 year - On issue 37.10 - 37.10 41.00 - 41.00 10.5%Renewal 2 year - On 

Application 241.00 - 241.00 266.00 - 266.00 10.4%

Renewal 2 year - On Issue 102.00 - 102.00 113.00 - 113.00 10.8%Renewal 3 year - On 

Application 241.00 - 241.00 266.00 - 266.00 10.4%

Renewal 3 year - On Issue 123.00 - 123.00 136.00 - 136.00 10.6%

Dog/Cat commercial over ten 

dogs - 1 Year

On Application 295.00 - 295.00 325.00 - 325.00 10.2%

On Issue 39.50 - 39.50 44.00 - 44.00 11.4%

Dog/Cat commercial over ten 

dogs -2 year

On Application 295.00 - 295.00 325.00 - 325.00 10.2%

On Issue 92.70 - 92.70 102.00 - 102.00 10.0%Renewal 1 year - On 

application 270.00 - 270.00 298.00 - 298.00 10.4%

Renewal 1 year - On issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%Renewal 2 year - On 

Application 287.50 - 287.50 317.00 - 317.00 10.3%

Renewal 2 year - On Issue 92.00 - 92.00 102.00 - 102.00 10.9%Renewal 3 year - On 

Application 295.00 - 295.00 325.00 - 325.00 10.2%

Renewal 3 year - On Issue 144.00 - 144.00 159.00 - 159.00 10.4%

Arranging boarding/franchise  

No dogs New and renewal

On Application 246.50 - 246.50 272.00 - 272.00 10.3%

On Issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Variation franchise 51.50 - 51.50 57.00 - 57.00 10.7%

Inspection of new franchisee 

no licence 1 year

On Application 230.00 - 230.00 255.00 - 255.00 10.9%

On Issue 16.50 - 16.50 19.00 - 19.00 15.2%

Inspection of new franchisee 

no licence 2 year

On Application 231.00 - 231.00 255.00 - 255.00 10.4%

On Issue 42.50 - 42.50 47.00 - 47.00 10.6%

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Page 61



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Inspection of new franchisee 

no licence 3 year

On Application 225.50 - 225.50 249.00 - 249.00 10.4%

On Issue 81.50 - 81.50 90.00 - 90.00 10.4%Renewal 1 year - On 

application 222.50 - 222.50 245.00 - 245.00 10.1%

Renewal 1 year - On issue 16.50 - 16.50 19.00 - 19.00 15.2%Renewal 2 year - On 

Application 215.50 - 215.50 238.00 - 238.00 10.4%

Renewal 2 year - On Issue 42.50 - 42.50 47.00 - 47.00 10.6%Renewal 3 year - On 

Application 206.00 - 206.00 227.00 - 227.00 10.2%

Renewal 3 year - On Issue 81.50 - 81.50 90.00 - 90.00 10.4%

Dog Breeding New 1 year

On Application 282.00 - 282.00 311.00 - 311.00 10.3%

On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 35.00 - 35.00 12.9%

Dog Breeding New 2 years

On Application 281.19 - 281.19 310.00 - 310.00 10.2%

On Issue 80.00 - 80.00 89.00 - 89.00 11.3%

Dog Breeding Renewal 1 year

On Application 260.00 - 260.00 287.00 - 287.00 10.4%

On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 35.00 - 35.00 12.9%

Dog Breeding Renewal 2 year

On Application 242.00 - 242.00 267.00 - 267.00 10.3%

On Issue 82.50 - 82.50 91.00 - 91.00 10.3%

Dog Breeding Renewal 3 year

On Application 258.50 - 258.50 285.00 - 285.00 10.3%

On Issue 133.00 - 133.00 147.00 - 147.00 10.5%

Selling animals as Pets New 1 

year

On Application 275.00 - 275.00 303.00 - 303.00 10.2%

On Issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Selling animals as pets New 2 

year

On Application 272.00 - 272.00 300.00 - 300.00 10.3%

On Issue 96.00 - 96.00 106.00 - 106.00 10.4%

Selling animals as pets

Renewal 1 year - On application 264.00 - 264.00 291.00 - 291.00 10.2%

Renewal 1 year - On issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Renewal 2 year - On Application 266.00 - 266.00 293.00 - 293.00 10.2%

Renewal 2 year - On Issue 85.50 - 85.50 95.00 - 95.00 11.1%

Renewal 3 year - On Application 273.00 - 273.00 301.00 - 301.00 10.3%

Renewal 3 year - On Issue 144.00 - 144.00 159.00 - 159.00 10.4%

Riding Establishments - New 1 

Year

On Application 294.00 - 294.00 324.00 - 324.00 10.2%

Page 62



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

On Issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Riding Establishments - New 2 

years

On Application 295.00 - 295.00 325.00 - 325.00 10.2%

On Issue 96.00 - 96.00 114.00 - 114.00 18.8%

Renewal 1 year - On application 285.00 - 285.00 314.00 - 314.00 10.2%

Renewal 1 year - On issue 32.00 - 32.00 114.00 - 114.00 256.3%

Renewal 2 year - On Application 285.00 - 285.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Renewal 2 year - On Issue 96.00 - 96.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Renewal 3 year - On Application 285.00 - 285.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Renewal 3 year - On Issue 152.50 - 152.50 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Keeping or training animals for 

exhibition - 3 years

On Application 266.00 - 266.00 293.00 - 293.00 10.2%

On Issue 32.00 - 32.00 36.00 - 36.00 12.5%

Combination of activities equal to highest fee plus 50% of each additional licensable activity

Re evaluation of inspection 

rating 103.00 - 103.00 114.00 - 114.00 10.7%

Re visit- appeals fee applies 

unless higher rating achieved 103.00 - 103.00 114.00 - 114.00 10.7%

Variation all types except 

franchises 206.00 - 206.00 227.00 - 227.00 10.2%

Transfer due to death of 

licensee 20.60 - 20.60 23.00 - 23.00 11.7%

Copy of licence 12.50 - 12.50 14.00 - 14.00 12.0%

Ear Piercing 222.00 - 222.00 245.00 - 245.00 10.4%

Tattooing/Other 278.00 - 278.00 307.00 - 307.00 10.4%

Change of details on 

registration certificate 28.00 - 28.00 31.00 - 31.00 10.7%

Dangerous Wild Animals 322.00 - 322.00 355.00 - 355.00 10.2%

Zoos 515.50 - 515.50 568.00 - 568.00 10.2%

Gaming Machine Permits

Two machines on licensed 

premises 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Grant 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

More than two machines 

existing 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

More than two machines other 

cases 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

More than two machines 

variation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

More than two machines 

transferred 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%

Annual Fees 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Substitute Name 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%

Copy of Permit 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

Club Gaming Permits Club machine permits

Page 63



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Two machines on licensed 

premises 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Grant 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Grant (Club premises 

certificate holder) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

More than two machines 

variation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Renewal 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Renewal (Club premises 

certificate holder) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Annual Fees 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Substitute Name 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%

Copy of Permit 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

Gambling Premises new application

New Small Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 1,775.00 - 1,775.00 1,970.00 - 1,970.00 11.0%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 1,664.00 - 1,664.00 1,850.00 - 1,850.00 11.2%

Tracks 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 1,331.01 - 1,331.01 1,480.00 - 1,480.00 11.2%

Adult Gaming Centre 1,331.01 - 1,331.01 1,480.00 - 1,480.00 11.2%

Gambling Premises annual fee

New Small Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 555.00 - 555.00 617.00 - 617.00 11.2%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 333.00 - 333.00 370.00 - 370.00 11.1%

Tracks 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 333.00 - 333.00 370.00 - 370.00 11.1%

Adult Gaming Centre 555.00 - 555.00 617.00 - 617.00 11.2%

Gambling Premises application for a provisional statement

New Small Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 1,775.00 - 1,775.00 1,970.00 - 1,970.00 11.0%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 1,441.92 - 1,441.92 1,600.00 - 1,600.00 11.0%

Tracks 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 1,442.00 - 1,442.00 1,600.00 - 1,600.00 11.0%

Adult Gaming Centre 1,261.00 - 1,261.00 1,400.00 - 1,400.00 11.0%

Gambling Premises application for transfer

New Small Casino 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Page 64



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 - 950.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 541.00 - 541.00 600.00 - 600.00 10.9%

Adult Gaming Centre 649.50 - 649.50 720.00 - 720.00 10.9%

Gambling Premises application to vary

New Small Casino 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 1,623.00 - 1,623.00 1,750.00 - 1,750.00 7.8%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 1,442.00 - 1,442.00 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 4.0%

Tracks 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 665.50 - 665.50 740.00 - 740.00 11.2%

Adult Gaming Centre 665.50 - 665.50 740.00 - 740.00 11.2%

Gambling Premises application for reinstatement

New Small Casino 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 - 950.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 542.00 - 542.00 600.00 - 600.00 10.7%

Adult Gaming Centre 758.00 - 758.00 840.00 - 840.00 10.8%

Gambling Premises provisional statement holders

New Small Casino 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 0.0%

New Large Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%

Regional Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

Bingo Club 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Betting premises ( excluding 

tracks) 772.63 - 772.63 860.00 - 860.00 11.3%

Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 - 950.00 0.0%

Family Entertainment Centre 828.36 - 828.36 920.00 - 920.00 11.1%

Adult Gaming Centre 828.36 - 828.36 920.00 - 920.00 11.1%

Other

Sex Shop or Sex Cinema 695.48 - 695.48 770.00 - 770.00 10.7%

Sexual Entertainment Venue 695.48 - 695.48 770.00 - 770.00 10.7%

Hypnotism application 171.45 - 171.45 190.00 - 190.00 10.8%

Gambling Premises notification 

of change 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Gambling Premises copy of 

Licence 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%

Lottery Registration 40.00 - 40.00 40.00 - 40.00 0.0%

Lottery Renewal 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

Scrap Metal 

Site Licence Application 826.00 - 826.00 920.00 - 920.00 11.4%

Collectors Licence Application 690.89 - 690.89 770.00 - 770.00 11.4%

Site Licence Renewal 560.19 - 560.19 620.00 - 620.00 10.7%

Collectors Licence Renewal 532.73 - 532.73 590.00 - 590.00 10.8%

Page 65



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Variation (site licence to 

collectors licence) 91.17 - 91.17 100.00 - 100.00 9.7%

Variation (collectors licence to 

site licence) 164.76 - 164.76 185.00 - 185.00 12.3%

Change of site 91.17 - 91.17 100.00 - 100.00 9.7%

Change of site manager 73.59 - 73.59 82.00 - 82.00 11.4%

Change of name or address 51.62 - 51.62 57.00 - 57.00 10.4%

Premises & Clubs - new applications

Rateable value :- Band A 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

      :- Band B 190.00 - 190.00 190.00 - 190.00 0.0%

      :- Band C 315.00 - 315.00 315.00 - 315.00 0.0%

      :- Band D 450.00 - 450.00 450.00 - 450.00 0.0%

      :- Band E 635.00 - 635.00 635.00 - 635.00 0.0%

      :- Minor variations 89.00 - 89.00 89.00 - 89.00 0.0%

-

Additional fees for premises 

holding more than 5000 

persons -

5,000 - 9,999 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

10,000 - 14,999 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 0.0%

15,000 - 19,999 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%

20,000 - 29,999 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

30,000 - 39,999 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 0.0%

40,000 - 49,999 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 0.0%

50,000 - 59,999 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 0.0%

60,000 - 69,999 40,000.00 - 40,000.00 40,000.00 - 40,000.00 0.0%

70,000 - 79,999 48,000.00 - 48,000.00 48,000.00 - 48,000.00 0.0%

80,000 - 89,999 56,000.00 - 56,000.00 56,000.00 - 56,000.00 0.0%

90,000 and over 64,000.00 - 64,000.00 64,000.00 - 64,000.00 0.0%

Premises & Clubs - Annual Fee (Renewals)

Rateable value :- Band A 70.00 - 70.00 70.00 - 70.00 0.0%

 :- Band B 180.00 - 180.00 180.00 - 180.00 0.0%

 :- Band C 295.00 - 295.00 295.00 - 295.00 0.0%

 :- Band D 320.00 - 320.00 320.00 - 320.00 0.0%

 :- Band E 350.00 - 350.00 350.00 - 350.00 0.0%

Additional fees for premises holding more than 5000 persons

5,000 - 9,999 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

10,000 - 14,999 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

15,000 - 19,999 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 0.0%

20,000 - 29,999 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%

30,000 - 39,999 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

40,000 - 49,999 12,000.00 - 12,000.00 12,000.00 - 12,000.00 0.0%

50,000 - 59,999 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 0.0%

60,000 - 69,999 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 0.0%

70,000 - 79,999 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 0.0%

80,000 - 89,999 28,000.00 - 28,000.00 28,000.00 - 28,000.00 0.0%

90,000 and over 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 0.0%

Personal Licence 37.00 - 37.00 37.00 - 37.00 0.0%

-

Page 66



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Application for the grant or 

renewal of a personal licence 37.00 - 37.00 37.00 - 37.00 0.0%

Temporary Event Notice 21.00 - 21.00 21.00 - 21.00 0.0%

-

Replacement of premises 

licence or summary 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Premises & Clubs - new 

applications for primarily for 

selling alcohol for consumption 

on the premises

Rateable value :- Band D 900.00 - 900.00 900.00 - 900.00 0.0%

      :- Band E 1,905.00 - 1,905.00 1,905.00 - 1,905.00 0.0%
Premises & Clubs - Annual 

Fee for primarily for selling 

alcohol for consumption on the 

premises -

Rateable value :- Band D 640.00 - 640.00 640.00 - 640.00 0.0%

      :- Band E 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 0.0%

-
Application for the mandatory 

condition requiring DPS in 

respect of a premises licence 

to be disapplied 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%

Street Trading consents

Per trading per day of the week 182.18 - 182.18 202.00 - 202.00 10.9%

Pavement licence 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Application for a provisional 

statement where premises are 

being built etc 315.00 - 315.00 315.00 - 315.00 0.0%

Notification of change of 

address 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Application to vary a licence to 

specify an individual as 

premises supervisor 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%

Application for transfer of 

premises Licence 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%

Interim Authority Notice 

following death of licence 

holder 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%

Replacement of certificate or 

summary 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Notification of change of name 

or alteration of rules of club 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Change of relevant registered 

address of club 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Replacement of temporary 

event notice 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Replacement of personal 

licence 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Duty to notify change of name 

& address 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%

Page 67



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Right of freeholder to be 

notified of licensing matters 21.00 - 21.00 21.00 - 21.00 0.0%

Copy of document on public 

register 0.12 0.02 0.14 0.13 - 0.16 11.1%

Mobile Homes Act

Initial Site Licence Fee 151.57 30.31 181.89 168.33 - 202.00 11.1%

    - and in addition for each 

pitch 15.38 3.08 18.45 17.08 - 20.50 11.1%

Transfer or Standard 

amendment fee 195.51 39.10 234.62 216.67 - 260.00 10.8%

Site expansion amendment fee 151.57 30.31 181.89 168.33 - 202.00 11.1%

    - and in addition for each 

pitch 15.38 3.08 18.45 17.08 - 20.50 11.1%

Annual Fee per pitch 12.08 2.42 14.50 13.33 - 16.00 10.4%

Site Rules Regulation Deposit 38.44 7.69 46.13 42.50 - 51.00 10.6%

Fit and Proper Persons Check 181.24 36.25 217.49 200.00 - 240.00 10.4%

Enforcement Notice 311.95 62.39 374.33 345.83 - 415.00 10.9%

Hackney Carriages

Hackney Carriage 

Driver/Private hire driver 

Licence - 3 Years 450.00 - 450.00 450.00 - 450.00 0.0%

Hackney Carriage Vehicle 

Licence/Private Hire Vehicle - 

1 Year 290.00 - 290.00 290.00 - 290.00 0.0%

Private Hire Operator Licence :-

1 Year 330.00 - 330.00 330.00 - 330.00 0.0%

3 Years 762.00 - 762.00 762.00 - 762.00 0.0%

5 Years 1,194.00 - 1,194.00 1,194.00 - 1,194.00 0.0%

CRB check 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Knowledge test (per attempt) 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

Replacement plate 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

Replacement bracket 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

Replacement driver’s badge 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

Extra copy/duplicate of licence 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%

DVLA 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 0.0%

Vehicle transfers 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Environmental Health

Training / CoursesLevel 2 - Food Safety in 

Catering  (residents or 

businesses of WH) 67.50 - 67.50 75.00 - 75.00 11.1%

Level 2 - Food Hygiene in 

Catering (outside of WH) 72.50 - 72.50 80.00 - 80.00 10.3%

Works in default - As displayed in current budget book and vary between the officer involved and the time for 

day the works are executed

Page 68



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Level 2 - Nutrition course 

(residents or businesses of 

WH) 67.00 - 67.00 75.00 - 75.00 11.9%

Level 2 - Nutrition course 

(outside of WH) 72.50 - 72.50 80.00 - 80.00 10.3%Level 3 - Food safety in 

Catering (residents/businesses 

of WH) 283.50 - 283.50 315.00 - 315.00 11.1%

Level 3 - Food safety in 

Catering (outside of WH)) 294.50 - 294.50 330.00 - 330.00 12.1%

Level 3 - Refresher Course 160.00 - 160.00 180.00 - 180.00 12.5%

Level 3 - Refresher Course 

(outside WH) 170.00 - 170.00 190.00 - 190.00 11.8%

Resilience awareness training 

(organisation) 535.81 - 535.81 595.00 - 595.00 11.0%

Small Business Support course 

( part day) 69.66 - 69.66 77.00 - 77.00 10.5%

Small Business Support course 

( full day) 139.31 - 139.31 155.00 - 155.00 11.3%

Small Food Business workshops 26.79 - 26.79 30.00 - 30.00 12.0%

Replacement food 

hygiene/safety certificate 41.50 - 41.50 46.00 - 46.00 10.8%

Cancellation within 1 month of 

course : 

Cancellation within 1 week of 

course: 

Failure to attend without 

notification: 

EPA part B installation 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%

Additional fee for operating 

without a permit 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 0.0%

Reduced Fee activities 155.00 - 155.00 155.00 - 155.00 0.0%

PVR I & II 257.00 - 257.00 257.00 - 257.00 0.0%

Vehicle Refinishers 362.00 - 362.00 362.00 - 362.00 0.0%

Reduced Fee activities : 

Additional fee for operating 

without a permit. 71.00 - 71.00 71.00 - 71.00 0.0%

Mobile screening & crushing 

plant 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%

for the 3rd to 7th applications 985.00 - 985.00 985.00 - 985.00 0.0%

for the 8th & subsequent 

applications 498.00 - 498.00 498.00 - 498.00 0.0%

No Refund

Where an application for any of the above is for a combined Part B and waste application, add an extra £104, 

(low risk)  £156 (medium risk) or £207 (high risk) to above amounts

No Refund

No Refund

Cancellation of attendance at courses listed above: 

75% refund

No Refund

75% refund

Environmental Permit Application (EPA) prescribed processes - application fees, these fees are subject 

to change by statute

Page 69



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Annual Subsistence Charges

Annual Subsistence Charge - 

low risk ^ 772.00 - 772.00 772.00 - 772.00 0.0%

Annual Subsistence Charge - 

medium risk ^ 1,161.00 - 1,161.00 1,161.00 - 1,161.00 0.0%

Annual Subsistence Charge - 

high risk ^ 1,747.00 - 1,747.00 1,747.00 - 1,747.00 0.0%

Annual Subsistence Charge - 

petrol stations

Reduced fee activities - low 79.00 - 79.00 79.00 - 79.00 0.0%

Reduced fee activities - 

medium 158.00 - 158.00 158.00 - 158.00 0.0%

Reduced fee activities - high 237.00 - 237.00 237.00 - 237.00 0.0%

PVR I & II - low 113.00 - 113.00 113.00 - 113.00 0.0%

PVR I & II - medium 226.00 - 226.00 226.00 - 226.00 0.0%

PVR I & II - high 341.00 - 341.00 341.00 - 341.00 0.0%

Vehicle Refinishers - low 228.00 - 228.00 228.00 - 228.00 0.0%

Vehicle Refinishers - medium 365.00 - 365.00 365.00 - 365.00 0.0%

Vehicle Refinishers - high 548.00 - 548.00 548.00 - 548.00 0.0%

Mobile screening & crushing 

plant - low 626.00 - 626.00 626.00 - 626.00 0.0%

Mobile screening & crushing 

plant - medium 1,034.00 - 1,034.00 1,034.00 - 1,034.00 0.0%

Mobile screening & crushing 

plant - high 1,551.00 - 1,551.00 1,551.00 - 1,551.00 0.0%

for the 3rd to 7th applications - 

low 385.00 - 385.00 385.00 - 385.00 0.0%

for the 3rd to 7th applications - 

medium 617.00 - 617.00 617.00 - 617.00 0.0%

for the 3rd to 7th applications - 

high 924.00 - 924.00 924.00 - 924.00 0.0%

for the 8th & subsequent 

applications - low 198.00 - 198.00 198.00 - 198.00 0.0%

for the 8th & subsequent 

applications - medium 314.00 - 314.00 314.00 - 314.00 0.0%

for the 8th & subsequent 

applications - high 473.00 - 473.00 473.00 - 473.00 0.0%

Low Risk 104.00 - 104.00 104.00 - 104.00 0.0%

Medium risk 156.00 - 156.00 156.00 - 156.00 0.0%

High Risk 207.00 - 207.00 207.00 - 207.00 0.0%

Transfer & Surrender

Standard process transfer 169.00 - 169.00 169.00 - 169.00 0.0%

^ these additional amounts must be charged where a permit is for a combined Part B and waste 

If subsistence charge is paid in instalments the total amount of subsistence charge payable in that financial year 

is increased by £38.

An extra £104 is required where the operator carries on an operation that falls within the reporting obligations of 

the EC Regulation

Page 70



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Standard process partial 

transfer 497.00 - 497.00 497.00 - 497.00 0.0%

Surrender : all Part B activities 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 0.0%

Reduced fee activities : transfer 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 0.0%

Reduced fee activities : partial 

transfer 47.00 - 47.00 47.00 - 47.00 0.0%

Substantial change S10 & 

S11

Standard process 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 0.0%

Standard process where the 

substantial change results in a 

new PPC activity. 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%

Change due to implementing 

an upgrading plan (applies to 

LAPC only) 147.00 - 147.00 147.00 - 147.00 0.0%

Reduced fee activities 102.00 - 102.00 102.00 - 102.00 0.0%

Application fee for grant of A2 

permit 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 0.0%

Application fee for transfer of 

A2 permit full 235.00 - 235.00 235.00 - 235.00 0.0%

Partial transfer 698.00 - 698.00 698.00 - 698.00 0.0%

Surrender of permit 698.00 - 698.00 698.00 - 698.00 0.0%

Application for Variation 1,368.00 - 1,368.00 1,368.00 - 1,368.00 0.0%

Variation for Small Waste 

Incineration plant 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 0.0%

Late Application fee for A2 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 0.0%

Subsistence Charges A2

Low Risk 1,343.00 - 1,343.00 1,343.00 - 1,343.00 0.0%

Medium Risk 1,507.00 - 1,507.00 1,507.00 - 1,507.00 0.0%

High Risk 2,230.00 - 2,230.00 2,230.00 - 2,230.00 0.0%

Certificate of Voluntary 

Surrender of Food (plus officer 

& disposal costs) per hour 57.00 - 57.00 63.00 - 63.00 10.5%

Sale of Food Safety Act 

Register 251.82 - 251.82 280.00 - 280.00 11.2%

Food Safety Export check 64.29 - 64.29 71.00 - 71.00 10.4%

Food Hygiene Rating  Revisit 185.50 - 185.50 206.00 - 206.00 11.1%

Storage of noise making 

equipment following seizure ( 

plus officer cost) 594.74 - 594.74 660.00 - 660.00 11.0%

Fixed penalty notice for 

smoking in a smoke free place 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

An extra £103 is required where the operator carries on an operation that falls within the reporting obligations of 

the European Commission Regulation

If subsistence charge is paid in instalments the total amount of subsistence charge payable in that financial year 

is increased by £38.

Page 71



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Discounted to if paid within 30 

days 30.00 - 30.00 30.00 - 30.00 0.0%

Failure to display "no smoking" 

signs 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Discounted to if paid within 30 

days 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

Private Water Supplies & Distribution Systems

Risk Assessment 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Sampling - each visit ( 

maximum fee) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Investigation ( each 

investigation) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Granting an Authorisation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Analysing a sample:

taken under regulation 10 30.00 6.00 36.00 30.00 - 36.00 0.0%

taken during check monitoring POA POA POA POA POA POA

taken during audit monitoring 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Environmental Search for 

Contaminated Land 96.45 - 96.45 107.00 - 107.00 10.9%

Officer time for work in default - 

Service Manager/Assistant 

Director 63.43 12.69 76.11 70.83 - 85.00 11.7%

Officer time for work in default - 

Team Leader 46.69 9.34 56.03 51.67 - 62.00 10.7%

Officer time for work in default - 

EHO 39.62 7.92 47.55 44.17 - 53.00 11.5%

Officer time for work in default - 

EHTO 31.52 6.30 37.82 35.00 - 42.00 11.0%

Officer time for work in default - 

EHTSO 21.29 4.26 25.55 23.33 - 28.00 9.6%

Provision of a factual 

statement to the victim of an 

accident POA POA POA POA POA POA

Dog Warden Services

Collection / release fee for dog 

with collar & tag 27.00 - 27.00 30.00 - 30.00 11.1%

Collection / release fee for dog 

without collar & tag 38.00 - 38.00 42.00 - 42.00 10.5%

Dog collected by Warden and 

Transported to Kennels 80.50 - 80.50 90.00 - 90.00 11.8%

Kennel Fee per night 16.50 - 16.50 18.00 - 18.00 9.1%

Allotments per annum

Plot without water per 25sqm 7.50 - 7.50 22.50 - 22.50 200.0%

Plot with water per 25 sqm 12.50 - 12.50 37.50 - 37.50 200.0%

Charges for works carried out during the following times: Monday - Friday 7pm - 8am time and a half, Saturday 

time and a half, Sunday & Bank Holidays time and a half

Page 72



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Admin charge for new 

customers 15.00 - 15.00 New 

Landscape & Ecology

High Hedge Enforcement Fee 545.00 - 545.00 505.00 - 606.00 11.2%

Abandoned Vehicles

Abandoned Vehicles - off 

private property 45.83 9.17 55.00 51.67 10.33 62.00 12.7%

Abandoned Vehicles - Return 

of vehicle 116.67 23.33 140.00 133.33 26.67 160.00 14.3%

Abandoned Vehicles - Storage 

rate per day 11.92 2.38 14.31 13.33 2.67 16.00 11.8%

General

Benches (refurbished) 380.00 76.00 456.00 420.83 84.17 505.00 10.7%

Benches  (new) 1,062.00 212.40 1274.40 1,179.17 235.83 1,415.00 11.0%

Waste Collection Services

Bulky Household Collections 

(not uplhostered items) - Up 

to 4 items 44.50 - 44.50 New

Bulky Household Collections 

(upholstered items) - up to 3 

items 44.50 - 44.50 New

Bulky Household Collections 

(Black Bags) - up to 20 bags
44.50 - 44.50 New

Bulky Household Collections - 

OAPs 20.00 - 20.00 22.50 - 22.50 12.5%

Bulky Household Collections - 

Benefits 20.00 - 20.00 22.50 - 22.50 12.5%

Insurance charge for 

collections within homes 17.08 3.42 20.50 19.17 3.83 23.00 12.2%

Collection of Hazardous 

Electrical items 37.50 - 37.50 41.50 - 41.50 10.7%

Clinical Waste collections ( 5 

sacks/resident) 5.83 1.17 7.00 6.67 1.33 8.00 14.3%

Kitchen Caddy delivery charge 5.42 1.08 6.50 6.25 1.25 7.50 15.3%

Emptying of a contaminated 

wheeled bin 20.00 - 20.00 22.50 - 22.50 12.5%

Emptying of 2 contaminated 

wheeled bins (at same 

address) 25.00 - 25.00 28.00 - 28.00 12.0%

Cost of a first standard 

replacement (180/240L) bin 12.92 2.58 15.50 17.50 3.50 21.00 35.5%

Cost of a subsequent standard 

(180/240L) bin 27.08 5.42 32.50 30.00 6.00 36.00 10.8%

Cost of a first standard 

replacement (360L) bin 22.92 4.58 27.50 25.83 5.17 31.00 12.7%

Cost of a subsequent standard 

(360L) bin 37.92 7.58 45.50 42.08 8.42 50.50 11.0%

Page 73



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Cost of a mini-bank unit 695.00 139.00 834.00 791.67 158.33 950.00 13.9%

Cost of a large bin (1100L) bin 345.00 - 345.00 450.00 - 450.00 30.4%

Garden Waste Collection

First bin per property per 

annum 40.00 - 40.00 50.00 - 50.00 25.0%

Second bin per property per 

annum, and any additional bins 65.00 - 65.00 80.00 - 80.00 23.1%

Schedule of Offences

Nuisance Parking

     - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Abandoning a vehicle

     - paid within 10 days 120.00 - 120.00 120.00 - 120.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Depositing Litter

     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%

Failure to comply with a street 

litter control notice

     - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Failure to comply with a litter 

clearing notice

     - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Unauthorised distribution of 

free printed matter

     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%

Defacement by graffiti and 

flyposting

     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%

Duty of Care

     - paid within 10 days 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%

Failure to comply with a dog 

control order

     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%

Failure to produce authority 

(waste carrier's licence)

  - paid within 10 days 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

  - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%

Failure to furnish 

documentation (waste transfer 

notes) 

 - paid within 10 days 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Page 74



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

 - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%
Offences relating to waste 

receptacles (eg. causes an 

obstruction, attracts vermin, 

restricts access to highway or 

pavement)

 - paid within 10 days 40.00 - 40.00 40.00 - 40.00 0.0%

 - full amount of penalty 80.00 - 80.00 80.00 - 80.00 0.0%

Roundabout Sponsorship

High Profile

1 year sponsorship 2,750.00 550.00 3300.00 3,058.33 611.67 3,670.00 11.2%

3 year sponsorship 5,791.67 1,158.33 6950.00 6,433.33 1286.67 7,720.00 11.1%

5 year sponsorship 8,250.00 1,650.00 9900.00 9,166.67 1833.33 11,000.00 11.1%

Medium Profile (main road)

1 year sponsorship 2,208.34 441.67 2650.00 2,450.00 490.00 2,940.00 10.9%

3 year sponsorship 4,620.83 924.17 5545.00 5,133.33 1026.67 6,160.00 11.1%

5 year sponsorship 6,600.00 1,320.00 7920.00 7,333.33 1466.67 8,800.00 11.1%

Medium Profile (residential 

road)

1 year sponsorship 1,649.60 329.92 1979.52 1,833.33 366.67 2,200.00 11.1%

3 year sponsorship 3,462.44 692.49 4154.93 3,850.00 770.00 4,620.00 11.2%

5 year sponsorship 4,950.94 990.19 5941.13 5,500.00 1100.00 6,600.00 11.1%

Low Profile

1 year sponsorship 825.00 165.00 990.00 916.67 183.33 1,100.00 11.1%

3 year sponsorship 1,729.16 345.83 2075.00 1,925.00 385.00 2,310.00 11.3%

5 year sponsorship 2,475.00 495.00 2970.00 2,750.00 550.00 3,300.00 11.1%

Street Naming & Numbering 

1st plot 66.67 13.33 80.00 83.33 16.67 100.00 25.0%

2nd - 24th plots 45.83 9.17 55.00 54.17 10.83 65.00 18.2%

25th - 49th plots 37.50 7.50 45.00 43.33 8.67 52.00 15.6%

50th - 74th plots 26.67 5.33 32.00 33.33 6.67 40.00 25.0%

75th – 99th plots 22.50 4.50 27.00 26.67 5.33 32.00 18.5%

Plots 100 and above 14.17 2.83 17.00 16.67 3.33 20.00 17.6%

                                     

Naming of block or building 

name 175.27 35.05 210.33 213.33 42.67 256.00 21.7%

Street Name for new 

development 175.27 35.05 210.33 245.83 49.17 295.00 40.3%

Street name 175.27 35.05 210.33 245.83 49.17 295.00 40.3%

Changes to 

Development/Layout after 

notification 43.82 8.76 52.59 48.33 9.67 58.00 10.3%

New development build 

or Conversion of 

existing property (price per plot)

Page 75



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Resident and Neighbourhood Directorate

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

%2022-23 2023-24

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Re-Naming/Renumbering 

Building 

(existing premises) 65.73 13.15 78.87 81.67 16.33 98.00 24.3%

Addition of name to numbered 

property (alias) 65.73 13.15 78.87 81.67 16.33 98.00 24.3%

Change of name to named only 

property 65.73 13.15 78.87 81.67 16.33 98.00 24.3%

Re-Naming Street or re- post 

coding (at residents request) 175.27 35.05 210.33 245.83 49.17 295.00 40.3%

General ^

Immigration Inspection 297.67 - 298.00 331.00 - 331.00 11.1%

Housing Act Notice^ 341.96 - 342.00 380.00 - 380.00 11.1%

HMO Application^^

Application for basic 5 person 

HMO^^ 1,022.79 - 1,023.00 1,150.00 - 1,150.00 12.4%

Application for an HMO 

between 6 - 10 persons^^ 1,143.30 - 1,143.00 1,285.00 - 1,285.00 12.4%

Application for an HMO with 11 

or more persons^^ 1,258.66 - 1,259.00 1,415.00 - 1,415.00 12.4%

Officer time for work in 

default^^^

Officer time for work in default - 

Service Manager / Assistant 

Director 75.83 15.17 91.00 84.17 16.83 101.00 11.0%

Officer time for work in default - 

Private Sector Housing 

Manager 53.33 10.67 64.00 59.17 11.83 71.00 10.9%

Officer time for work in default - 

Senior Housing Technician 49.17 9.83 59.00 55.00 11.00 66.00 11.9%

Officer time for work in default - 

Housing Technician 34.17 6.83 41.00 38.33 7.67 46.00 12.2%

Officer time for work in default - 

Support Officer 23.33 4.67 28.00 25.83 5.17 31.00 10.7%

Community Services

CCTV charge 107.00 - 107.00 119.00 0.00 119.00 11.2%

Filming charge POA POA POA POA POA POA

^A fixed charge of £325 will be applied for any single notice served. In addition, an hourly rate of £45 will be 

added where multiple notices are served and for the total amount of time taken to produce the single notice 

when it exceeds £333 (7.4 hours).        

        

^^^Charges for works carried out during the following times: Monday - Friday (7pm - 8am) - time and a half, 

Saturday - time and a half and Sunday & Bank Holidays - double time.

Page 76



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix E

Fees and Charges - Property Maintenance and Climate Change Directorate

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

Garage Rents

Owner occupier en bloc garage 

charges (52 week charge):

GF Garages Std VAT 11.42 2.28 13.70 14.83 2.97 17.80 29.9%

GF Garages Reduced Rate  

VAT* 9.58 1.92 11.50 14.83 2.97 17.80 54.8%

GF Garages Std NON-VAT 11.42 0.00 11.42 14.83 0.00 14.80 29.6%

GF Garages Reduced Rate  

NON-VAT* 9.58 0.00 9.58 14.80 0.00 14.80 54.5%

Campus East Lower Car Park 

Garages Rents VAT 16.66 3.33 20.00 18.50 3.70 22.20 11.0%

Campus East Lower Car Park 

Garages NON VAT 16.66 0.00 16.66 18.50 0.00 18.50 11.0%

GF Garages- Premium Sites 

Std Vat N/A N/A N/A 18.75 3.75 22.50 New

GF Garages- Premium Sites 

Non-Vat N/A N/A N/A 18.71 0.00 18.71 New

* The reduced rate for garages will be removed from 2023/24 and aligned to the standard rate

%2023-24

Description

2022-23

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Budget - Housing Revenue Account

Appendix F

Description

Current 

Budget 

2022/23

Proposed 

Budget 

2023/24

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £ '000

Dwelling rents  (52,264)  (55,920)  (3,656)

Non-dwelling rents  (391)  (435)  (44)

Tenants' charges for services and facilities  (1,693)  (1,938)  (245)

Leaseholders' charges for services and facilities  (782)  (1,474)  (692)

Contributions towards expenditure  (245)  (269)  (24)

Total Income  (55,374)  (60,036)  (4,661)

Repairs and maintenance 9,214 11,844 2,630

Supervision and management 10,163 11,542 1,379

Special services 3,426 4,637 1,211

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 879 872  (7)

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts 490 490 -

Depreciation 16,352 16,602 250

Debt management costs 29 18  (11)

Sums directed by Secretary of State 50 50 -

Total Expenditure 40,603 46,055 5,452

HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Core 853 928 75

Net Cost of Services  (13,918)  (13,053) 866

Less Interest and Non-Statutory Items: 

Interest payable and similar charges 7,559 8,120 561

HRA financing and investment income  (52)  (78)  (26)

Revenue Contribution to Capital 6,257 4,769  (1,488)

Total Adjustments 13,764 12,811  (953)

(Surplus) / Deficit on the HRA  (154)  (242)  (87)

Page 79



Page 80



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council                            Appendix G 
Housing Revenue Account – Budget Changes 2023/24 
 

Dwelling rents - Increased income of (£3.656m) 

 
The rent has been increased in line with government guidance issued earlier this year.  For 2023/24, 
this equates to an increase of 7% and takes the average actual rent to £121.89.  
 
Allowance has been made in the total estimated income for the decanting of properties for 
redevelopment, for the loss of properties due to right to buy and for increases in properties as a 
result of the affordable housing programme. 
 

Tenants Charges for Services and Facilities – (£245k) 

 
Increases in charges are associated with inflationary increases and the inclusion of charges at 
Minster House, which will come on stream in 2023/24. 
 

Leaseholder Charges for Services and Facilities – (£692k) 

 
Following the asset grading work and rephasing of the capital programme, additional capital works 
have been programmed for the next five years. Where leaseholders are part of a block where works 
are undertaken, a proportion of these costs will be recharged to leaseholders. The income budget 
has been increased based on the planned programme of works and anticipated recharges. 
 

Repairs and maintenance – £2.630m 

 
£612k increase in repairs based on inflation on the current contractual provisions.  
 
Further one-off growth of £2m has been included which will enable a full stock condition survey to be 
carried out.  
 

Supervision and management – Increased expenditure of £1.379m 

 
Salaries inflation, incremental progression and for supervision and management gives an increase 
of £186k. More investment has been made into the property services team to support the expanded 
capital investment programme following the asset grading work and review of the profiling of capital 
investment, which gives an increase of £600k  
 
Corporate recharges to the HRA have increased by £754k which is a combination of contract and 
utility inflation, and increased office space use. 
 

Special services – Increased expenditure of £1.211m 

 
£65k salaries inflation and grade progression. £878k energy and contract inflation. Further increased 
cost due to Minster House being operational of £88k for which rental income will be received.  
 

Depreciation – Increased expenditure of £250k 

 
£250k increased depreciation charge - The depreciation charge to the HRA is a statutory charge 
based on the value of the Council’s dwelling stock and it increases in line with its stock value. This 
charge is credited to the capital account (i.e. Major repairs reserve) and used towards funding the 
HRA capital programme and repayment of borrowing.  
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

HRA Share of Democratic Core  – Increased expenditure of £75k 

 
£75k internal charges – following a review of core council budgets and recharges, a recalculation 
has been undertaken to apportion costs to the HRA. 
 

Interest payable and similar charges – Increased expenditure of £561k 

 
£561k increase to interest payable – The Council’s capital programme, includes financing and 
borrowing forecasts. These forecasts show a net increase to the HRA borrowing requirement which 
in turn increases the interest payable.  

Revenue Contribution to Capital – Decreased expenditure of £1.488m 

 
£1.488m decrease in contribution to capital - The balance on the HRA each year is contributed to 
support the capital expenditure programme, specifically the Affordable Housing Programme and 
repayment of existing borrowing. This is done to make best use of funds, minimise the borrowing 
requirement and associated costs. This amount will vary each year dependent on rent policy, 
scheduled loan repayments, depreciation charges and other factors.  
 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets medium term minimum working balance on the 
HRA at 5% of turnover. The revenue contribution is therefore calculated as the difference between 
5% of total income and all other items of income and expenditure.  
 

. 

 

Page 82



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix H

CPI 11.10% 1.111

Description Fee VAT* Total Fee Fee VAT* Total Fee

The Hive - Venue Hire (Hourly Rate)

The Hive - Sports Hall 26.25 5.25 31.50 29.17 5.83 35.00            11.1%

The Hive - Sports Hall 

Charity/Local Authority Rate 21.92 4.38 26.30 24.42 4.88 29.30            11.4%

The Hive - Dining Room 26.00 - 26.00 28.90 - 28.90            11.2%

The Hive - Dining Room 

Charity/Local Authority Rate 26.00 - 26.00 26.00 - 26.00 0.0%

The Hive - Studio 20.40 - 20.40 22.70 - 22.70 11.3%

The Hive - Studio Charity/Local 

Authority Rate 15.80 - 15.80 17.60 - 17.60 11.4%

The Hive - Meeting Room 15.80 - 15.80 17.60 - 17.60 11.4%

The Hive - Meeting Room 

Charity/Local Authority Rate 10.50 - 10.50 11.70 - 11.70 11.4%

The Hive - Freddie’s Den

Child Entry 3.08 0.62 3.70 3.50 0.70 4.20              13.5%

Bronze Party 95.83 19.17 115.00 106.50 21.30 127.80          11.1%

Silver Party 144.17 28.83 173.00 160.25 32.05 192.30          11.2%

Gold Party 183.67 36.73 220.40 204.08 40.82 244.90          11.1%

Other (52 week charge)

Hazel Grove House - Running 

Cost 44.09 - 44.09 49.00 - 49.00 11.1%

Hazel Grove House - Bedsit 

Utilities 16.61 - 16.61 18.50 - 18.50 11.4%

Hazel Grove House - 1 Bedroom 

Flat Utilities 18.73 - 18.73 20.80 - 20.80 11.1%

Hazel Grove House - 2 Bedroom 

Flat Utilities 20.79 - 20.79 23.10 - 23.10 11.1%

Inspira House - Running Cost 41.81 - 41.81 46.50 - 46.50 11.2%

Inspira House - Utilities 18.69 - 18.69 20.80 - 20.80 11.3%

Burfield Close - Running Cost 40.85 - 40.85 45.40 - 45.40 11.1%

Burfield Close Utilities 18.73 - 18.73 20.80 - 20.80 11.1%

Council Tenants Lifeline Charge 3.85 - 3.85 4.28 - 4.30 11.7%

Non-Council Tenants Lifeline 

Charge 4.41 - 4.41 4.90 - 4.90 11.1%

Communal Facilities Charge 

Neighbourhood Schemes 11.26 - 11.26 12.50 - 12.50 11.0%

Communal Facilities Charge 

Communal Schemes 11.82 - 11.82 13.10 - 13.10 10.8%

Communal Heating 7.57 - 7.57 9.10 - 9.10 20.2%

Garage Rent 11.41 0.00 11.41 14.80 14.80 29.7%

Garage Rent  (incl VAT) 11.41 2.28 13.69 14.83 2.97 17.80 30.0%

Other (single use charge)

Replacement key fob 15.45 - 15.45 17.50 - 17.50 13.3%

Replacement Lifeline pendants 35 - 35.00 40.00 - 40.00 14.3%

Application admin fee for 

leasehold sub-let 46.35 - 46.35 51.00 - 51.00 10.0%

Application admin fee for 

leasehold property alteration 154.50 - 154.50 172.00 - 172.00 11.3%

%

*VAT charged at prevailing rate of 20%. This would be amended in line with changes to regulations

Fees and Charges - HRA

2022-23 2023-24

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2022/23 - 2027/28 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Current 

Budget 

2022/23

£'000 

 2022/23 

Forecast 

Spend 

£'000 

 2022/23 

Rephasing 

£'000 

 Original 

2023/24

£'000 

 2023/24 

with 

rephasing

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

 2025/26

£'000 

 2026/27

£'000 

 2027/28

£'000 

Parking Programme              556              556                 -                260              260              260              260              260              260 

Replacement of sports equipment                15                15                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Peartree Lane (YMCA) Land Purchase           3,250                 -             3,250           3,250                 -                   -                   -                   -   

EV Charging Points              650              650                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

ANPR Vehicles              220              220                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Play Area Replacement Scheme                30                30                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Play Area Replacement Scheme              223              223                 -                  55                55                55                55                55                55 

Highview Shops           1,182              500              682              682                 -                   -                   -                   -   

Hatfield Town Centre Public Realm                74                74                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Hatfield Town Centre fees for Redevelopment                90                90                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Redevelopment of 1 and 3-9 Town Centre Hatfield              172              172                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Welwyn Garden City Town Centre North           2,758           2,759                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Strategic Property Investment                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Hatfield Town Centre Market Place              351              351                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Community Infrastructure Levy software                26                26                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Replacement of Fast Planning                  5                  5                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

PRG Community Inclusion                20                20                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Angerland  Football Improvement schemes              800                 -                800              800                 -                   -                   -   

Angerland Rugby Improvement schemes              200                 -                200              200                 -                   -                   -   

Mill Green Museum Window Replacement                22                22                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Gosling Redevelopment / Masterplanning              224              224                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Mill Green Museum purchase of Marquees                15                15                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Mill Green Museum Brickwork and Masonry                40                40                 -   

Museum Service - Refit of Pumping Station                48                48                 -   

Campus West - Replacement of Projectors and amplifiers                60                60                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Campus East Redevelopment              188              188                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

HatTech additional offices                 -                100              100                 -                   -                   -                   -   

Total Executive Director - Place (General Fund)         11,219           6,287           4,932              415           5,347              315              315              315              315 

Bereavement Services           7,450           8,243                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

 Five Year Capital Programme  Current Year Forecast 

GENERAL FUND

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 85



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2022/23 - 2027/28 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Current 

Budget 

2022/23

£'000 

 2022/23 

Forecast 

Spend 

£'000 

 2022/23 

Rephasing 

£'000 

 Original 

2023/24

£'000 

 2023/24 

with 

rephasing

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

 2025/26

£'000 

 2026/27

£'000 

 2027/28

£'000 

 Five Year Capital Programme  Current Year Forecast 

Capita Upgrade                22                22                 -                   -                  30                 -                  30 

Multi Functional Devices-Replacement programme                18                18                 -                  18                18                18                18                18                18 

ICT Rolling Program/Refresh              235              235                 -                126              126              126              130              130              130 

Construction of memorial plinths                14                14                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Replacement of the Council's Intranet                37                37                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Blade Server Replacement                 -                130              130                 -                   -                   -                   -   

Revenues and Benefits contract one off transformation costs              852              852 

Customer Services - Software                70                70 

Total Executive Director - Finance and Transformation 

(General Fund)
          7,776           8,569                 -             1,196           1,196              174              148              178              148 

CCTV upgrades (Welwyn Garden City, Urban and Hatfield)                64                64                 -                   -                  60                 -                   -   

Northgate case management  system - replace and enhance                51                51                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Better Care Fund and Disabled Facilities Grant           1,909           1,909                 -                592              592              592              592              592              592 

Tewin Road Depot Upgrade           2,825           2,925                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Decent Homes Private Sector GF                20                20                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Household Waste and Recycling Centre           3,672           3,772                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Streetscene Bins, Furniture and Equipment                45                45                 -                  45                45                45                45                45                45 

Total Service Director - Resident and Neighbourhood (General 

Fund)
          8,587           8,787                 -                637              637              697              637              637              637 

Public Sector De-carbonisation Scheme Campus East              188              188                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Public Sector De-carbonisation Scheme Hatfield Swim Centre                20                20                 -   

Public Sector De-carbonisation Scheme Campus West              892              892                 -   

Garage Renovations              254              254                 -                200              200              200              200              200              200 

Campus East Fire compartmentalisation                22                22                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Garage Forecourt Resurfacing              111              111                 -                  85                85                85                85                85                85 

Flat Refurbishments Hatfield Town Centre                18                18                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Littleridge Industrial Area resurfacing                19                19                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Commercial property-Energy efficiency                80                80                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Lift Replacements/Refurbs              100              100                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Decarbonisation           1,070           1,070                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 86



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2022/23 - 2027/28 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Current 

Budget 

2022/23

£'000 

 2022/23 

Forecast 

Spend 

£'000 

 2022/23 

Rephasing 

£'000 

 Original 

2023/24

£'000 

 2023/24 

with 

rephasing

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

 2025/26

£'000 

 2026/27

£'000 

 2027/28

£'000 

 Five Year Capital Programme  Current Year Forecast 

Asset Conditions Programme of Works (Operational and 

Commercial Estate)
                -                330              330              500              484           1,909           3,573 

HatTech Lift Refurbishment                 -                100              100                 -                   -                   -                   -   

Total Service Director - Property Maintenance and Climate 

Change (General Fund)
          2,773           2,773                 -                715              715              785              769           2,194           3,858 

Now Housing

Now Housing Loan         72,118                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Total Now Housing (General Fund)         72,118                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

TOTAL GENERAL FUND       102,472         26,416           4,932           2,963           7,895           1,971           1,869           3,324           4,958 

HOUSING ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Disabled Toilet Refurbishment (The Hive)                20                20                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP - General           4,858           4,858                 -             5,225           5,225           5,000           6,250         10,000           9,250 

AHP - Howlands House Redevelopment and Additional Units         10,504           3,504           7,000           1,000           8,000                 -                   -                   -   

AHP - Minster House Redevelopment and Additional Units           6,971           6,971                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP - The Commons              552              952                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP -  Ludwick Way           1,031           1,031                 -             1,147           1,147           1,240                 -                   -                   -   

AHP - Burfield           5,736                20           5,716           5,716           3,145              475                 -   

AHP - Hazel Grove              812              922                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP - Haseldine Meadows           1,391           1,391                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP - Lockley Crescent           1,462           1,751                 -                324              324                 -                   -                   -   

AHP - Ludwick Green           2,579           1,000           1,579                65           1,644                 -                   -                   -   

AHP -Queensway House                 -                  76                 -   

AHP - Swallowfields              612              800                 -             2,126           2,126                 -                   -                   -                   -   

AHP - Birchwood House              255                 -                255              255                 -                   -                   -   

AHP 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield           6,114           6,115                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Total Executive Director - Place (HRA)         42,898         29,412         14,550           9,887         24,437           9,385           6,725         10,000           9,250 

Digital Improvements                86                86                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Total Executive Director - Finance and Transformation (HRA)                86                86                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Community Buses replacement programme              320                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Emergency Alarms replacement programme              171              171                 -                125              125              125                 -                   -   

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 87



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2022/23 - 2027/28 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Current 

Budget 

2022/23

£'000 

 2022/23 

Forecast 

Spend 

£'000 

 2022/23 

Rephasing 

£'000 

 Original 

2023/24

£'000 

 2023/24 

with 

rephasing

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

 2025/26

£'000 

 2026/27

£'000 

 2027/28

£'000 

 Five Year Capital Programme  Current Year Forecast 

Total Service Director - Resident and Neighbourhood (HRA)              491              171                 -                125              125              125                 -                   -                   -   

Communal aerials              645                85                 -                  80                80                80                 -                   -                   -   

Major Repairs (Mears)         13,597           5,935           5,912         16,000         21,912         21,911         21,910         21,910         24,248 

Aids and Adaptations           1,038           1,038                 -             1,680           1,680           1,680           1,680              898              898 

Insulation Improvements                60                60                 -                332              332              332                33                33                33 

Smoke & Carbon Monoxide Alarms              154              154                 -                100              100              100              100              100              100 

Gas Central Heating Replacement Program           1,812           3,812                 -             4,419           4,419           4,419           4,419           4,419           1,812 

Major Repairs (other contractors)           1,212              500              639              294              933              296              297              297              297 

Door entry systems           2,640           1,300           1,300                 -             1,300           2,000           2,000           2,000           2,000 

Electricity mains              283              283                 -                138              138              139              140              140              140 

Lift replacement              351              351                 -                200              200              200              200              200              200 

Sheltered Refurbishment              448              500              594              860           1,454              620              500                 -                   -   

Disabled Facilities Grant additional scheme                13                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Better Care Fund- Sheltered Housing Modernisation              633                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Conversions              500              500                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   

Asbestos              249                 -                   -                249              249              249              249              249              249 

Fire Doors           2,000           2,000                 -             4,000           4,000           4,000                 -   

Howard House Refurbishment           4,800           1,000           3,800                 -             3,800           4,800                 -                   -                   -   

Total Service Director - Property Maintenance and Climate 

Change (HRA)
        30,435         17,517         12,246         28,352         40,598         40,826         31,528         30,246         29,977 

TOTAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT         73,910         47,186         26,796         38,364         65,160         50,336         38,253         40,246         39,227 

Total 176,383      73,602        31,728        41,327        73,055        52,307        40,122        43,570        44,185        

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 88



Classification: Unrestricted

Capital Financing Summary Appendix J

2022/23

£'000

2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

2026/27

£'000

2027/28

£'000

General Expenditure 26,416 7,895 1,971 1,869 3,324 4,958

Loan Repayment 476 14,419 1,419 1,419 1,419 1,419

Capital Receipts and Reserves (4,769) (6,109) (897) (811) (841) (811)

Capital Grants and Contributions (11,378) (592) (592) (592) (592) (592)

Revenue Contribution to Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

Borrowing Requirement for Before MRP 10,745 15,613 1,901 1,885 3,310 4,974

Minimum Revenue Provision (817) (1,199) (1,253) (1,278) (1,302) (1,398)

Net Change in Borrowing Requirement for Year excluding Loans 9,928 14,414 648 607 2,008 3,576

Now Housing Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Change in Borrowing Requirement for General Fund 9,928 14,414 648 607 2,008 3,576

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement at year end - General 52,745 52,741 51,970 51,158 51,747 53,904

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement at year end - Now Housing 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement at year end - Total 52,745 52,741 51,970 51,158 51,747 53,904

Capital Reserves Balance at year end 6,461 16,803 16,019 15,321 14,593 13,895

Capital Grants Balance at year end 4,582 3,582 3,582 3,582 3,582 3,582

GENERAL FUND

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 89



Classification: Unrestricted

Capital Financing Summary Appendix J

2022/23

£'000

2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

2026/27

£'000

2027/28

£'000

Total Expenditure 47,186 65,160 50,336 38,253 40,246 39,227

Loan Repayment 22,700 34,200 25,800 27,500 29,300 30,719

Capital Receipts and Reserves (18,653) (19,401) (21,094) (21,885) (22,723) (23,915)

Restricted 141 Capital Receipts (10,389) (8,943) (3,754) (2,690) (3,083) (3,083)

Capital Grants and Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue Contribution to Capital (5,582) (4,578) (3,196) (2,835) (3,692) (1,015)

Borrowing Requirement for Year 35,262 66,438 48,092 38,343 40,048 41,933

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement at year end 258,385 290,623 312,915 323,759 334,507 346,803

Capital Reserves and Grants Balance at year end 6,823 1,325 616 664 0 0

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 90



Classification: Unrestricted

Statement of Capital Reserves and Grant Balances Appendix K

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

(General 

Fund)

Capital 

Grants 

and 

Contrib's

Total GRF 

Capital 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

(Housing 

Revenue 

Account)

141 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Total HRA 

Capital 

Reserves

Total 

Capital 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Closing Balance March 2022 6,617 5,580 12,197 7 14,089 0 14,096 26,293 

Receipts 4,595 10,380 14,975 2,294 3,123 16,352 21,769 36,745 
Use of reserves to finance capital spend (4,751) (11,378) (16,129) (2,301) (10,389) (16,352) (29,042) (45,171)
Forecast Closing Balance March 2023 6,461 4,582 11,043 0 6,823 0 6,823 17,866 

Receipts 16,433 592 17,025 2,799 3,444 16,602 22,845 39,870 
Use of reserves to finance capital spend (6,091) (1,592) (7,683) (2,799) (8,943) (16,602) (28,344) (36,027)
Forecast Closing Balance March 2024 16,803 3,582 20,385 0 1,325 0 1,325 21,710 

Receipts 95 592 687 3,101 3,045 17,993 24,139 24,826 
Use of reserves to finance capital spend (879) (592) (1,471) (3,101) (3,754) (17,993) (24,848) (26,319)
Forecast Closing Balance March 2025 16,019 3,582 19,601 0 616 0 616 20,217 

Receipts 95 592 687 3,437 2,738 18,448 24,623 25,310 
Use of reserves to finance capital spend (793) (592) (1,385) (3,437) (2,690) (18,448) (24,575) (25,960)
Forecast Closing Balance March 2026 15,321 3,582 18,903 0 664 0 664 19,567 

Receipts 95 592 687 3,809 2,419 18,914 25,142 25,829 
Use of reserves to finance capital spend (823) (592) (1,415) (3,809) (3,083) (18,914) (25,806) (27,221)
Forecast Closing Balance March 2027 14,593 3,582 18,175 0 0 0 0 18,175 

Receipts 95 592 687 4,222 2,001 19,693 25,916 26,603 

Use of reserves to finance capital spend (793) (592) (1,385) (4,222) (2,001) (19,693) (25,916) (27,301)

Forecast Closing Balance March 2028 13,895 3,582 17,477 0 0 0 0 17,477 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

   

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
and Financial Governance Framework 

 
2023/24 – 2026/27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 93



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

1 
 

CONTENTS 
 
Section 
 

 
Page 

 

 

1. Introduction 2  

2. Revenue Forecasts and Strategies  
 
2.1 Local and economic context 
2.2 Forecasts and Assumptions – General Fund 

Forecasts and Assumptions – Housing Revenue Account 
2.3 Revenue Strategies and Efficiency Programmes 

 
3. Capital Forecasts and Strategies 

 
3.1 Summary and Approach 
3.2 Capital Forecasts and Assumptions 
3.3 Strategies & Indicators 

  
4. Professional Advice, Skills, Training and Capacity 
 

Annexes 
 
Annex A - Reserves Policy  
Annex B - Fees and Charges Strategy 
Annex C - Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Annex D - Financial Planning Framework 
Annex E - Investment Strategy 
Annex F - Treasury Management Strategy 
Annex G - Summary of key financial indicators  
 

 
 

3 
10 
12 
14 

 
 
 

18 
19 
21 

 
24 

 
 
 

25 
29 
30 
31 
32 
35 
45 

 
 
 

 

   
   

   

   

   
   
   

Page 94



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

2 
 

1 Introduction 
 
 Welcome to our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and Financial Governance 

Framework. This document sets out our financial forecasts, risks, challenges and 
strategies for the period 2023/24 to 2026/27. It also provides the detail behind our financial 
governance framework including our strategies and policies. 

 
1.1 This strategy has been prepared in unprecedented times of economic uncertainty following the 

international pandemic, fuel inflation and the cost of living crisis, along with a general and a 
general decline in public sector funding. It is also prepared at a time where pressures and 
expectations on local government continue to rise. 

 
1.2 Following extensive consultation with our residents, we set our business plan and priorities for 

the period of 2021 to 2024, and we set an annual action plan in line with these targets: 

3     

 https://www.welhat.gov.uk/corporateplan 
 
1.3 This strategy, which is reviewed annually, supports our overall direction and provides details 

of the financial strategies in place to deliver our objectives. It is a crucial component of the 
Council’s strategic planning framework. Our key decisions need to be made with consideration 
to a financial plan that looks beyond the short term.  

 
1.4 Whilst there are many challenges ahead, we start the next three years in a reasonably strong 

financial position with healthy reserves and clear strategies in place to support the delivery of 
the efficiency savings required to deliver a balanced budget. 

 
1.5 The council still faces income loses following changes in peoples behaviour and confidence, 

associated with the pandemic, increasing risks around the council’s finances in the medium-
term. These will need to continue be closely monitored and acted upon as we enter 2023/24. 
This coupled with the cost of living crisis adds further uncertainty as inflation in the coming 
years is extremely hard to predict.  

 
1.6 We have an ambitious investment programme, specifically on Housing and Regeneration 

within the Borough.  Although part of this programme is grant funded, there will be borrowing 
requirements, and these will need to be carefully managed along with the ongoing cost 
implications.  

 
1.7 Our priority has always been to safeguard frontline services where possible, but inevitably 

there have been, and will continue to be, some difficult decisions that result in changes to 
services for our residents, customers and businesses. Meeting savings requirements will 
require an increasingly commercial and innovative approach with new ways of working.  

 
1.8 We have a strong and successful record of delivering the efficiency savings required, and 

since the start of government grant funding reductions in 2010, we have successfully delivered 
over £19m of efficiency savings.  

 
1.9 As we move forward we are determined to continue with our successes and the MTFS sets 

out how we will ensure we have the resources we need to achieve the ambitions set out in the 
Council’s Business Plan. 

 

 Stephen Boulton     Richard Baker 

 Executive Member for    Executive Director   
 Planning and Resources            (Finance and Transformation)

Page 95

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/corporateplan


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

3 
 

2 Revenue Forecasts and Strategy  
 

 We maintain two revenue accounts. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which is solely 
for the day to day activities of our Social Housing Landlord function (our tenants), and the 
General Fund Revenue Account (GF) which is for or day to day activities for all other 
services.  

 

2.1)  Local, National and Economic Context 
 
2.1.1 The following section sets out some of the key considerations we have to be conscious of 

when we set our budgets and review our medium to longer-term forecasts.  
 

2.1.2 There are a significant number of uncertainties and risks, and because of this, we undertake 
sensitivity analysis to understand the potential impact of material changes and ensure our 
reserves are adequate to deal with any such impacts (Annex A).  

 
Grant Funding and Business Rates (General Fund) 

 
2.1.3 Grant funding for local government continues to be extremely uncertain as we move into the 

next three-year period. The most recent settlement provides some clarity over the next two 
years, particularly around the business rates retention system, but other grant streams remain 
uncertain. The Government is still committed to a fair funding review and business rates reset, 
which makes medium to longer-term planning extremely difficult and increases risk.   

 
2.1.4 Revenue Support Grant (RSG), previously provided by the Government was removed. This 

means we have become increasingly reliant on the more volatile income sources such as 
business rates. Negative RSG was proposed from 2018/19, and while the Government has 
moved away from this direction each year in the short-term, whether this will apply in the longer 
term is unknown. The government has confirmed that negative RSG will not apply for 2024/25.  

 
2.1.5 Two of the grants received by the Council, have this year been rolled into the RSG. The 

Government has done this after the elimination of negative RSG, meaning the Council is 
receiving the same level of funding for these grant streams as it was before, although this does 
bring into question whether these grants will continue in the medium to longer term.  
 

2.1.6 The Business Rates system has seen significant changes including changes to the appeals 
process, additional reliefs being granted by Government and proposals for a more regular 
revaluation cycle. These make the income stream extremely volatile and difficult to predict in 
the medium term. Historic appeals data is used for our forecasting, along with any known 
factors from Government announcements.  

 
2.1.7 The government piloted a 75% business rates retention scheme, and Hertfordshire was in this 

scheme for 2019/20, removed for 2020/21 and included for 2022/23. Some Hertfordshire 
Councils have been accepted into a pooling arrangement for 2023/24, and the council is one 
of these so will see a larger share of income retained compared to 2020/21 and 2021/22. 
These arrangements are only one year in nature, so any additional income cannot be relied 
upon to support the budget gaps in future years. It is unclear what will apply in future years 
and this may be affected by the governments planned business rates retention review. Any 
gains in 2023/24 will be calculated at year end and contributed to strategic reserves.  

 
2.1.8 The business rates retention reset has been assumed for 2025/26, which will likely see a drop 

in rates income of around £1m. 
 

Page 96



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

4 
 

2.1.9 Numerous consultations and announcements have set the national direction for a review of 
Local Government Finance, but the outcome of these and the impacts on our finances are 
uncertain. These include a fair funding review, a reset of the business rates baseline, a revised 
business rates retention scheme, a spending review and a review of New Homes Bonus. 

 
2.1.10 The New Homes Bonus Scheme was introduced to encourage councils to facilitate greater 

housing growth. However, over time, the benefits of the grant have been reduced, including 
the term over which the grant is paid, and the introduction of a baseline level of growth for 
which no grant is paid. The Government is undertook consultation early 2021, but at this stage 
have not provided any proposals for the future of the funding, and have instead rolled forward 
the total allocation for one year. This further increases the medium-term financial uncertainties. 
They have committed to its review next year as part of the settlement announced.  

 
2.1.11 No long-term certainty has been provided over whether the previously proposed grant 

reductions (through negative RSG), will be taken into account in the various funding reviews, 
and adversely impact future income for us.  

 
2.1.12 In 2021/22 the Government announced a one-off grant called Lower Tier Service Grant. This 

grant was aimed at District Councils in recognition of the increasing demands at this level. This 
grant was continued for one year, but this grant has been removed for 2023/24, and replaced 
with a Funding Guarantee Grant.  

 
2.1.13 The Funding Guarantee Grant aims to ensure that all councils receive a 3% increase in core 

spending power, before any decisions are taken on council tax or the use of reserves. There 
is no clarity on whether this grant will continue in 2024/25. 

 
2.1.14 For 2022/23, it was announced that a one-off grant called New Services grant would be 

payable to councils. The narrative around this grant sets out that it is recognition of the impact 
of the pandemic and increasing demands on services. This grant has continued, but has been 
top sliced for the reversal of the national insurance increases. 

 
2.1.15 Both of these grants, along with the new homes bonus provide no certainty that the 

Government is committing to continuing these in the longer term, and have previously ruled 
out these one off grants from any transitional protection measures. Along with the potential 
reset of the Business Rates Retention system, there is a cliff edge of funding, leading to a 
large forecast budget gap in 2024/25 and 2025/26. 

 
2.1.16 These reviews are being undertaken at a time where Central Governments focus is on the 

response to the pandemic, the economic conditions, and cost of living crisis and more directly 
on their core priorities such as housing, social care, education, policing and health. Many of 
these services are provided by other authorities such as the police and county council, and 
this increases the uncertainty around the funding that may be provided to us in future. 

 
2.1.17 The Government had previously given strong indications that there would be transitional 

measures for any changes in funding allocations and apportionment methods, and an 
assumption has been assumed in the medium term forecasts for the, but should be noted as 
a risk. 
 
Economic and Market Conditions 

 
2.1.18 There continues to be extreme uncertainty in economic and market conditions, and the cost of 

living crisis has compounded these.  
 

Page 97



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

5 
 

2.1.19 Continued economic changes could have material impacts on our finances, as service demand 
would be impacted by such changes. This could include an increased housing demand, 
increased welfare support, adverse impacts on out interest income and borrowing costs, 
increased fuel and utility costs and impacts on our commercial property and other income.  

 
2.1.20 The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate by 0.75% to 3.0% in November 2022, the 

largest single rate hike since 1989 and the eighth successive rise since December 2021. The 
decision was voted for by a 7-2 majority of the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC). 

 
2.1.21 CPI inflation is expected to peak at around 11% in the last calendar quarter of 2022 and then 

fall sharply to 1.4%, below the 2% target, in two years’ time and to 0% in three years’ time if 
Bank Rate follows the path implied by financial markets with a peak of 5.25%. However the 
BoE has stated it considers this path to be too high, suggesting that the peak in interest rates 
will be lower, reducing the risk of inflation falling too far below target. 

 
2.1.22 We will take a balanced approach to our forecasts, using national and professionally derived 

forecasts for the economy. This is a key area in our sensitivity analysis and reserves strategy. 
 

2.1.23 Fuel continues to be a very volatile cost, and whilst we do enter into longer term arrangements 
for our utilities, these are still subject to market fluctuations, as are vehicle fuel costs. On this 
basis we take a more prudent approach to forecasting fuel increases. For 2022/23 and 2023/24 
there have been significant increases built into the base budget for utilities linked to the UK 
fuel crisis. 

 
2.1.24 The UK is in a period of high inflationary increases, and the council could be impacted in 

2023/24 for contractual inflationary increases, if inflation continues at current levels. 
 

2.1.25 Rates which have been used to inform our strategies and forecasts are shown in the table 
below: 

 

Area 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

    

CPI 6% 4% 3% 

Borrowing 5% 5% 5% 

Bank of England 
Base Rate* 

4.25% 3.5% 3.5% 

 
 

2.1.26 It is worth noting that following a Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) consultation, and 
restrictions being implemented for restricting borrowing from PWLB, the previous decision to 
increase interest rates was reversed in 2020, reducing rates available to the council by 1%. 
To continue to be able to access this funding the council must not look to invest in assets 
purely for commercial returns, for which it continues to have no plans to do so.  

 
2.1.27 Our ambitious housing and regeneration delivery programmes mean our capital expenditure, 

and income, is directly impacted by changes in market conditions. These changes can impact 
on the resources available to the council, or the cost of investment. In turn, this can directly 
impact on the cost of borrowing, and our revenue forecasts.   

 
2.1.28 *The rates provided by Arlingclose is their view of the most likely position. They also believe 

there is a risk rates could be higher or lower than this, depending on economic data.    
 
 
 

Page 98



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

6 
 

Contracts and Shared Services 
 

2.1.29 We are in contractual arrangements with service providers for some of our services. Many of 
our contracts are directly linked to price indices indexation. 
 

2.1.30 A few of these, which have been in long term arrangements, have recently expired and been 
re-tendered, or will be expiring in the coming months and years and we will need to consider 
the future delivery method for these services. A list of our key contracts, annual values and 
end dates are in the table below: 

 

Service Provider Average Annual 
Value 

End Date 

    

ICT Sopra Steria £0.8m March 2023 

Revenues and Benefits Sopra Steria £1.8m March 2023 

Customer Services Sopra Steria £0.6m Insourced 
November 
2022 

Waste Services and Ground  
Maintenance 

Urbaser £4.5m March 2029 

Grounds Maintenance Continental 
Landscapes 

£1.1m March 2029 

Housing Repair and  
Maintenance (HRA) 

Morgan Sindall £11.0m Sept 2032 

Leisure Services Greenwich Leisure 
Limited 

£0.2m Jan 2029 

 
2.1.31 We also have some shared service arrangements with other Councils, these deliver efficient 

services and provide economies of scale. Our two key shared services are the Herts Shared 
Internal Audit Service, and Herts Building Control. The budget includes proposals to join the 
Hertfordshire Shared Anti-Fraud Service.  
 

2.1.32 Market and inflationary increases may have a direct impact on our finances when existing 
arrangements come to an end, and we put in place new arrangements for service delivery. 

 
Demographics, Business and Local Plan 

 
2.1.33 Demographics of the area have a direct impact on our services and finances. Our Local Plan, 

which is currently under review, sets the direction for the area in terms of housing and 
commercial developments, and general growth in the area.  
 

2.1.34 Increases in the numbers of households and businesses, positively impacts on the council tax, 
business rates and other income that we can raise, but also places more pressure on services 
and can be directly linked to contractual increases. 

 
2.1.35 Other demographic changes can also impact on our services and finances, for example an 

aging population may increase demands on sheltered accommodation, housing benefit and 
council tax support. 

 
2.1.36 Average increases for previous years will be assumed for planning purposes, until a new Local 

Plan has been adopted, at which points forecasts will be reviewed.  
 

Legislative changes  
 

Page 99



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

7 
 

2.1.37 Legislative changes made by Government, often have a direct impact on the services we 
provide and the income we can raise. This can include increased duties, transfer of functions 
and restrictions on income generation.  
 

2.1.38 In recent years, we have been restricted from increasing housing rental income (HRA) in line 
with inflation, and in fact had to reduce rent by 1% per annum for four consecutive years until 
2020. This had a material effect on the income available to the Council for the development of 
new housing. The Government announced that we could start to increase rents by CPI +1% 
from 2020/21. However, with high levels of inflation, the Government has announced a one 
year cap of 7% on housing rent for 2023/24. 

 
2.1.39 Other legislative changes made in recent years include changing planning fees to allow 

additional investment into planning services, increasing our duties on homelessness which in 
turn increased our costs, and changing legislation around houses in multiple occupation, 
expanding the licencing remit of council and allowing charges to be made for these licences.  

 
2.1.40 The functions of local land charges transferred to Her Majesty’s Land Registry during 2021/22.  

 
2.1.41 Legislative changes rarely come with additional ongoing funding. We will sometimes receive 

a one-off grant from the Government which will help support set up costs of new requirements, 
but we generally have to find ways to cover the ongoing costs of these changes.   

 
Pay and Pensions 

 
2.1.42 For the review of pay and employment conditions, we are part of an arrangement with the 

National Joint Council which allows negotiations to take place with the unions at a national 
level.  
 

2.1.43 The most recent agreement was a one year pay settlement for 202/23, which gave an average 
increase of 6% per annum. The actual award was £1,925 which aimed to give higher 
proportionate increases for those on the lower pay scales to ensure these met the level of the 
National Living Wage and support with the cost of living crisis.  

 
2.1.44 No agreement has been reached for 2023/24 onwards. This is a key area for our sensitivity 

analysis and reserves strategy. 
 

2.1.45 We are also part of a nationally agreed scheme for pensions. In 2016, the valuations of the 
scheme showed that it was 83% funded, meaning there was a historical deficit which would 
need funding from future contributions. The latest triennial valuation was in 2019 now shows 
the fund as 94% funded, and strong improvement from the previous valuation. The 2022 
valuation has just been released, which proposed a net 1% reduction to the contribution rates. 

 
2.1.46 We have historically opted to make additional one-off payments on triennial valuations, in order 

to maintain our medium-term contribution rates at existing levels.  
 

2.1.47 We made a one-off contribution to the pension fund in 2020/21, to ensure stabilised rates for 
the next triennial period. This payment was for £1.848m, of which £1.201m was attributable to 
the General Fund, and £0.647m to the Housing Revenue Account. We had set aside funds in 
an earmarked reserve to support with this payment. A contribution was also made to replenish 
this reserve in 2020/21, to fund the triennial review due within the period of this MTFS. 

 
2.1.48 In order to ensure that future payments are affordable in relation to the backfunding of the 

pension fund, stepped increases to the base budget have been included from 2024/25. 
 

Page 100



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

8 
 

Welfare Support 
 

2.1.49 We provide direct welfare support through the Council Tax Support Scheme, which is funded 
locally as a direct cost to our budget. Other support, such as Housing Benefit, is administered 
by us but is funded by the Government.  
 

2.1.50 Impacts on the wider economy from factors such as the pandemic and the end of the transition 
period with the EU, have a direct impact on us through the level of Council Tax Support that 
will need to be funded.  

 
2.1.51 The pandemic saw a significant increase in unemployment and those in need of financial 

support. This in turn saw an increase in our residents applying for council tax support. This 
has a direct impact on the amount collectible from council tax. There has been a reduction in 
council tax support since restrictions have lifted. Assumptions have been made in the councils 
tax base calculation for a continued reduction, but not to pre-pandemic levels at this stage.  

 
2.1.52 The Government indicated that additional support would be made available to support councils 

with the increases in council tax support arising from the pandemic for 2021/22, although no 
further funding was made available from 2022/23. 
 

2.1.53 In addition, the Government continues to roll out universal credit, which will see Housing 
Benefit removed from our administration, as it will bring Housing Benefit together with other 
welfare support provided by the Government.  
 

2.1.54 At this stage, indications are that we will continue to have responsibility for providing Housing 
Benefit to those of pensionable age for the foreseeable future. 

 
2.1.55 Welfare reforms were expected to have a direct impact on our Housing Revenue Account. As 

additional caps to benefits are made and claimants transition to universal credit, we had 
expected it to become more difficult to collect rental income. However, rental collection has 
remained strong and the budgetary allowance for the annual top up to the bad debt provision 
has returned to previous levels.  

 
Council Tax 
 

2.1.56 The Government remains committed to its manifesto promise of council tax referendum 
principles. These principles aim to strike a balance between giving local authorities the 
flexibility to determine their own level of council tax and ensuring local residents have the final 
say on excessive increases. 
 

2.1.57 Historically, we froze Council Tax for seven consecutive years, followed by two £5 per annum 
increases, a 2.5% increase in 2019/20, a 1.5% increase in 2020/21, a 1.97% increase in 
2021/22 and a 2.26% increase in 2022/23. 
 

2.1.58 For 2023/24, the government has capped our increase in council tax by a maximum of 3% or 
£5 (whichever is greater). For our budget, we have set a £6.66 increase for 2023/24, equating 
to 2.97%. It is important to note this is significantly below the rate of inflation.  

 
2.1.59 Local government is being driven by central government to become more financially self-

sustainable and it is expected that local tax, fees and charges for services and other locally 
driven income sources will become more important. However, these referendum principles do 
act to restrict the level of self-sustainability we are able to achieve.  

 
 

Page 101



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

9 
 

Capital, Investments and Borrowing 
 

2.1.60 Our capital plans can have a direct impact on our revenue budget. Through spending reserves 
and capital balances on investment (such as regeneration and housing), we hold less cash, 
and therefore get less interest return.  
 

2.1.61 If we borrow to fund a capital project, we incur interest costs on this borrowing, and also have 
a duty to ensure repayment is affordable in the medium to longer-term. 
 

2.1.62 With capital projects, there may also be ongoing revenue costs (for example as maintenance 
of vehicles), or savings that need to be considered in the medium to longer-term context.  

 
2.1.63 We have previously raised all of our long-term borrowing from the PWLB. The government 

recently reversed its previous decision to increase new borrowing rates by 1%, which will 
continue to have a positive impact on our borrowing costs. 

Page 102



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

10 
 

2.2)  Revenue Forecasts and Assumptions 
 

General Fund 
 

2.2.1 Starting with our proposed 2023/24 budget, we have undertaken medium-term forecasts for 
our General Fund Revenue budget. We have used the following key assumptions, along with 
other known factors (such as one off items, our reserves strategy and any savings or growth 
already identified in budget reports for future years): 

 

 Assumption 
 

Grant Funding (2.1.3 
onwards) 

Revenue Support Grant received only for newly consolidated 
grants 
 
Complete removal of New Homes Bonus and Services Grant 
2024/25. Removal of Funding guarantee from 2025/26 
 
Transitional protection assumed for one year in 2025/26 of 
£600k 

Business Rates (2.1.3 
onwards) 

Reset of Business Rates Baseline in 2025/26– current values 
assumed excluding pool arrangements and historic growth 
 

Inflation / Contracts 
(2.1.11 onwards) 

Contracts inflated by contractual inflation 
 
Income and general costs inflated by CPI 
 
Fuel and utilities inflated by 10% 

Pay and Pensions 
(2.1.31 onwards) 

Pay inflated by 3.5% year 1, 3% in the following years 
 
No change to pensions contribution rate until 2026/27 where 1% 
has been assumed 
 
Stepped increases to base budget to fund next triennial review 
due to impact from 2026/27 

Welfare Support 
(2.1.38 onwards) 

All costs associated with welfare reform will be met by the 
Government 
 
Changes to Council Tax Support have been included in the 
council tax base.  

Council Tax (2.1.43 
onwards) 
 

Growth in housing numbers by 1% per annum  
 
Increase in charge by 3% in 2024/25, £5 in 2025/26 and 1.5% in 
2026/27 

Borrowing and 
Investments (2.1.47-
49 and 2.1.11 
onwards) 

Average Investment Income Rate 2% (excluding CCLA property 
fund) 
 
New Borrowing Rate 5% over the three year plan 

 
2.2.2 The forecasts based on these assumptions, shown in table 2.2a, indicate a savings 

requirement of £2.125m in 2024/25, rising to a cumulative £5.730m over the term of the 
forecasting period.   

 

Page 103



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

11 
 

2.2.3 We have already embarked on a number of projects and programmes to support the delivery 
of these challenging targets (section 2.3), but additional efficiencies will need to be identified 
in order to continue to deliver a balanced budget.  

 
Table 2.2a - General Fund Forecasts 

 

  

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Forecast 

2025/26 
Forecast 

2026/27 
Forecast 

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 

     

Cost Of Services     

Employees 15,809  16,435  16,831  17,268  

Premises 5,426  5,787  6,043  6,275  

Supplies and Services 4,690  4,974  5,153  5,308  

Transport 47  50  51  52  

Third Party Payments 13,540  14,352  14,926  15,374  

Transfer Payments 27,607  27,607  27,607  27,607  

Income (46,001) (46,631) (46,967) (47,267) 

Net Recharge to HRA (6,350) (6,731) (7,000) (7,210) 

Net Cost of Services 14,369 15,444 16,444 17,408 

Impact of previous savings   (2,125) (4,534) 

Revised Net Cost of Services 14,369 15,444 14,320 12,874 

     

Other Income and Expenditure     

Income from Council Tax (12,087) (12,570) (12,979) (13,303) 

Business Rates Retention (3,950) (4,069) (3,000) (3,090) 

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 2,579 843 0 0 

New Homes Bonus Grant (288) 0 0 0 

Funding Guarantee Grant (616) (616) 0 0 

Other Grants (254) (150) 0 0 

Funding – Transitional Protection Assumption 0 0 (600) 0 

Interest Income  (200) (200) (130) (30) 

Capital Financing (Leases, contributions to 
capital, interest, minimum revenue provision) 

2,131 2,531 2,687 2,7780 

Parish Precepts 1,966 2,045 2,111 2,164 

Contributions to/(from) Collection Fund 
Reserves 

(2,579) (843) 0 0 

Contributions from other Earmarked 
Reserves 

(857) (690) (401) 0 

Total Other Income and Expenditure (13,755) (13,319) (11,911) (11,479) 

     

Budget Gap (Single Year) 614 2,125  2,210  1,395  

Budget Gap (Cumulative)  2,125  4,335  5,730 

Page 104



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

12 
 

2.2.4 Due to the level of uncertainty in the economy, additional scenarios have been modelled, to 
give an indication of the impacts of upside and downside risks to the assumptions made. 
 

2.2.5 The upside risk scenario shows the impact if inflation is not as high as anticipated, although 
this is a highly unlikely scenario. 

 
2.2.6 This includes reductions to all forecast rates, including a 2.5% assumption for employee costs, 

3.5% for borrowing rates, 4% general inflation reducing to 3%, and 6% on utilities reducing to 
4%. 

 
2.2.7 It also includes more favourable assumptions on the business rates reset not taking place over 

the life of the MTFS. 
 

  

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Forecast 

2025/26 
Forecast 

2026/27 
Forecast 

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 

Budget Gap (Single Year) 614 1,104 1,213 379 

Budget Gap (Cumulative)  1,104 2,317 3,443 

 
 

2.2.8 The downside risk scenario shows the impact if inflation is greater than anticipated, and this is 
a more likely scenario than the upside risk scenario given the recent economic turmoil. 
 

2.2.9 This includes increase to all forecast rates, including a 4.5% assumption for employee costs, 
6.5% for borrowing rates, 10% general inflation reducing to 6%, and 50% on utilities reducing 
to 10%. 

 
2.2.10 It also includes more adverse assumptions on the business rates reset taking place and the 

ending of other grant schemes with no transitional protections. 
 

  

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Forecast 

2025/26 
Forecast 

2026/27 
Forecast 

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 

Budget Gap (Single Year) 614 4,329 2,998 1,812 

Budget Gap (Cumulative)  4,329 7,327 9,139 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

13 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
  

2.2.11 For the Housing Revenue Account, due to the longer-term basis of investment in housing, we 
undertake 30-year planning and forecasting. This is in line with the wider housing sector, and 
the focus is on the affordability of investment and new build housing rather than meeting 
savings targets. We do however continue to monitor and review the services provided to 
ensure these continue to deliver best value.  
 

2.2.12 Based upon the proposed 2023/24 budget and other known factors (such as one-off items, our 
reserves strategy and any savings or growth already identified in budget reports for future 
years), we have undertaken forecasts for our HRA using the following key assumptions: 

 

 Assumption 
 

Inflation / Contracts Contracts inflated by contractual inflationary indices 
 
Income and general costs inflated by CPI 
 
Fuel inflated by 10% 
 

Pay and Pensions Average pay inflated by 3.5% per annum, reducing to 3% 
increases from year 2 
 
No change to pensions contribution rate 
 

Housing Rent 
 

Following rent cap of 7% a return to CPI + 1%  

Borrowing Average borrowing rate of 5% over the 30-year plan 
 

Investment 
 

Investing in stock based upon conditions survey and our minimum 
housing standards 
 
Continuing to replace sold Right to Buy properties through new 
development and/or purchase of properties.  
  

 
2.2.13 The main expenditure activities of the HRA are in relation to the management, repairs, 

maintenance and investment into our social housing. 
 

2.2.14 The forecasts based on these assumptions, shown in table 2.2b, demonstrate that we will be 
able to maintain our HRA reserves in line with our reserves policy (Annex A). Based on the 
longer forecasts, debt is expected to be repaid within a 29-year period, within the remit of the 
30-year plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

14 
 

 
Table 2.2b – Housing Revenue Account Forecasts 
 
 

  

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Forecast 

2025/26 
Forecast 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    

Income    

Rental Income (55,920) (59,583) (52,537) 

Non Dwelling Rents (435) (451) (465) 

Charges for Services and Facilities (3,412) (3,633) (3,769) 

Other Income (269) (285) (294) 

Total Income (60,036) (63,953) (67,065) 

    

Expenditure    

Repairs and Maintenance 11,844 12,383 12,922 

Management, Special Service and Rates/Taxes 18,029 18,287 18,892 

Allowance for Doubtful Debt 490 565 602 

Depreciation 16,602 17,470 17,911 

Other Expenditure 18 31 32 

Total Revenue Expenditure 46,983 48,736 50,539 

    

Other Items of Income and Expense    

Interest Payable 8,120 10,927 12,760 

Interest Received (78) (147) (141) 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 4,769 4,241 3,391 

Net (surplus)/deficit (242) (196) (155) 

  
 
   

  

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Forecast 

2025/26 
Forecast 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    

HRA Reserves    

Opening HRA Balance 2,759 3,001 3,197 

Net (deficit)/surplus 242 196 155 

Closing HRA Balance 3,001 3,197 3,353 

Page 107



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

15 
 

 

2.3)  Revenue Strategies and Efficiency Programmes 
 

2.3.1 Our current forecasts show a budget gap of £2.125m along with planned use of reserves to 
support the collection fund deficits. If the council were not to put robust plans in place to 
address this gap, reserves would fall below the recommended minimum balance. This 
section sets out how we plan to deliver efficiencies to deliver a balanced budget.  
 

2.3.2 We have embarked on a range of projects and programmes which will support us to deliver 
our aims and also support the delivery of a balanced budget. Principally these focus on the 
General Fund, although our Modernisation Programme will deliver efficiencies for both 
revenue funds.  

 
2.3.3 In addition to these, there are numerous strategies and policies which are reviewed on an 

annual basis which can be used to help us drive efficiencies. 
 

Transformation Programme 
 
2.3.4 In 2019, following a very positive Local Government Association Peer Challenge report and 

recommendations, our chief executive set out a vision to all staff on the modernisation and 
transformation of our services. A suite of strategic, medium-term projects are underway to 
change the way we work and deliver services, including our customer services strategy and 
digital strategy. These various streams of work will not only improve the services we deliver 
but also generate efficiencies in the way we deliver them.  
 

2.3.5 A large number of the efficiencies were included in the 2021/22 budget from this 
programme, and these savings continue to be delivered. Further reviews have been 
undertaken and the targets for these were included in the 2022/23 budget, along with some 
target for future years in the MTFS period.  

 
2.3.6 The programme is now being reset and a new Transformation Strategy is being launched. 

This will bring together the councils Customer Strategy, Digital Strategy and Workforce 
Strategy to set the direction for change in the coming years. A number of key projects have 
been identified and an action plan has been drafted for the coming year.  

 
Baseline Reset 

 
2.3.7 A baseline budget reset was undertaken for the 2020/21 budget following a historic trend of 

underspends. This review involved reviewing the average spend for the previous three 
years, and resetting budgets based on need. This review will form part of a rolling 
programme of budget reviews in the future, but savings would not be anticipated of the same 
level in future years.  
 

2.3.8 Although not to the same scale as the efficiencies released in 2020/21, further savings were  
released under this strategy in the 2022/23 budget, and for the 2023/24 budget.  

 
 

Local Plan 
 
2.3.9 We are in the process of reviewing our local plan, which will identify key sites for future 

housing and employment developments.  The plan will impact on housing numbers in the 
area, therefore affecting council tax and grant income. It will also impact on employment 
developments, affecting business rates.  

 

Page 108



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

16 
 

Asset Management Strategy / Property Development 
 
2.3.10 We will be updating our asset management strategy after the corporate plan has been 

updated, which will assist us to drive value from our assets, both revenue and capital, which 
will support in delivering the required efficiencies. 
 

2.3.11 In addition, we will be continuing to drive forward with the redevelopment and regeneration 
of council owned sites identified in the asset management strategy and local plan. This will 
in turn increase asset value, revenue/capital returns, and council tax and business rates 
generation. 

 
2.3.12 Recent asset condition surveys have been completed and have identified works required in 

future years. A planned programme of works was developed over 2022/23, and has been 
incorporated into the 2023/24 budget.  

 
Crematorium 

 
2.3.13 We have embarked on a project to deliver a crematorium with the borough to help meet the 

bereavement demands of the area.  This project continues to progress, and in addition to 
meeting service demands, it will also generate income which will help us meet our efficiency 
targets. Income targets have been included in the MTFS forecasts.  

 
Contracts 

 
2.3.14 As a number of our large contracts come towards an end, we will take the opportunity to 

undertake market testing and analysis to understand if outsourcing these services still offers 
the best value for money. We will consider all options for these services, including delivering 
directly, outsourcing, and shared services.  
 

2.3.15 In particular the Sorpa Steria contract is ending in 2022/23, and options appraisals have 
been completed for these. The insourcing of the contact centre has generated savings for 
the 2023/24 budget, and continued outsourcing of Revenues and Benefits has a savings 
target attributed to it in the 2023/24 budget. Work is ongoing on ICT and any savings 
generated will be released for the 2024/25 budget, as additional transition costs are 
anticipated in 2023/24.   

 
Financial Planning Framework 
 

3.1.1 Our growth and savings are reviewed and approved in line with our Financial Planning 
Framework (Annex D), which includes reviewing proposals against our corporate objectives. 
 
Fees and Charges 

 
2.3.16 As part of our budget setting process, we maintain a fees and charges strategy which 

provides the key principles behind the setting of fees and charges (Annex B). In general, 
the key principles are: 

 

• We will charge users for services, where we have the power to do so 

• We will aim to recover the cost of services through fees and charges 

• We will be transparent and be able to justify when there is a policy decision not 
charge or fully recover the cost of a service 

 
Risk Management 

Page 109



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

17 
 

 
2.3.17 Risk Management is a key feature of our financial planning process. We are aware of the 

need for effective risk management and consider the assessment and minimisation of risk 
to be vital. We have a Risk Management Strategy in place, and our financial risks are 
assessed in line with our overall approach to risk management. 

 
2.3.18 To mitigate risk we monitor our spend and income against budgets, and use performance 

and risk management software to monitor and report on risks and key indicators which have 
financial implications.  

 
2.3.19 We report quarterly to Cabinet and to Performance Clinics, which provides the platforms for 

Members to scrutinise our financial and non-financial performance and risks. 
 
2.3.20 As part of determining our minimum reserves (working balances), we undertake a high-level  

assessment on the risks we have identified in our MTFS. This informs our reserves policy. 
A summary showing the potential impact of some of the key risks we have identified is 
shown in the following table: 

 

Risk Scenario 
 

Impact 
(£m) 

Business 
Rates 

Significant economic downturn, loss of businesses 
located in the Borough and high level of appeals 
(Maximum impact) 
 

1.80 

Council Tax Economic downturn adversely impacts development of 
new housing and 10% increase in Council Tax Support 
 

0.25 

Inflation Salary and contract inflation greater that budgeted by 
2% 
 

0.50 

Borrowing Changes in economy adversely impact borrowing rates 
by 1% 
 

0.25 

Efficiencies We fail to deliver our budgeted savings 
 

2.53 

Utilities Increase in utilities of 50% - high uncertainty around 
costs 

1.10 

Income Impact to income from cost of living crisis. 5 % of 
income 

1.60 

 
Reserves Policy 

 
2.3.21 Our Reserves Policy (Annex A) sets out how we will maintain an adequate level of reserves 

for future risks and uncertainties, and how we will use our earmarked reserves to help us 
achieve our objectives (such as through funding a one off invest to save project).  In 
summary: 
 

• We will report annually on the adequacy of our reserves  

• We will maintain a minimum working balance on the General Fund of between 5% 
and 15% of turnover (excluding benefit grant income). 

• We will maintain a minimum working balance on the HRA of 5% of turnover 

• We will ensure reserves are monitored and reported on regularly 
 

Page 110



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

18 
 

Capital Costs 
 
2.3.22 Our Capital Forecasts and Strategy (section 3) sets out our approach to how we determine 

what we spend on capital projects, and how these assessed for revenue implications.   
 

2.3.23 Our Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (Annex C) sets out how we determine the most 
efficient and affordable way to repay our borrowing.  

 
2.3.24 Our Treasury Management Strategy (Annex F) and Investment Strategy (Annex E) ensure 

we take a risk based approach to the management of our cash, investments and borrowing, 
balancing risk against return/cost. 

 
Council Tax 

 
2.3.25 We set our council tax increases on an annual basis as part of our budget setting process. 

For the purposes of forecasting, a 3%% increase has been assumed for 2024/25 and £5 for 
2025/26. However, we may decide to increase at a different level when setting the budget, 
to help meet our challenging targets, subject to Government caps. 

Page 111



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

19 
 

3 Capital Forecasts and Strategy  
 

Capital expenditure is what we spend on assets, such as property, vehicles, buildings and 
software, which will last more than one year. For local councils, it can also include spend on 
assets owned by others, such as grants to voluntary organisations made for capital 
purposes.  

 

3.1)  Summary and Approach 
 
3.1.1 Our Capital Forecasts and Strategy provide a high-level overview of how our capital 

expenditure, financing and treasury activities contribute to our overall financial position, and 
how they contribute to the delivery of our services.   
 

3.1.2 A key aspect of our capital activities is ensuring we have clear risk management processes 
and indicators in place to inform robust decisions, and to understand the implications of any 
decisions on our longer-term financial sustainability.  

 
3.1.3 We maintain a register of our assets and key components, which along with our asset 

management strategy, helps to inform future capital expenditure requirements and capital 
income opportunities.  

 
3.1.4 Our budgets are set and approved in line with our Financial Planning Framework (Annex D), 

and expenditure is capitalised in line with international accounting standards, the CIPFA code 
of conduct and our own accounting policies (which are published in our annual statement of 
accounts).  

 
3.1.5 As with our revenue accounts, we maintain separate capital records for our General Fund and 

our Housing Revenue Account assets. 
 

Economic and Market Conditions 
 

3.1.6 As outlined in our revenue summary, there continues to be extreme uncertainty in economic 
and market conditions, particularly with the ongoing impacts of the pandemic and the more 
recent cost of living crisis.  

 
3.1.7 Sudden and material changes in market and economic conditions can potentially have 

significant impacts on the Councils capital programme.  
 

3.1.8 There is a possibility that supplies may be inflated due to the current conditions, and that there 
may be additional costs associated with social distancing and having covid-secure welfare 
facilities for construction projects. Increases continue to be seen in materials such as steel and 
concrete. 

 
3.1.9 Increases in inflation can directly impact the cost of delivery of a capital project and increase 

our borrowing requirements. 
 

3.1.10 Such increases, along with changes in the housing market, could make some of our planned 
schemes unviable to deliver, and should material changes arise above contingencies, a 
reassessment of viability would be undertaken.  

 
3.1.11 We mitigate these risks where possible, by taking professional market advice, ensuring 

inflation is applied to future capital schemes in our programme, and build in a risk-based 
contingency to our capital projects.  

 

Page 112



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

20 
 

3.2)  Capital Forecasts and Assumptions 
 

3.2.1 A summary of our capital expenditure forecasts including rephasing from 2022/23 are as 
follows: 
  

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 
  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

General Fund (GRF) 7.895 1.971 1.869 3.324 4.958 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 65.160 50.336 38.253 40.246 39.227 

Total 73.055 52.307 40.122 43.570 44.185 

 
3.2.2 The majority of spend in our general fund is in relation to regeneration and operation property 

projects, and for the delivery of new affordable housing in our HRA. A detailed list of our capital 
projects can be found in our budget pack, published on our website by April each year.  
 

3.2.3 We have a range of sources available to us to finance our capital expenditure. These include 
grant receipts, income from the sale of assets, contributions from our revenue balances 
(including depreciation), and borrowing. We determine the financing for expenditure as part of 
our budget setting process. 

 
3.2.4 A large proportion of the financing for our HRA, comes from a statutory process for the sale of 

our housing to tenants (the Right to Buy scheme). We have assumed 40 sales per year. 
 

3.2.5 The tables below show our forecasts for the financing of our capital expenditure.  
 

General Fund 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

Grants and Contributions 0.592 0.592 0.592 0.592 0.592 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

6.109 0.897 0.811 0.841 0.811 

Borrowing 15.613 1.901 1.885 3.310 4.974 

TOTAL 22.314 3.390 3.288 4.743 6.377 

 

Housing Revenue Account 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

RTB Receipts 8.943 3.754 2.690 3.083 3.083 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

24.170 24.812 25.279 27.016 25.669 

Borrowing 32.047 21.770 10.284 10.147 10.475 

TOTAL 65.160 50.336 38.253 40.246 39.227 

 
 

3.2.6 As shown in the tables above, we do finance some of our schemes through the use of 
borrowing. We can decide to postpone external borrowing and use our revenue reserves to 
support the cash flows of capital expenditure. This is known as internal borrowing and reduces 
the interest costs we incur on borrowing in the short to medium term. 
 
 

Page 113



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

21 
 

3.2.7 The total amount of cash required to fund the schemes we borrow for (whether internally or 
externally) is known as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). It is important that we 
monitor our requirement, as this will require repayment in the longer term, and we ensure we 
have strategies in place for repayment. Our CFR forecasts are as follows: 

 

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

General Fund 52.741 51.970 51.158 51.747 53.904 

Housing Revenue Account 290.432 312.202 322.487 332.634 344.191 

TOTAL CFR 343.173 364.172 373.645 384.381 398.095 

 
  
 
 

Page 114



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

22 
 

3.3)  Capital Strategies and Indicators 
 

3.3.1 In order to ensure our longer-term financial sustainability, and the affordability of our capital 
plans, we maintain numerous strategies and make use of indicators. These also help inform 
our decisions and monitor risk. 
 
Financial Planning Framework 
 

3.3.2 Our schemes are reviewed and approved in line with our Financial Planning Framework 
(appendix D), which includes the calculation and approval of our capital indicators on risk 
exposure and affordability. This ensures sound governance is embedded into our budgetary 
approval process. 
 
Financing Approach 
 

3.3.3 We will always seek to apply for and utilise grant funding, ringfenced funds and contributions 
received before utilising other unrestricted funds. This minimises the ongoing burden of 
borrowing, and maintains capital reserves where possible. 
 

3.3.4 We aim to restrict borrowing to income generating, or long-term assets (40+ years). This is 
also to minimise the ongoing impact of borrowing. 

 
3.3.5 We aim to fund the shorter-term projects, rolling programme and any other schemes from 

capital reserves and balances. We can also make a voluntary revenue contribution to capital, 
to reduce borrowing or to reduce the use of capital balances.  
 
Debt Repayment 
 

3.3.6 We must ensure that we set enough money aside each year, for the repayment of our CFR. 
There are different statutory arrangements that govern the requirements for our General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account.  
 

3.3.7 For the General Fund, we maintain a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (Annex C). 
This sets out how we will determine over what period we should set aside funds to fully repay 
our CFR.  

 
3.3.8 We will ensure that there is a balance between the cost of MRP and the affordability of debt, 

through the annual review of our MRP policy. Our general approach is to pay for an asset over 
its expected life, subject to the maximum statutory limits. 

 
3.3.9 The Housing Revenue Account makes annual repayments of debt, and the affordability is 

assessed as part of our thirty-year business plan. Our business plan shows debt repayment 
well within the thirty-year period, demonstrating the affordability of our plans. 

 
3.3.10 For the General Fund, in order to ensure affordability, we forecast and monitor the value of the 

minimum revenue provision (MRP). Based on our capital plans, our forecast of total MRP, and 
of the incremental impact of MRP, is shown in the table below: 

 

 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2025/26 2025/26 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Previous Years MRP 1.367 1.367 1.367 1.367 1.367 

Change in MRP (0.013) 0.041 0.066 0.090 0.186 

Total MRP   1,354  1,408 1,433 1,457 1,553 

 

Page 115



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

23 
 

3.3.11 Where we borrow to make investments into services, which do not have a direct financial return 
(for example the replacement of our fleet), overall affordability is monitored through the use of 
the following indicators: 

 

• Value: Cost of general fund borrowing in relation to total service income (income 
generating services, excluding community and commercial property)  

• Value: Cost of general fund borrowing in relation to council tax (non-income generating 
services) 

• Term: Years until debt free (Housing Revenue Account)  
 

Investments and Commercial Strategy 
 

3.3.12 We can undertake capital investment activities which will purely or partially generate a profit.  
 

3.3.13 However, we do not generally undertake activities which are purely for profit generation, as 
the main purpose of our capital investment activities are usually to meet our corporate 
objectives, which may or may not have a partial objective of generating profit. 

 
3.3.14 To ensure that we make robust and informed decisions, including a full understanding of risk, 

we will maintain an Investment Strategy (Annex E). 
 

3.3.15 In summary, where we undertake investment activities, we will ensure we maintain a suite of 
indicators to monitor against, ensure professional advice is taken where appropriate and 
ensure officers maintain their professional development.  

 
3.3.16 Our key indicators for investments and commercial activities are as follows: 

 

• Ratio: Loan to value / CFR to asset base (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Principal cover / MRP to income stream (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Interest Cover / Income to interest cost (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Interest Cover / Income to interest cost (Housing Company) 
 

3.3.17 Additional indicators to monitor performance (such as occupancy rates of community and 
commercial assets) are monitored as part of the Councils performance framework and 
reviewed annually.  
 
Treasury Management Strategy 

 
3.3.18 Our Treasury Management Strategy (Annex F) ensures we maintain sufficient and not 

excessive funds to meet our spending needs. It provides the framework for managing the risks 
involved with investing our surplus cash and borrowing for investment in services or for 
cashflow purposes. 
 

3.3.19 Our main priorities for the investment of cash balances are to ensure the security of our cash, 
and to maintain the appropriate level of liquidity to meet our needs. We give these objectives 
priority over the return on investment (interest income). 

 
3.3.20 Our main priorities when undertaking borrowing are to achieve a low but certain cost of finance, 

whilst retaining flexibility should plans change in the future. These objectives can be 
conflicting, and so we seek to strike a balance between short and long term borrowing. 

 
3.3.21 We formally report on our treasury management activities regularly (strategy setting, mid-year, 

and at year-end) and monitor against a set of indicators. These are: 
 

Page 116



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

24 
 

• Borrowing Limit – Operational Boundary 

• Borrowing Limit – Authorised Limit 

• Borrowing Limit – Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

• Investment Limit – Cash invested beyond one year 
 

3.3.22 This strategy also set out how we apportion interest costs and income between our revenue 
accounts, the limits with financial institutions and details our use of specialist advisors. 

 

Page 117



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

25 
 

4 Professional Advice, Skills, Training and Capacity 
 

In order to ensure we can enact our strategy and governance framework; we must ensure we 
have the correct skills and capacity to do so. This section applies to all areas of our medium-
term financial strategy and governance framework, including our policies, strategies and 
frameworks.  

 
4.1.1 We have professionally qualified staff across a range of disciplines, including finance, legal 

and property. 
 

4.1.2 We ensure our staff maintain continual professional development and attend courses to keep 
abreast of new developments and to enhance and develop their skills.  
  

4.1.3 We will ensure we have or procure the right skills and knowledge to support the delivery of our 
all of our financial strategies and governance frameworks. Where specialist or technical 
knowledge is required, we will engage professional external advisors. 

 
4.1.4 We establish project teams from the relevant professional disciplines as required but will also 

utilise external professional advice to support with technical/professional specialisms and/or 
capacity.  

 
4.1.5 External advice will always be sought for significant investments, including treasury 

investments (such as treasury advice), commercial investments (such as property, treasury 
and legal advice), or service investments (such as legal advice, market expert advice and 
treasury advice).  

 
4.1.6 Internal and external training is also available to our Members to ensure they have the up to 

date knowledge and expertise to understand and scrutinise financial decisions.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 118



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

26 
 

Annex A – Reserves Policy 
 

A1 This policy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets the 
minimum level of balances required, explains the different types of reserves held, and our 
governance arrangements.  

 
A2 The policy applies to both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account reserves, both 

revenue and capital. It is important that our Councillors understand the reserves policy and the 
importance of maintaining an adequate level of reserves when reviewing and approving our 
budget, which will be done with the advice of our Chief Financial Officer. 

 
A3 CIPFA guidelines were issued in November 2008 under LAAP Bulletin No. 77. The main areas 

covered in these guidelines are set out in this policy together with our approach to these. 
 

The Existing Legislative/Regulatory Framework  
 

A4 The requirement for financial reserves and safeguards are set out in in statute (Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and Local Government Act 2003). These requires us to have 
regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when 
calculating the budget requirement, and to ensure safeguards are in place, including:   
 

• Setting a balanced budget  

• Having the view of the Chief Finance Officer on the robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves when considering the budget requirement 

• Making arrangements for proper administration of our financial affairs, where the 
Chief Finance Officer is the responsible person (Section 151 duties) 

 
A5 The Chief Finance Officer must report (under section 114) to all our councillors if there is, or is 

likely to be, unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced budget. This would include situations where 
reserves have become seriously depleted and it is forecast that the authority will not have the 
resources to meet its expenditure in a particular financial year. The issue of a section 114 notice 
by the Chief Finance officer cannot be taken lightly and has serious operational implications.  

 
A6 Guidance on specific levels of reserves and balances is not given in statute, by CIPFA or the 

Auditors. There is no statutory minimum level of reserves. It is up to local authorities themselves 
to set their own level of reserves and balances on the advice of the Chief Finance Officer.  
 
The role of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

A7 Within the existing statutory and regulatory framework, it is the responsibility of the Section 151 
Officer to advise the Council about the level of reserves that it should hold and to ensure that 
there are clear protocols for their establishment and use. For the Council, the Section 151 Officer 
is the Head of Resources. 

 
A8 The Council then, acting on the advice of the Section 151 Officer, and taking into account all 

local circumstances, must make its own judgements on the level of reserves and balances.  
 
A9 Local circumstances include the strategic, operational and financial risks and the adequate and 

effective systems of internal control.  
 
A10 The Chief Finance Officer will report to the Council on the adequacy of reserves, and reserve 

movements will be considered as part of our budget monitoring arrangements. 
 

Page 119



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

27 
 

 
Types of Reserve 
 

A11 Usable reserves can be held for three main purposes:  
 

• Working Balances – These reserves help to cushion the impact of uneven cash flows, 
avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing, and provide funds for unexpected events or 
emergencies. 

• Earmarked Reserves – These are where funds are set aside for a future purpose such 
as to help deliver a long-term strategy, to change processes, or deliver specific one-
off projects. These future purposes can be very specific, or may be quite broad, 
dependant on the level of detail known when setting up a reserve.  

• Capital Reserves – These are where we keep the balance of an unutilised capital 
funds. These funds can be made up of capital receipts, contributions, grants and 
contributions from revenue.  

 
A12 We also hold other ‘un-useable’ reserves that arise out of legislation and accounting standards. 

These reserves are not cash backed and cannot be used for other purposes. These are 
separated on the face of our core financial statements which are published each year.  
 
Target Working Balances / Reserves 
 

A13 The principles used by the Chief Finance Officer to assess the adequacy of unallocated general 
reserves when setting the budget, ensure that account is taken of the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the authority.  

 
A14 Setting the level of reserves is just one of several interrelated decisions in the formulation of the 

medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) and the budget for a particular year.  
 
A15 Consideration is given to the key assumptions underpinning the budget alongside the authority’s 

financial management arrangements, and the risks, opportunities, economic and local factors 
identified in the MTFS. We also consider previous guidance issued by the Audit Commission. 

 
A16 For the General Fund, a risk-based approach is taken to estimate reserve requirements, which 

is then considered as a percentage of turnover. This provides a risk-based approach to short 
term reserve levels, and a proxy for our forecasts of medium-term reserve requirements.  

 
A17 For 2023/24, the minimum working balances have been assessed as £3.9m using a risk-based 

assessment, which equates to around 8.5% of turnover (excluding below the line items).  
 

A18 We may decide to make use of the working balances to help balance the budget in the short 
term, such as for one off expenditure, due to a delay to an efficiency proposal, or to reduce the 
level of working balances to target. However, working balances will not be utilised for recurrent 
expenditure without this being explicit in the budget report, and on the advice of the Chief 
Financial Officer.   

 
A19 For the Housing Revenue Account, due to the restricted nature of the funds, and lower exposure 

to as many risks, the target working balance is maintained as low as reasonably possible to 
minimise borrowing costs. On this basis, 5% of turnover is used, which supports cashflows, and 
provides a cushion for risk.  

 
 
 

Page 120



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

28 
 

Earmarked Reserves 
 

A20 Our earmarked reserve balances, the reason for holding these reserves, along with any 
budgeted contributions to and from these reserves, will be approved by Full Council as part of 
the annual budget setting process.  

 
A21 Additional contributions to and from these reserves may be made during the year, or at the end 

of the year, as approved by Full Council or under delegated authority as appropriate. 
 
A22 Priorities may also be identified as part of the budget setting process where reserves, or 

increases to reserves may be required. Should there be a favourable variance at year end these 
would be the first areas for consideration.  

 
A23 We will not create earmarked reserves for expenditure that should be treated as a provision, 

which is determined by accounting standards and the CIPFA code of practice on Local 
Government Accounting.  

 
A24 Earmarked Reserves which have delegated authority to spend against, are set out below. 

Drawdown from reserve not in line with original purposes, or which do not have delegated 
approval as set out below, will require supplementary estimates to be requested in line with the 
financial regulations: 

 

Reserve Delegated Approval 

  

Transformation Reserve (renamed from) 
Modernisation Reserve 

Transformation Board in consultation with 
the Leader and Executive Member for 
Resources 

Business Rates Retention Reserve Section 151 Officer in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Resources 

Grants and Contributions Reserve Section 151 Officer in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Resources 

Buildings Reserve Section 151 Officer in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Resources 

Climate Change Reserve Climate Change Member Group 

Commitments Reserve Section 151 Officer in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Resources 

Covid-19 Reserve Section 151 Officer in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Resources 

 
Capital Reserves 
 

A25 There is no target/minimum balance for capital reserves.  
 
A26 Capital receipts and contributions are restricted for capital use, and reserves are used in line 

with the capital financing strategies set out in the MTFS.  
 
A27 Consideration will be given to other financing methods to enable reserves to be utilised for future 

capital expenditure, while balancing the risk of investing and cost to carry. 
 
A28 We will consider the strategic disposal of assets to generate additional capital receipts where 

appropriate and will do this in line with our asset management strategy. 

 
 

Page 121



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

29 
 

 
Reporting and Governance Framework  
 

A29 The Chief Finance Officer has a duty to local taxpayers and must be satisfied that the decisions 
taken on balances and reserves represent proper stewardship of public funds. 

 
A30 Compliance with this policy assists the Chief Finance Officer to be satisfied that there are 

governance arrangements in place for our reserves. 
 
A31 The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council at its meetings to 

approve the annual budget and the final accounts. These decisions are informed by the advice 
and judgement of the Chief Finance Officer.  

 
A32 The budget report presented annually will include the budget for the next financial year will 

include a statement from the Chief Financial Officer on the adequacy of reserves over the 
lifetime of the medium-term financial strategy. 

 
A33 We actively monitor our budgets throughout the year, and we will report on any forecast changes 

in the level of balances or reserves.  
 
A34 Our annual statement of accounts includes a schedule of all reserves in the balance sheet. 

Significant reserve movements are explained in the Chief Finance Officer’s foreword to the 
accounts and out-turn reports.  

 

Page 122



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

30 
 

Annex B – Fees and Charges Strategy 
 

B1 This Strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to setting our fees and charges.  

 
B2 A significant proportion of our income is derived from fees and charges and a balance has to be 

struck between meeting our statutory responsibilities and the subsidies we provide for 
discretionary services. Our strategy has three core underlying principles: 
 

• We will raise income from users of services wherever there is a power/duty to do so 

• Income raised should cover the full costs of providing the service, and will rise 
annually 

• Any departures from this policy must be justified with reference to the Council’s 
priorities and policies 

 
Raising Income for Services 
 

B3 We believe that raising charges to recover costs is preferable to removing a service completely, 
and we aim to recover costs of services from the users of those services, unless there are wider 
benefits for funding a service in another way. 

 
B4 Statutory defined fees and charges will change in line with the governing legislation.  
 
B5 We will approve a full list of fees and charges at Full Council as part of our budget setting 

process, which will be published.  
 
B6 Concessionary charges may be set for a service and will be appropriate to the circumstances 

of the customer while encouraging increased participation for less advantaged groups. This 
should not lead to unjustifiable preferential treatment. 
 
Covering Service Cost 
 

B7 We will aim to recover the full cost of services through the collection of fees and charges, 
including overheads, where it is possible to do so.  

 
B8 Our fees and charges will increase at least in line with inflation unless there is a clear reason for 

an alternative approach. 
 
B9 Consideration will be given to local circumstances, economic conditions, comparability/ 

benchmarking, the impact of changes on the usage of the service and the user’s ability to pay.  
 
Departures from Policy 
 

B10 When we do not raise income in areas where we have the power to do so, we forego the 
opportunity to cover the cost of the service, which will increase our savings targets. 

 
B11 Members will scrutinise fees and charges and will be supplied with information to allow them to 

make decisions in a structured and explicit manner. Any decision to forego income or to 
subsidise a service is considered a policy decision. 
 

Page 123



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

31 
 

Annex C – Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
 

C1 This Strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to determining how we will efficiently and prudently set aside funds for the 
repayment of our borrowing.  

 
C2 Where we finance General Fund capital expenditure through debt, we must also ensure we  

put aside resources to repay that debt in future years. 
 
C3 An amount is charged to the revenue account on an annual basis for this, and this is known as 

the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  
 
C4 In determining how much we should set aside each year, we must have regard to the guidance 

issued by the Government and the Local Government Act. The most recent guidance was 
issued in 2018 by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government. The 
government is currently consulting on changes to the legislation and representation has been 
made by the council. 

 
C5 In order to ensure a prudent and efficient approach is taken to the repayment of debt, we will 

align the period of MRP charges to the period of which the capital expenditure/asset provides 
benefit. 

 
C6 The guidance requires us to produce this annual statement/policy each year and sets out a 

number of options for determining an MRP charge. Our policy on charging MRP is as follows: 
 

• We will adopt the Asset Life method for the calculation of our MRP, where the charge is 
calculated to reflect the life of the asset. 

 

• We will calculate MRP on a straight-line basis, where an equal instalment is made each year, 
and this charge will go to the repayment of external debt, or to the balance sheet to reduce the 
level of capital financing requirement. 

 

• We will not charge MRP in the year of purchase/scheme completion. MRP will be charged from 
the following financial year. 

 

• For capital expenditure loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more frequent 
instalments of principal, we will follow the government guidance on MRP, applying capital 
repayments against MRP where allowed to do so. 

 
 

Page 124



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

32 
 

Annex D – Financial Planning Framework 
 

D1 This Framework supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to how we will determine our budget priorities, how we will assess budget 
changes, and our governance process.  

  
D2 When setting our budget, we start with our medium-term strategy, which includes all previously 

known factors and assumptions. We then take into account any changes to our plans based on 
the outturn of the most recent financial year. Outlined in the table below are the key stages 
involved in producing the budget: 
 

June We agree our strategic priorities for the next year. 
 
Cabinet approves the framework for the budget setting process for the 
following year. 
 

July/August Budget setting guidance if issued to our senior officers.  
 
Officers are then asked to submit bid forms which outlines any proposals 
they are recommending for incorporation into our budgets, including 
capital projects, efficiencies and growth. 
 

September / 
October 

We update our medium-term financial forecasts to reflect the new bids 
submitted and/or amendments made to existing bids.  
 
All of the bids are reviewed by the Section 151 officer to ensure that the 
bids submitted have complied with the approved budget guidance. 
 

October / 
November  

All bids are then challenged and scrutinised by the Corporate Management 
Team, before discussion with for comments and recommendations.  
 

December The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement is announced by 
the government (this indicates the levels of funding we will receive and any 
policy decisions that may change our budgets). 
 

January Our draft capital and revenue budgets are presented to Cabinet and to 
Overview Scrutiny Committee for consideration. 
 
Growth, savings and capital bids are considered against our priorities, 
and the impact on affordability and risk indicators considered.  
 
Any budget consultation with the public and/or business rates payers is 
also analysed and fed into the budget decision process. 
 

February Full Council approves next financial year’s council tax, capital and 
revenue budget, and new Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Financial 
Governance Framework.  
 

April The new financial year commences, and the budget approved is then 
assessed under the monitoring process. 

Page 125



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

33 
 

Annex E – Investment Strategy 
 

E1  This policy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. It 
ensures we fully understand and consider the risks and opportunities of commercial and service-
based investments.   

 
E2. It sets out our approach to investing money, specifically in relation these commercial and service 

investment activities. 
 
E3 Service based investment activities covers us lending money to, or buying shares in, other 

organisations. 
 
E4 Commercial investment activities cover property and other similar investments to where 

profit/return is the main purpose of the investment.  
  

E5 Investments made for treasury management activities (surplus cash arising from day to day 
activities and cash-flows), are covered separately by the council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy (Annex F). 

 
E6 We will ensure we have professionally qualified staff, and make use of external professional 

advice where appropriate, as set out in our MTFS. 
 

Service Based Investments - Loans 
 
E7 We have a number of loan arrangements with local charities, residents, its joint venture and its 

employees to support local public services and stimulate economic growth and provide 
affordable housing.  

 
E8 Our wholly owned company, Now Housing, which will be providing affordable housing in the 

Borough, started trading in quarter 3 of 2020/21. We do not plan to provide any additional loans 
to the company in 2023/24. 

 
E9 These loans are treated as capital expenditure. The main risks associated with service loans, is 

that the borrower will be unable to repay the principal amount lent and/or interest due. In order 
to limit the risk, and exposure remains appropriate and proportionate, limits are set. 

 
E10 We will set these limits giving consideration to the financial risks, an assessment of the demand 

for such services, our risk appetite and professional advice received. A summary of our loans 
for service purposes, and limits are shown in the table below: 
 

  2021/22 actual 2022/23 2023/24 

Category of borrower 
Balance 
Owing  

Loss 
Allowance 

Net 
Figure in 
accounts 

Forecast 
Balance Limit 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Joint Venture 107   107 107 172 

Local Charities 97   97 81 114 

Local residents 4,202   4,024 4,328 4,761 

Employees 41   41 21 500 

Now Housing 2,127 36 2,091 0 0 

Total 6,574 36 6,538 4,537 5,547 

 

Page 126



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

34 
 

 
 

E11 We are required through accounting standards to set aside a loss allowance for loans, to reflect 
the likelihood of non-payment. We make every reasonable effort to recover sums lent and have 
appropriate credit control arrangements in place.  

 
E12 Loans to residents shown in the table, are for the rent to mortgage scheme, which in no longer 

in operation. Although not in operation, balances are still collectable, and a charge is made 
against the relevant properties which ensures recovery when the asset is sold. There is 
therefore minimal risk with non-recovery. 

  
E13 In relation to the Housing Company, debt is secured against the property owned by the 

company.  
 
E14 In making loans, we will ensure we fully consider risk implications, both on the individual loan, 

and the cumulative exposure to risk. 
 
E15 We will ensure that full due diligence is undertaken, that security is in place where appropriate, 

and that loans are actively monitored.  
 
E16 Any business case will set out the benefits and risks of the investment and will require approval 

in line with our constitution and approved policies.  
 
E17 To monitor the exposure risks associated with service-based investments, we will report the 

following information: 
 

• Total service investments made 

• Ratio of Cost to Returns (Cost of borrowing against returns generated) 
 
Commercial Property Investments 
 

E18 We hold a small portfolio of local commercial property, purely for the intention of generating a 
profit to support local services. These assets are historical asset holdings, and have no debt 
associated with them. 

 
E19 These properties are defined as investment properties, and per international accounting 

standard 40, and had a value as at the 31 March 2022 of £6.020m, generating around £243k 
per annum in rental income, which supports the delivery of local services. 

 
E20 While we have no plans to invest in further property, purely for financial return, we monitor our 

existing commercial property investments.  
  
E21 We consider property investment to be secure, if its accounting value is the same as, or higher 

than its purchase price including taxes and transaction costs.  
 
E22 We review our investment property valuations each year to monitor the risk of fluctuations in 

value.  
 
E23 We also monitor the net rental income generated by our property investments to identify trends, 

as reductions in market rent could point to a fall in property value.  
 
E24 If we wish to undertake further investment in property purely for financial return, we will ensure 

full due diligence is carried out, professional advice is obtained, and a business case presented 
weighing up the risks and benefits. Consideration will be given to liquidity (assets of this type 

Page 127



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

35 
 

are harder to convert back to cash at short notice) and of the wider property market. Any 
investments of this type would require budget approval from Full Council and would prevent the 
council from undertaking borrowing from the public works loan board, so would be unlikely to 
be recommended. 

 
Service Based Property Investments 
 
E25 In addition to the property we hold purely for commercial returns, we also hold a large portfolio 

of assets for service reasons, and these assets also generate returns for the Council. Such 
assets include town centre and neighbourhood centre retail units, car parks, community assets 
and business centres.  

 
E26 These properties had a (gross book) value as at 31 March 2022 of £80.068m, generating around 

£6.731m per annum in rental income, and had £28.139m of debt associated with them. 
 
E27 Whilst the primary purpose of holding these assets is not financial return, they do face similar 

risks to those assets held purely for financial return.  
 
E28 For this reason, we make use of three ratios to help us monitor risks for the community and 

commercial asset portfolio. These indicators are: 
 

• Loan to value (Capital Financing Requirement related to these assets, compared to 
the value of the assets) 

• Principal cover (Minimum Revenue Provision Charge in relation to these assets, 
compared to the net income stream generated from these assets) 

• Interest Cover (Income derived from these assets divided by the interest cost 
associated with these assets) 

 
 
  

 
 
  
 

Page 128



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

36 
 

Annex F – Treasury Management Strategy 
 

F1.1  This strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. 
It ensures we appropriately manage and protect our cash balances and carefully manage our 
borrowing to support our activities.   

 
F1.2 Treasury Management is the management of our cash flows, borrowing and investments and 

associated risks. This activity involves substantial sums of money and therefore exposes us to 
financial risks such as loss of funds and impacts from changing interest rates.  

 
F1.3 The successful identification, monitoring and control of these risks are therefore central to 

prudent financial management. 
 
F1.4 Our treasury risk management is conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 
Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code), which requires the approval of a treasury management 
strategy before the start of each year.  

 
 F1.5 Our strategy also fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

have regard to the CIPFA Code. It ensures we fully understand and consider the risks and 
opportunities of commercial and service-based investments.   

 
Balance sheet summary and forecast 
 

F2.1 To take a view on likely treasury activity in 2023/24 it is necessary to look at the Council’s 
balance sheet to estimate the level of funds available for investment purposes and any 
borrowing requirements, as shown in the forecast closing balances table below: 

 
 Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast 
  

  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

General Fund CFR 40.857 52.745 52.741 51.970 51.158 51.747 53.904 

Now Housing CFR 2.437 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

HRA CFR 245.823 258.385 290.432 312.202 322.487 332.634 344.191 

Total CFR 289.117 311.131 343.173 364.172 373.645 384.381 398.095 

Less: Other debt 
liabilities 

(2.302) (2.284) (2.266) (2.248) (2.230) (2.212) (2.194) 

Loans CFR 286.815 308.847 340.907 361.924 371.415 382.169 395.901 

Less: Existing 
borrowing 

(242.323) (249.147) (221.762) (194.543) (165.624) (134.905) (103.686) 

Under/(Over) 
borrowing 

44.492 59.700 119.145 167.381 205.791 247.264 292.215 

Less: Usable 
reserves 

(45.655) (35.737) (37.469) (35.173) (33.678) (31.491) (21.070) 

Less: Working capital 0.000 (3.000) (3.000) (3.000) (3.000) (3.000) (3.000) 

New Borrowing 
(Cumulative) 

(43.024) (48.286) (117.032) (164.602) (203.087) (243.734) (286.291) 

New Borrowing 
(cumulative - Now 
Housing) 

(2.437) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Investments  46.624 27.324 38.356 35.394 33.974 30.962 18.146 

 

Page 129



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

37 
 

 

 
F2.2 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR), while balance sheet resources are the underlying sums available for 
investment.  The Council’s has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but 
minimal investments and will therefore be required to borrow up to £286m over the forecast 
period. This will also cover replacing maturing loans. 

 
F2.3  CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that an 

Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast over the next three years, 
Table 1 shows that the Council expects to comply with this recommendation during 
2023/24. 

 
F2.4 The liability benchmark is effectively the net borrowing requirement of a local authority plus 

a liquidity allowance and shows the lowest risk level of borrowing.  The objective of the 
liability benchmark is to show the optimum level of borrowing in order to ensure appropriate 
funding and liquidity for both longer term projects and short term cashflow needs. This 
assumes the same forecasts as in Table 1 above, but that cash and investment balances 
are kept to a minimum level of £10m at each year end to maintain sufficient liquidity but 
minimise credit risk.   Table 2 shows the figures and they are also produced in graphical 
format below.  

 
 Table 2: Prudential Indicator – Liability benchmark 
 

  

31.3.22 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

£m £m £m £m £m 

Loans CFR 286.815 308.846 340.907 361.924 371.415 

Less: Balance Sheet 
Resources 

(45.662) (38.737) (40.469) (38.173) (36.678) 

Net Loans requirement 241.153 270.109 300.438 323.751 334.737 

Plus: liquidity allowance 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 

Liability Benchmark 251.153 280.109 310.438 333.751 344.737 

 

Page 130



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

38 
 

 

 
 
 

 Interest rate forecasts 
 

F3.1 Another factor to consider when setting a treasury management strategy is the forecast for 
interest rates. The rates assumed are set out in our MTFS (section 2.1), which are provided by 
our treasury management advisors, Arlingclose. 

 
Borrowing Strategy 

 
F4.1 Objectives: The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately 

low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over 
the period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s 
long-term plans change is a secondary objective. 

 
F4.2 Strategy: Whether external borrowing is taken out depends on the level of cash balances held 

by the Council, and forecasts relating to this are set out in section F2.1.   
 
F4.3 We manage and monitor our cash position to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet all 

requirements, taking advice from the Council’s treasury advisors Arlingclose Ltd in relation to 
timing and structure of borrowing. This may be through utilising cash balances held by the 
Council (internal borrowing) in the short or medium term.  With short-term interest rates currently 
much lower than long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either 
use internal resources, or undertake short-term borrowing instead. By using internal resources 
the Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs and reduce overall treasury risk. 

 
F4.4 When required and prudent, the Council will borrow externally from external bodies (such as the 

Government through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets). Although all 
long term borrowing to date is from the PWLB, the Council will consider other sources in order 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45 47 49

Liability Benchmark

Existing loans Loans CFR Net loans requirement Liability Benchmark

Page 131



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

39 
 

to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source of funding in line with the CIPFA 
code. 

 
F4.5 We may borrow in advance of need to take advantage of low interest rates, if deemed to be in 

our financial interest.  Any borrowing in advance of need will not exceed the capital financing 
requirement for the current year plus 2 years.  Borrowing for short periods of time to cover 
unexpected cash flow shortages may also be undertaken if required. 

 
F4.6 Under advice from the Council’s treasury advisors, we may also consider arranging forward 

starting loans, where the interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years.  
This would enable certainty of cost to be achieved for the future without incurring costs 
immediately. 

 
F4.7 Context: At 1 April 2023 the Council will hold around £200m of long term HRA loans.  The debt 

portfolio was originally structured to mirror projected cash surpluses arising from the HRA 
business plan on the introduction of self-financing, with all loans being repaid by 2028.   

 
F4.8 The Government’s four-year rent reduction policy impacted on our ability to repay loans as 

quickly as it originally intended. This meant that in the medium term of the 30 Year HRA 
Business Plan, additional borrowing will be needed to extend the duration of the repayment 
period. 

 
F4.9 In addition, the cost of living crisis including high levels of inflation and utility costs, along with 

the Governments rent cap for 2023/24 of 7% which is below inflation, has led to the borrowing 
on the HRA being extended out further than the 30 year plan.  

 
F4.10 Our budget shows there is further borrowing requirement of £31.848m in 2023/24, to support 

the Affordable Housing Programme and refinancing of existing debt associated with the previous 
rent reduction policy.  We continue to generate receipts from right to buy sales.  

 
F4.11 At 1 April 2023 General Fund borrowing, which relates to the acquisition and refurbishment of 

properties in recent years to support the economic development and regeneration of town and 
neighbourhood centres in the Borough, will amount to £25m. 

 
F4.12 Sources of borrowing: Our approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be: 

• HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board) 

• Any institution approved for investments (see section 7) 

• Any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 

• Any other UK public sector body 

• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Hertfordshire Pension Fund) 

• Capital market bond investors 

• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and special purpose companies created to enable 
local authority bond issues 
 

F4.13 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, we may finance our capital expenditure through 
other methods that are not directly borrowing cash, but would be classed as debt liabilities: 

• Leasing 

• Hire purchase 

• Private Finance Initiative 

• Sale and leaseback 
 
F4.14 Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay 

a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. We 

Page 132



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

40 
 

may take advantage of this and replace some of our loans with new loans, or repay loans without 
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in our risk 
exposure. The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable debt rescheduling 
opportunities should arise than in previous years. 

 
F4.15 Housing Company: It has been assumed that the Council will not lend to Now Housing during 

2023/24 for the provision of affordable housing. Borrowing would be undertaken in line with our 
Treasury Management Strategy. Loans and repayments will be covered through robust loan 
agreements and will be undertaken in line with the company’s business plan, subject to approval 
by the Section 151 officer.   
 

F4.16 Governance and Reporting: We maintain a number of indicators to monitor and limit our risk 
exposure in relation to our debt, some of which are required by legislation.  

 
F4.17 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 

refinancing risk. Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. The upper and lower 
limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be: 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing Upper Limit   Lower Limit 

Under 12 months 30% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 30% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 80% 0% 

10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 

20 years and above 100% 0% 
 

F4.18 Authorised Borrowing Limit: The authorised limit is what we determine to be our maximum 
affordable borrowing in any one year. It is not the amount the Council expects to borrow to meet 
its capital expenditure requirements, but provides headroom over and above our capital 
requirements to allow for unusual cash movements, or to take advantage of low interest rates 
and to borrow in advance of need. 

  

Authorised Borrowing Limit 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £'m £'m £'m 

External Borrowing 373.173 394.172 403.645 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2.266 2.248 2.230 

TOTAL 375.439 396.420 405.875 

 
 
F4.19 Operational Boundary: The operational boundary is based on the Council’s estimate of most 

likely scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Council’s estimates of capital expenditure, 
the capital financing requirement, and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring. The 
operational boundary below is set based upon our expected year end position and may be 
exceeded during the year based on upon cashflow requirements, and the timing of borrowing 
repayments. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

41 
 

Operational Boundary 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £'m £'m £'m 

External Borrowing 343.173 364.172 373.645 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2.266 2.248 2.230 

TOTAL 345.439 366.420 375.875 

 
 

Treasury Investment Strategy 
 
F5.1 The Council holds significant invested funds, representing the income we have received in 

advance of our expenditure, plus the balances and reserves we hold. It is expected that our 
treasury investment balances will range between £10m and £50m in the 2023/24 financial year. 

 
F5.2 Our non-treasury investments, such as investment in property, are covered separately by our 

investment strategy (Annex E of our MTFS). 

 
F5.3 Objective: To ensure funds are invested prudently, giving regard to the security and liquidity of 

investments, before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. We will aim to strike a balance 
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of 
receiving unsuitably low investment income. 

 
F5.4 Strategy: As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Council expects to be a long-

term borrower and new treasury investments will be made primarily to manage day-to-day cash 
flows, using short term, low risk investments. The existing investment in the CCLA property fund 
will be maintained, however, to diversify risk into different sectors and boost investment income.  

 
F5.5 The CIPFA Code does not permit local authorities to both borrow and invest long term for cash 

flow management. The Council may, though, make long term investments for treasury risk 
management purposes, including to manage interest rate risk by investing sums borrowed in 
advance for the capital programme for up to three years; to manage inflation by investing usable 
reserves in instruments whose value rises with inflation; and to manage price risk by adding 
diversification to the strategic pooled fund portfolio.  

 
F5.6 ESG policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a 

factor in global investors’ decision making, but the framework for evaluating investment 
opportunities is still developing and therefore the Council’s ESG policy does not currently include 
ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in 
banks and funds, the Council will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for 
Responsible Banking and funds operated by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles 
for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship 
Code. 

 
F5.7 Business Models: Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments depends 

on the Council’s “business model” for managing them.  The Council aims to achieve value from 
its treasury investments by a business model of collecting the contractual cashflows and 
therefore, where other criteria as also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for 
at amortised cost. 

  
Managing Treasury Investment Risks 

 

Page 134



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

42 
 

F6.1 We maintain a list of counterparties that we can invest with (section F7), and actively monitor 
the risk of investing with these counterparties.  

 
F6.2 Risk assessment and use of credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by our 

treasury advisors, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit 
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then: 

 

• No new investments will be made; 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be; and 

• full consideration will be given to recall or sale of all other existing investments with the 
affected counterparty. 

 
F6.3 Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible downgrade (also 

known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”), and that indicates that a rating is 
likely to fall below the approved rating criteria, we will only invest in these institutions if the 
investment can be withdrawn on the next working day. This policy will not apply to negative 
outlooks, which indicate a long term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating. 

 
F6.4 Other information on the security of investments: We understand that credit ratings are 

good predictors of investment default, but not perfect.  
 
F6.5 Full regard will be given to other available information on the credit quality of the organisations 

in which we invest, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on 
potential government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and advice from 
our treasury management advisor.  

 
F6.6 No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit 

quality, even though it may otherwise meet other criteria such as minimum credit rating. 

 
F6.7 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations, 

as in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other 
market measures. 

 
F6.8 In these circumstances, we will restrict our investments to those organisations of higher credit 

quality and reduce the maximum duration of our investments to maintain the required level of 
security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. 

 
F6.9 If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high credit quality” are 

available to invest our cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK 
Government, via the Debt Management Office, invested in government treasury bills, or with 
other local authorities. This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum 
invested. 

 
F6.10 Liquidity management: We use cash flow analysis to determine the maximum period for which 

funds may prudently be committed. Our forecasts are compiled on a prudent basis to minimise 
the risk of being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet our financial commitments. 
Limits on long term investments are set with reference to the Council’s medium-term financial 
strategy and cash flow forecast. 

 
F6.11 Interest rate risk: We manage our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 

containing interest costs and/or securing interest revenues, to meet budget expectations. This 
is achieved through the prudent use of approved instruments, methods and techniques, 
primarily to create stability, and certainty of costs and revenues, whilst retaining a sufficient 

Page 135



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

43 
 

degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the 
level or structure of interest rates.  Advice is taken from our treasury advisors in this respect. 

 
F6.12 Governance and Reporting: We maintain a key indicators to monitor and limit our risk 

exposure in relation to our investments: 
 
F6.13 Long term treasury management investments: The purpose of this indicator is to balance 

our liquidity needs and control our exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early 
repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long term treasury management 
investments will be: 

 
 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 No fixed date 

 £m £m £m £m 

Sums invested beyond one year 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 

 
Long term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds but exclude 
money market funds and bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are considered 
short term. 
 
Approved investment counterparties 

 
F7.1 We may invest our surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the following table, subject to 

the cash limits (per counterparty) and time limits shown. The table must be read in conjunction 

with the remainder of this section. 

Sector Time limit Counterparty limit Sector limit 

The UK Government 3 years Unlimited n/a 

Local authorities & other 
government entities 

3 years £3m £20m 

Secured investments * 3 years £4m £20m 

Banks (unsecured) * 7 months £3m £15m 

Building societies 
(unsecured) * 

7 months £3m £15m 

Registered providers 
(unsecured) * 

3 years £3m £6m 

Money market funds * n/a £4m £32m 

Strategic pooled funds n/a £4m £8m 

 

* Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will 
only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than A-
. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment 
is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are 
never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external 
advice will be taken into account.  
 

F7.2 UK Government: This class includes loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by the 
UK Government. Investments with the UK Central Government are deemed to be zero credit 
risk due to its ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited 
amounts. The maximum duration has been reduced to 3 years to make clear that the Council 
does not borrow to invest primarily for financial return. 

Page 136



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

44 
 

 
F7.3 Local Authorities and Other Government Entities: This category includes loans to, and 

bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by regional and local authorities, multilateral development 
banks and other Government entities. These investments are not subject to bail-in and there is 
generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk.  The maximum duration has 
been reduced to 3 years as it has been for the UK Government. 

 
F7.4 Secured Investments: These investments are secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits 

the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be a 
key factor in the investment decision.  Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements with 
banks or building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit 
rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of 
the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured 
and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured 
investments. The maximum duration has been reduced to 3 years as it has been for the UK 
Government and local authorities. 

 
F7.5 Banks and Building Societies (Unsecured): These investments are subject to the risk of 

credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. This 
class includes accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks 
and building societies, other than multilateral development banks.  

 
F7.6 Registered Providers (Unsecured): These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social 

Housing and, as providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving government 
support if needed. This class includes loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by registered 
providers of social housing and registered social landlords, formerly known as Housing 
Associations.  

 
F7.7 Money Market Funds: These are pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and 

very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the 
advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with 
the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee., The Council will take care 
to diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all times. 

 
F7.8 Strategic Pooled Funds: These allow diversification into asset classes other than cash without 

the need to own and manage the underlying investments. As these funds have no defined 
maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and 
continued suitability in meeting our investment objectives will be monitored regularly. This class 
includes bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns over the longer term but 
are more volatile in the short term. 

 
F7.9 HSBC Group: Occasionally, unexpected receipts to the council’s operational bank account may 

take the overnight balance above the HSBC end of day projected balance, which is used make 
daily treasury decisions.  These operational balances will not count towards the investment limit, 
on the basis that they cannot always be controlled and unexpected payments are often received. 

 
F7.10 Investment Limits: The maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK 

government) will be £4m in order that no sum in excess of available reserves is put at risk in the 
case of a single default. A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single 
organisation for limit purposes. Limits will also be placed on investments in brokers’ nominee 
accounts and industry sectors as below.  

 
 

Page 137



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

45 
 

 Cash limit 

Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government £4m each 

Any group of organisations under the same ownership £4m per group 

Any group of pooled funds under the same management £4m per manager 

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account £10m per broker 

 
Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives 
 

F8.1 The CIPFA Code requires us to clearly state our policy on the use of derivatives.  We do not 
plan to use derivatives currently. 

 
F8.2 If required, we will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures 

and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the financial 
risks that we are exposed to. Any additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to 
derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk. 

 
F8.3 Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting 

transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed 
in line with the overall strategy. 

 
F8.4 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the 

approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative 
exposures. The current value of any amount due from a derivative counterparty will count 
against the counterparty credit limits. 

 
F8.5 We will seek and consider external advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure 

that we fully understand any implications. 
 

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 

 
F9.1 We have opted up to professional client status with our providers of financial services, including 

advisors, banks, brokers and fund managers. This allows us access to a greater range of 
services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small 
companies.  

 
F9.2 Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury management activities the Council’s s151 

Officer believes this to be the most appropriate status. This status requires the Council to 
maintain a minimum of £10m in investments. 

 
Policy on apportioning interest to the Housing Revenue Account 
 

F10.1 All long-term loans in the Council’s portfolio are assigned in their entirety to either the General 
Fund or the HRA pool at the time the loan is agreed. Interest payable and other costs/income 
arising from long-term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be 
charged/credited to the respective revenue account. 

 
F10.2 Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow 

(adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources available for investment) will result in a notional 
cash balance which may be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each month 
and interest transferred between the General Fund and HRA. The interest rate to be applied will 

Page 138



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

46 
 

be the DMADF rate for the weighted average maturity period of the investment portfolio, 
determined on a weekly basis. 

 
Treasury Management Practices 

 
F11.1 The CIPFA Code requires the Council to maintain a set of Treasury Management Practice 

documents setting out how we will implement the treasury management strategy.  They include 
a detailed set of schedules covering operational matters.  The Section 151 officer has reviewed 
the documents and made some minor changes to ensure the documents are updated in line 
with the latest issue of the CIPFA Code. 

Page 139



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

47 
 

Annex G – Summary of Performance and Risk Indicators 
 

G1.1  This strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. 
It provides a summary of all of our key indicators used to monitor performance and manage risk.   

 
 Reserves and Balances 
 
 We will maintain minimum working balances as follows:  
 

 2023/24 

Minimum 

£’m 

2024/25 

Minimum 

£’m 

2025/26 

Minimum 

£’m 

General Fund 3.900 3.900 3.900 

Housing Revenue Account 3.004 3.203 3.359 

 
 Capital Expenditure and Financing 
  
 Based on our capital schemes, we expect our capital expenditure to be as follows: 

 

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

General Fund (GRF) 7.895 1.971 1.869 3.324 4.958 

Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 

65.160 50.336 38.253 40.246 39.227 

TOTAL 73.055 52.307 40.122 43.570 44.185 

 
 
Based on this expenditure we expect our financing to be as follows: 
 

General Fund 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

Grants and Contributions 0.592 0.592 0.592 0.592 0.592 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

6.109 0.897 0.811 0.841 0.811 

Borrowing 15.613 1.901 1.885 3.310 4.974 

TOTAL 22.314 3.390 3.288 4.743 6.377 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

RTB Receipts 8.943 3.754 2.690 3.083 3.083 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

24.170 24.812 25.279 27.016 25.669 

Borrowing 32.047 21.770 10.284 10.147 10.475 

TOTAL 65.160 50.336 38.253 40.246 39.227 

 
 

Page 140



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

48 
 

 
 
 
Based on the above expenditure and financing, we expect our capital financing requirement 
(CFR) to be: 
 

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 

General Fund 52.741 51.970 51.158 51.747 53.904 

Housing Revenue Account 290.432 312.202 322.487 332.634 344.191 

TOTAL CFR 343.173 364.172 373.645 384.381 398.095 

 
 

 Based on these capital plans, and the longer-term 30-year Housing business plan, we expect 
our HRA debt to be repaid in 29 years. 

 
We have set the following maturity structure limits for borrowing: 
 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing Upper Limit   Lower Limit 

Under 12 months 30% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 30% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 80% 0% 

10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 

20 years and above 100% 0% 

 
We have set the following authorised limits (maximum) for borrowing: 
 

Authorised Borrowing Limit 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £'m £'m £'m 

External Borrowing 373.173 394.172 403.645 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2.266 2.248 2.230 

TOTAL 375.439 396.420 405.875 

 
We have set the following operational boundaries (expected levels) for borrowing: 
 

Operational Boundary 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £'m £'m £'m 

External Borrowing 343.173 364.172 373.645 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2.266 2.248 2.230 

TOTAL 345.439 366.420 375.875 

 
 Investments (Cash/Treasury) 

 
We have set the following limits for long term investments: 
 

Page 141



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

49 
 

 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 No fixed date 

 £m £m £m £m 

Sums invested beyond one year 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 

 
 
We have set the following counterparty limits: 
 

Sector Time limit Counterparty limit Sector limit 

The UK Government 3 years Unlimited n/a 

Local authorities & other 
government entities 

3 years £3m £20m 

Secured investments * 3 years £4m £20m 

Banks (unsecured) * 7 months £3m £15m 

Building societies 
(unsecured) * 

7 months £3m £15m 

Registered providers 
(unsecured) * 

3 years £3m £6m 

Money market funds * n/a £4m £32m 

Strategic pooled funds n/a £4m £8m 

 

* Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only 
be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than A-. Where 
available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, 
otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made 
solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be 
taken into account. 
 

 Investments (Non-Treasury) 
 
We monitor a suite of indicators to monitor performance and risk of service based and 
commercial investments: 
 

 2021/22 

Actual  

£’m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£’m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£’m 

Income Generating Assets held for service purposes 

Ratio: Loan to value (CFR to asset base) £1 : £2.85 £1 : £2.19 £1 : £2.19 

Ratio: Principal cover (MRP to income stream) £1 : £12.06 £1 : £12.67 £1 : £10.01 

Ratio: Interest cover (interest cost to income) £1 : £16.03 £1 : £11.14 £1 : £12.34 

Non-Income Generating Assets held for service purposes 

Cost of borrowing in relation to council tax £5.96 £5.96 £9.44 

  Commercial Assets  

Ratio: Loan to value (CFR to asset base) N/A* N/A* N/A* 

Ratio: Principal cover (MRP to income stream) N/A* N/A* N/A* 

Ratio: Interest cover (income to interest cost) N/A* N/A* N/A* 

 

Page 142



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

50 
 

• As there is currently no debt associated with these assets, these indicators have not 
been calculated. These assets had a value of £6.020m as at 31 March 2022, generating 
around £243k per annum in rental income. 

 
Liability Benchmark 

 
Our liability benchmark will be as follows: 

  

31.3.22 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

£m £m £m £m £m 

Loans CFR 286.815 308.846 340.907 361.924 371.415 

Less: Balance Sheet 
Resources 

(45.662) (38.737) (40.469) (38.173) (36.678) 

Net Loans requirement 241.153 270.109 300.438 323.751 334.737 

Plus: liquidity allowance 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 

Liability Benchmark 251.153 280.109 310.438 333.751 344.737 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45 47 49

Liability Benchmark

Existing loans Loans CFR Net loans requirement Liability Benchmark

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Summary of Special Expenses Impact on Band D Council Tax Appendix M

Parish
 Tax Base @ 

99.4%  Collection 
Rate 

Expenditure Reduction in 
Council Tax

Additional 
Council Tax

 Net Inc/(Dec) in 
Council Tax 

2023/24

 Net Inc/(Dec) in 
Council Tax 

2022/23
£ £ £ £ £

Ayot St Lawrence 68.2 0.00 (14.22) 0.00 (14.22) (15.03)

Ayot St Peter 110.1 0.00 (14.22) 0.00 (14.22) (15.03)

Essendon 436.1 1,510.00 (14.22) 3.46 (10.76) (7.39)

Hatfield 12,388.52 91,817.23 (14.22) 7.41 (6.81) (7.09)

North Mymms 4,431.4 0.00 (14.22) 0.00 (14.22) (15.03)

Northaw & Cuffley 3,102.7 16,900.00 (14.22) 5.45 (8.77) 4.58

Welwyn 4,767.7 62,393.30 (14.22) 13.09 (1.13) (7.53)

Welwyn Garden City 17,946.6 451,096.63 (14.22) 25.14 10.92 10.70

Woolmer Green 615.9 0.00 (14.22) 0.00 (14.22) (15.03)

Total 43,867.1 623,717.16 54.55

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 145



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix N 
 

Statement of the Chief Finance Officer 
 
Introduction 
 
The ‘Chief Finance Officer’ within the meaning of section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
and known as the S151 Officer, is required to make a statement on the adequacy of reserves and 
the robustness of the budget.  This is a statutory duty under section 25 of the 2003 Local 
Government Act which states the following: 
 
(1) Where an authority to which section 32 or 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
(billing or major precepting authority) or section 85 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (c.29) 
(Great London Authority) applies is making calculations in accordance with that section, the chief 
finance officer of the authority must report to it on the following matters- 
 

(a) The robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the calculations, and 
  

(b) The adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. 
 
(2) An authority to which a report under this section is made shall have regard to the report when 
making decisions about the calculations in connection with which it is made. 
 
This includes reporting and taking into account: 
 

• The key assumptions in the proposed budget and to give a view on the robustness of 
those assumptions. 

 

• The key risk areas in the budget and to assess the adequacy of the Council’s reserves 
when reviewing the potential financial impact of these risk areas on the finances of the 
Council.  This should be accompanied by a Reserves Strategy. 

 
This report has to be considered and approved by Council as part of the budget approval and 
Council Tax setting process. 
 
This document concentrates on the 2023/24 General Fund and Housing Revenue budgets, the 
Capital Programme, Treasury Management, and also considers key medium term issues faced by 
the Council.   
 
Assurance Statement of the Council’s Section 151 Officer  
 
The following are the summary assurances and recommendations of the Council’s Section 151 
Officer.   
        
In relation to the 2023/24 Budgets I have examined the proposals and I believe that they are 
achievable, given the political and management will to implement them. The Council has a history 
of strong financial management, along with sound and robust monitoring of performance and 
budgets.  A comprehensive budget planning process has ensured the robustness of the budget 
proposals, and I believe the estimates are reasonable, given the inherent uncertainties, economy 
and current additional uncertainties arising from the ongoing impacts global COVID-19 pandemic 
and cost of living crisis. 
 
 

Page 147



The forecast reserve levels in 2023/24 are appropriate and adequate, given the amount of known 
financial risks and future volatility, along with the potential for unknown financial risks.   
 
The financial outlook beyond 2023/24 is dependent upon wider ongoing economic recovery from 
the pandemic and cost of living crisis and the outcome of the Fair Funding Review and Business 
Rates Retention system, which is also accompanied by a full reset of all the mechanisms within 
the business rates system within the term of the MTFS. There are also continued uncertainties 
around New Homes Bonus funding and the new grant streams such as the Funding Guarantee 
Grant.  
 
Due to the ongoing risks associated with the pandemic, an increase to the minimum level of 
General Fund Reserves have been included for 2023/24, and I can confirm the forecast reserves 
exceed this minimum level.  
 
Over the medium term (2023/24 to 2026/27), I will continue to closely monitor the achievement of 
savings targets which need to be delivered and report progress against these during the year, to 
ensure reserve balances continue to be maintained at an adequate level.   
 
There are challenging financial targets for 2024/25 and beyond, and early identification of 
efficiencies will be required in order to meet this challenging gap. Areas are already being 
considered to start progress towards closing the gap for future years.  
 
I, as the Council’s Section 151 Officer, consider the estimates for 2023/24 to be sufficiently robust, 
and that the level of reserves adequate for approval by the Council.  This statement is conditional 
upon the agreement of the budget proposals, appendices, strategies and policies contained within 
the budget report for 2023/24.  
 
Richard Baker, CPFA  
Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 

Page 148



Part I 
Item No: 9 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 1 FEBRUARY 2023 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Frank Marsh and 

will be seconded by Councillor Gemma Moore:- 

This Council notes with concern the very significant waiting list for social housing, 
with many thousands of eligible residents currently on the waiting list. 

As noted in the local plan, this council accepts that the shortage of social housing 
is acute in our borough and efforts are needed to readdress this shortfall. 

This council notes that current planning policies require all new developments to 
provide a significant proportion of affordable housing, with a requirement that over 
50% of that affordable housing be social housing. 

This council reaffirms its commitment to enforcing current planning policy on social 
housing and requests that planning officers recommend refusal of any 
development which fails to deliver the required housing mix.  

2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Tim Rowse and will 
be seconded by Councillor Sandreni Bonfante:- 

Fly tipping defaces our Borough and as well as being an eyesore can contribute 
to attracting vermin and other health and safety issues. The Council commits to 
take the following steps to address this:  

1. Review the specification and produce implementation plans for the clearances 
of the skips from local recycling facilities including scheduling of weekend 
collections where this is deemed necessary. 

2. Review the specification and produce implementation plans for the clearances 
of the skips from local recycling facilities over the Xmas period when demand 
is higher. 

3. Review the provision of recycling facilities and produce implementation plans 
for all fabrics including clothing, curtains and bedding materials. 

4. Work with Lovells to reintroduce local recycling facilities at High View in 
Hatfield as soon as is practicable. 

5. Revert to the communication of bin collection days to the specific rounds ie 
cease the “all encompassing” communication which too many residents find 
confusing 

6. Complete the trial of recycling from Council flats within the Borough and 
communicate a clear timetable for rolling out recycling to all Council flats and 
subsequently all other flats within the Borough. 

7. Produce targeted materials for students describing the correct recycling 
procedures within the Borough and aligned to distribution through the 
University of Hertfordshire freshers’ week.  

Page 149

Agenda Item 9



 

8. Ensure that Borough literature covering the dos and don’ts of correct recycling 
and based on common errors is provided to each household eg don’t attempt 
to recycle soiled takeaway food packaging  

9. Ensure that the procedures for securing more or larger home recycling bins 
are communicated within Borough literature, on the Council website and 
through social media. 

10. Produce specific communications for targeting landlords and tenants of HMOs 

11. Trial the reintroduction of “cage days” 

12. Take further preventive steps to deter fly tipping at known hot spots such as 
local recycling facilities. 

 

3. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Max Holloway and 
will be seconded by Councillor Kieran Thorpe:- 

Welwyn Hatfield Council believes: 
• Workers should not foot the bill for the cost of living crisis caused in part 

by covid-19 and the economic turmoil brought on by the governments own 
actions, 

• Workers being forced to take strike action is always the last thing they 
want. This shows just how much they have been forced into a corner with 
the current wave of industrial action across many sectors, 

• Employment rights are hard fought for and workers must be able to 
negotiate directly with their employers in good faith, 

• The ability for workers to organise and strike is a fundamental right and 
must be protected 

Welwyn Hatfield Council resolves to: 
• Put on record its support to all workers who are standing up against bad 

employment practices and poverty pay, 
• Put on record our thanks to workers for everything they do to keep our 

economy and public services moving, 
• Write to the relevant secretaries of state with regards to health workers 

and transport workers, urging the government to negotiate fairly with the 
unions to end these disputes quickly and in good faith, 

• Write to the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 
opposing his anti-strike law. 

Page 150



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Janet Pilbeam 
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 1 FEBRUARY 2023 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (FINANCE & TRANSFORMATION) 
 
PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023 /2024 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report sets out the council’s pay policy statement for 2023 / 2024.  

1.2 The ratios in this statement are based on established posts and pay levels, in place 
from April 2022. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Pay Policy Statement, for the period 2023 / 2024 be 
approved. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English local authorities to 
produce a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year. 

3.2 The specific matters, which must be included in the Council’s statutory pay policy 
are as follows: 

• The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer; 
• The remuneration of its lowest paid employees (together with a definition of 

‘lowest paid employees’ and its reasons for adopting that definition); 
• The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and other 

officers; and 
• Other specific aspects of chief officers’ remuneration: (i.e. remuneration on 

recruitment increases and additions to remuneration, any use of 
performance related pay and bonuses, termination payments and 
transparency) 

3.3 For the purposes of the Pay Policy Statement, senior management means ‘chief 
officers’ as defined by s43 of the Localism Act.  The posts falling within the 
statutory definition are set out below, with details of their basic salary as at 1 April 
2022 included in section 6 of the appended Pay Policy Statement: 

a) Chief Executive 
b) Executive and Service Directors 
c) Assistant Directors 

3.4 Pay Multiples 

3.4.1 The relationship between the pay of the highest paid officer and the median salary 
of staff for the year 2023/24 is anticipated to be 4.72:1.  The relationship between 
the pay of chief officers and the median salary of staff for the year 2023 / 24 is 
expected to be 2.55:1.   

Page 151

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires full Council approval of the Pay Policy Statement. 

4.2 The Council is required to produce the information detailed in paragraph 3.3 of this 
report in order to comply with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.  There 
are no impacts on the pay and conditions of employees arising from this report. 

4.3 As soon as is reasonably practicable after approving a Pay Policy Statement, the 
council must publish it in such manner as it thinks fit, which must include 
publication on the council’s website. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The financial implications of this report have been budgeted for in the financial year 
2023 / 24. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no risk management implications arising from this report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no Security and Terrorism implications arising from this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no direct human resource implications arising from this report. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications arising from this policy.  
The statement will be published on the Council’s website. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
Our Council, and specifically to the achievement of achieving Value for Money, 
being an Employer of Choice and is linked to a statutory requirement, under 
Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 legislation. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1  An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author Janet Pilbeam 
Title Human Resources Manager 
Date 17 January 2023 
 

Page 152



1 
 

 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2023 / 2024 

 
1. Introduction 

1.1. This statement sets out the Council’s position in relation to pay for its senior 
managers and lowest paid employees in compliance with section 38 of the 
Localism Act 2011 (the Act) and the statutory guidance on Openness and 
Accountability issued under section 40 of the Act. 

1.2. The policy sets out the Council’s approach to the pay and remuneration of its 
senior managers. 

1.3. This statement covers the financial year 2023 /2024.  The statement is updated 
and approved annually by full Council.  This statement is published on the 
Council’s website. 

2. Scope of Pay Policy 

2.1. The Council’s senior managers are defined within the Council’s Constitution 
and are shown in the following table: 

Head of Paid Service  Chief Executive 
Directors Executive Director (Finance & Transformation) 

Executive Director (Place) 
Service Director (Resident & Neighbourhood) 
Service Director (Property Service & Climate Change) 

Assistant Directors  Finance 
Legal & Governance 
ICT & Digital 
Customer Service & Transformation 
Regeneration & Economic Development 
Planning 
Leisure, community & cultural services 

 
3. General Terms and Conditions of Employment and Remuneration of 

Employees  

3.1. All employees of the Council are employed as part of the Single Status 
Agreement, under either the National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of 
Service of the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services 
(commonly known as the ‘Green Book’), or the Joint Negotiating Committee 
(JNC) for Chief Officers and Chief Executives. 

3.2.1 As of 1 April 2023, Scale A will be deleted from the pay scales.  Scale B, spinal 
column point (SCP) 2 will become the lowest scale for employees.  The current 
value of Scale B SCP 2 is £21,192, exclusive of Outer Fringe Allowance, 
currently £663 per annum. 

3.2. The Council uses a pay spine that commences at national Spinal Column Point 
(SCP) 2 and ends at local SCP 39.  This pay spine is divided into 12 pay bands, 

Page 153



2 

most having four incremental points with the exception of Scales B to D, which 
contain 2 scale points. Scale B is the lowest grade and Scale M is the highest 
of these pay grades.  Posts are allocated to a pay scale through a process of 
job evaluation.  We use the National Local Government Job Evaluation Scheme 
for this purpose. 

3.3. The monetary value of the SCPs in pay grades are increased in line with the 
national pay awards agreed by the NJC for Local Government Services; the 
pay award effective from 1 April 2023 has not yet been agreed.  The Outer 
Fringe Allowance is also subject to national negotiations.  Pay scales will be 
adjusted accordingly when agreement has been reached. 

4. General Principles Applying to Remuneration of Employees 

4.1. On appointment, individuals will be placed on the bottom SCP of the pay grade 
for the post that they are appointed to.  In exceptional circumstances, this may 
be on a higher SCP within the same grade taking into account various factors, 
including the experience of the candidate, the level of competition for the post 
and the difficulty of recruiting to the post.  The Head of Paid Service has 
responsibility for determining the procedure to be followed in these 
circumstances. 

4.2. Individuals will normally receive an annual increment, subject to the top of their 
grade not being exceeded.  In exceptional circumstances (e.g. examination 
success), individuals will receive accelerated increments.  Again, this is subject 
to the top of their grade not being exceeded. 

4.3. The Council does not apply performance related pay or bonuses.  

4.4. On ceasing to be employed by the Council, individuals will only receive 
compensation: 

a)  in circumstances that are relevant e.g. redundancy 
b) that is in accordance with our published Policy Statement on how we 

exercise the various employer discretions provided by the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), (Annex A) 

c)  that complies with the specific term(s) of a settlement agreement. 

4.5. The Council adheres to the statutory guidance on the making and disclosure of 
Special Severance Payments under section 26 of the Local Government Act 
1999. 

4.6. The Council can consider flexible retirement under its pension discretions 
scheme.  This is where an employee draws their pension and carries on 
working at a lower grade and/or on reduced hours.  It is available to LGPS 
members who are aged 55 or over, and who, with the Council’s consent, 
permanently reduce their hours and/or reduce their grade.  The employee’s 
pension is actuarially reduced if paid before normal state pension age.  This 
policy applies to all grades including Chief Officers and is at the Council’s 
discretion. 

4.7. The employees within the scope of this Pay Policy are entitled to join the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  Currently employees contribute 
between 5.5% and 12.5% of their salary.  Employees included within the table 
in section 2.1 contribute between 8.5% and 12.5%, depending on where they 
are within the salary range.  

Page 154



3 

4.8. Any decision to re-employ an individual, who was previously employed by the 
Council and, on ceasing to be employed was in receipt of a severance or 
redundancy payment, will be made on merit. The Council will not however, 
normally engage such an individual under a contract for services.  

4.9. Honorariums will only be paid in exceptional circumstances as agreed by 
Directors / Chief Executive.   

4.10. Where employees act up into a more senior role, or take on additional 
responsibilities for a fixed period, the value of any increase in salary will be 
based on the grade of the acting up / additional responsibility undertaken and 
linked to the council’s pay scales. 

4.11. Employees required to use their cars for work related travel can reclaim 45 
pence per mile.  Some employees with a contract of employment prior to 2012, 
who are required to have a vehicle at their disposal, receive a car user 
allowance of £846 per annum.  These employees are able to claim mileage 
rates of 36.9p to 45p per mile. 

4.12. Employees that joined the Council from the Community Housing Trust under 
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE), 
receive car allowances at the following rates: 
ESSENTIAL USERS 451-999cc 1000-1199cc 1200cc+ 
Lump Sum £846 £963 £1,239 
Rate per mile 
Up to 8500 miles 

36.9p 40.9p 50.5p 

Over 8500 miles 13.7p 14.4p 16.4p 
CASUAL USERS  
Rate per mile 
Up to 8500 miles 

46.9p 52.2p 65.0p 

Over 8500 miles 13.7p        14.4p  16.4p 
 
4.13. Some employees that joined the Council from SopraSteria under the Transfer 

of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE), receive a 
lump sum car allowance of £4080 per annum. 

4.14. Subsistence allowances are listed below: 
 

Breakfast £7.50 
Lunch £10.35 
Evening Meal £12.83 

5. Apprenticeships 

5.1. The Council is committed to offering apprenticeships to people wishing to gain 
experience whilst working towards a qualification.  Apprentices are contracted 
under a learning agreement and receive a minimum of £415 per week inclusive 
of weighting allowance, depending on the qualification they are undertaking. 

6. Remuneration of Senior Managers 

6.1. The remuneration of the Chief Executive and Directors was subject to a full and 
wide-ranging review carried out by independent specialist consultants in 2009. 
The recommendations of the consultants were considered by Council Members 
(including both Leaders of the Opposition) and formed the basis of the 
agreement made by Members in October 2009.  These are amended in 

Page 155



4 

accordance with the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers and 
Chief Executives annual pay negotiations. 

6.2. The salary range for senior managers are listed in the table below: 

Post Range 
From To 

Chief Executive £127,933 £139,387 
Executive Directors £96,429 £105,022 
Service Directors £83,197 £91,096 
Assistant Directors £64,921 £76,750 

 
Figures are exclusive of Outer Fringe Allowance, currently £663 per annum. 

6.3  The above salary ranges may change if pay awards are awarded within the 
financial year and before the next pay policy statement is produced. 

7. Chief Executive 

7.1. The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service.  There are three 
incremental points in the Chief Executive grade.   

7.2.  Directors  

7.2. There are four Director posts reporting to the Chief Executive in the structure, 
namely: 

• Executive Director (Place) 
• Executive Director (Finance & Transformation) 
• Service Director (Resident & Neighbourhood) 
• Service Director (Property Maintenance & Climate Change) 

8. Remuneration of other Chief Officers  

8.1. There are seven Assistant Directors reporting to the Executive Directors.  In 
addition, there are eight Service Managers reporting to Directors. These posts 
are evaluated using the Korn Ferry / HAY job evaluation methodology to ensure 
roles are graded fairly, accurately and consistently.  The job evaluation 
methodology allocates each role a grade. 

8.2. There are seven incremental points in the Assistant Director grade. 

8.3. The Assistant Director (Legal & Governance) undertakes the duties of the 
Monitoring Officer for the authority and, these duties attract a fixed annual 
payment of £5000.   

8.4. The Monitoring Officer has appointed deputies in receipt of a fixed annual 
payment of £3000 in relation to these additional duties. 

8.5. An organisation chart is published annually after each financial year in line with 
the transparency code.  

  

Page 156



5 

9. Pay Multiples 

9.1 The relationship between the pay of the highest paid officer and the median 
salary of staff for the year 2023/24 is anticipated to be 4.72:1.  The relationship 
between the pay of chief officers and the median salary of staff for the year 
2023 / 24 is expected to be 2.55:1.   

10. Other Benefits Relating to Pay 

10.1. The employees within the scope of this policy are entitled to participate in the 
Council’s Salary Sacrifice Scheme, which includes a Childcare Voucher 
scheme, whereby any employee can sacrifice part of their salary for childcare 
vouchers. These vouchers are exempt from income tax or National Insurance 
contributions and therefore represent a saving for employees who then use 
them to purchase childcare.  The childcare salary sacrifice scheme was closed 
by the Government, therefore only those who were in receipt of the vouchers 
prior to 6 April 2017 retain this benefit.   

10.2. The council offers employees the opportunity to take up salary sacrifice 
schemes, as agreed by the Head of Paid Service, including childcare vouchers, 
bicycles and cycle equipment.  Salary sacrifice is an agreement to reduce an 
employee’s entitlement to cash pay, usually in return for a non-cash benefit.  

10.3. The Council has an eye care voucher scheme in place to fulfil its obligation to 
provide those employees using display screen equipment with a bi- annual eye 
test and payment for a prescription required solely for display screen work.  
Vouchers are issued in accordance with the Councils’ Eye Test Policy. 

10.4. Employees that joined the Council from SopraSteria and Housing Trust under 
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE), 
receive the benefits of a Group Life Scheme. 

10.5. Council employees may be engaged on various election duties.  The fees paid 
vary according to the duties and type of election they participate in.  

10.6. Returning Officer duties and those of the Deputy Returning Officers, are 
contractual requirements and fees paid for national election and referendums 
are in accordance with Statutory Fees and Charges Order. 

11. Review of Pay Policy 

11.1. The Policy will be subject to annual review and must be approved by the Council 
prior to 31st March each year.  If there is a need to amend the Policy between 
reviews, then any such amendments will need to be approved by the Council. 

12. Background Documents  
• The Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 

Transparency. 
• Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under section 40 of 

the Localism Act 2011. 
• Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Constitution 
• Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council LGPS Discretionary Policy 
• Car Mileage Allowances 
• Flexible Retirement Policy 
• Redundancy and Redeployment Policy  

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
	WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

	8a Budget Proposals and Medium Term Financial Forecasts 2023/24 (Forward Plan Reference FP1143)
	Budget Proposals and Medium-Term Forecasts 2023/24
	Appendix A1 - General Fund Summary
	Appendix A2 - Reserves Summary (Reviewed)
	Appendix B - Summary By SMT Lead (Reviewed)
	Appendix C GF Savings Summary (Reviewed)
	Appendix D GF Growth Summary (Reviewed)
	Appendix E GF Fees and Charges 2023 24 (Reviewed)
	Appendix F - HRA Summary (reviewed)
	Appendix G HRA Summary of changes (Reviewed)
	Appendix H HRA Fees and Charges 2023 24 (Reviewed)
	Appendix I - Capital Programme (Reviewed)
	Appendix J - Capital Financing Summary (Reviewed)
	Appendix K - Statement of Capital Reserves (Reviewed)
	Appendix L - MTFS
	Appendix M Special Expenses 2023 24 (Reviewed)
	Table

	Appendix N - Statement of the Chief Finance Officer (Reviewed)

	9 NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16
	WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

	10 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023/24
	Item 10 - Pay statement report final


